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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton
Mr. Lau Shui Fung (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Law Elizabeth (appointed on 1 June 2023)
Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (retired on 1 June 2023)
Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

Audit Committee

Ms. Law Elizabeth (Chairperson) (appointed on 1 June 2023)
Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (Chairperson) (retired on 1 June 2023)
Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (Chairman)

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond

Ms. Law Elizabeth (appointed on 1 June 2023)
Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (retired on 1 June 2023)
Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren

Nomination Committee

Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren (Chairman)

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond

Ms. Law Elizabeth (appointed on 1 June 2023)
Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (retired on 1 June 2023)
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

Company Secretary

Ms. Chan Sau Ling

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond
Ms. Chan Sau Ling

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
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Hong Kong Legal Adviser
Bird & Bird
Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Compliance Adviser

Huajin Corporate Finance (International) Limited
Registered Office

4th Floor, Harbour Place

103 South Church Street

P.O. Box 10240

Grand Cayman KY1-1002
Cayman Islands

Headquarter and Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Units 3203-3207, Tower 1
Enterprise Square Five, 38 Wang Chiu Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office in the
Cayman Islands

Harneys Fiduciary (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Harbour Place

103 South Church Street

P.O. Box 10240

Grand Cayman KY1-1002

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Place of Listing

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code

9918

Stock Name

WISE ALLY INTL

Company’s Website
www.wiseally.com.hk
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2022
TET
HK$'000
OPERATING RESULTS
Revenue 1,335,549
Gross profit 194,954
Operating profit 32,107
Profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company 15,134
Basic and diluted earnings per share
(HK cents) 1551
FINANCIAL POSITION
Current assets 866,773
Current liabilities 794,879
Non-current assets 110,743
Non-current liabilities 26,602
Equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company 156,035
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
Gross profit margin 14.6%
Net profit margin 1.1%
Return on equity (Note 1) 9.8%
Return on total assets (Note 2) 1.6%

Current ratio

Net gearing ratio (Note 3)

1.1fZtimes

21.2%
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Notes:

The calculation of return on equity is based on profit for the year divided by
average balance of total equity and multiplied by 100%.

The calculation of return on total assets is based on profit for the year divided by
average balance of total assets and multiplied by 100%.

The calculation of net gearing ratio is based on total bank borrowings net of
cash and cash equivalents, along with bank deposits, divided by total equity and
multiplied by 100%.



EFMBERE

Five-Year Financial Summary

mEXEE CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
BZE12A31B8LLEFE
For the year ended 31 December
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
F#&ET FHET FETT FET T T
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
g Revenue 1,227,190 1,335,549 1,047,330 819,503 980,844
=Dy Operating profit 21,370 32,107 34,978 14,692 63,253
RARERFEA A Profit for the year
FEAE & Mg A attributable to equity
holders of the Company 1,245 15,134 20,120 1,451 33,390
HmeEEHSE CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
M12A31H
As at 31 December
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
F#ET T T TET FET T T
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
mEEE Current assets 822,662 866,773 798,815 637,049 494,598
REEE Current liabilities 748,322 794,879 726,397 582,013 479,342
EREEE Non-current assets 142,969 110,743 98,394 108,517 117,094
EREBEE Non-current liabilities 67,016 26,602 18,068 25,848 80,195
RAFESFAA Equity attributable to
FEIE#E = equity holders of the
Company 150,293 156,035 152,744 137,705 52,155
BEREERERAT
X2023/'; R 5
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Chairman’s Statement
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2023 F R ERH AN CHENEH BEXEFES
Pl FELERE (BREBRIN) FRERUKR
A5 EE S AEEES| HMNEISZE
A2 T B FHAEEMEEEHk
BN RERAAE2022FEFERAS
MEBCHRTENBAEE TRERE ([BEFHR
ERBDITEEALEE-

BEWIL HANBERE2 N KRB SERE
HIR8. 1% KR - R A B —FFEERE
& 08 T P B A R E AR

H FI#) & % A FlTalentone Technology Limited
([TTL) =X EBRMIBE T RESHFEE =
ERRTHRAEY R R EHERETFER RN
2023 F R EB A EHERBER E-XEH
EMBUTTESDERFZ B MEER
REREEZENFZEZANRFBER M
BEREHGEMNIEE R ETTLEBKRE S
BRTEEABRT  AEESSASERTTL
BN BRRESNEELATFEZHEIEL
2948 8B Z A FEER20235F12H31H
B E-EHE2023F12A31BILEE A7
AFEBRITYEASEE 2 RERE K
TR AEBNRTTLA R ESIEERN A FEE
B AEBBRMEEAGEN A3348 85T
E022F TS B AR M19.38 A LiE &
BB E BERK  AEEBEREMD
EFERIA  FIRF TR EE AN B P m E APk e o

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors” and
each a “Director”) of Wise Ally International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased
to present to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) the
annual results and consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (“FY2023” or the “reporting period”)
together with the comparative figures for the year ended 31 December
2022 (“FY2022").

The world might have averted an economic disaster in 2023, but
under the combined weight of continuous high interest rate, cooling
demands from the major economies (the US aside), and fresh disruptions
emanating from the Israeli-Hamas/Houthi conflict, the past year had
been tantalizingly challenging to the Group. As well, cancellation of
orders by customers due to over-stocking in 2022 was widespread in the
electronics manufacturing services (“EMS”) industry.

Despite the above, our best effort has resulted in a better-than-expected
8.1% drop in revenue. The only compensating element we experienced
is somewhat lower material prices.

Our joint venture, Talentone Technology Limited (“TTL”), with a main
focus in sales of vacuum cleaners on the US market, has unconfirmed
potential orders in late 2023 after finally completing the necessary
logistical and marketing setups. Hopefully, a surging US consumer
market that is seemingly undaunted by Federal Reserve Board interest
policy and global downturn, could facilitate a belated sales ramp-
up. Amidst a slower than expected start of TTLs business, the Group
recorded losses of approximately HK$29.4 million from the changes in
the fair value of the Group’s investment in the convertible bonds issued
by TTL, which were remeasured as at 31 December 2023. Such fair
value losses does not affect the Group's cash flows during the year ended
31 December 2023. Without taking into account the fair value losses in
the Group’s investment in convertible bonds of TTL, the Group’s profit
before income tax would have been HK$33.4 million which actually
improves as compared to profit before income tax of HK$19.3 million
in 2022. Looking ahead, the Group will monitor the performance of our
business while taking into account the challenges faced by the Group.

6 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PROSPECTS

In a US Presidential Election Year, the world invariantly anticipates the
political and economic repercussions with apprehensions. And this year’s
run for the White House will, in all likelihood, be the most contentious,
controversial, and perhaps de-stabilising.

After months of preparations, after the reporting period, we entered
into a joint venture agreement with Giken Sakata (S) Limited (“Giken”)
to establish a joint venture company with a focus on the sales and
marketing of the collaboration effort of the Group and Giken in the
provision of EMS. Giken which possesses manufacturing capabilities
at the Indonesian Island of Batam — opposite a narrow stretch of water
from Singapore, akin to Shenzhen in the 1980s is now logistically and
operationally ready for divesting some of our China manufacturing
activities that caters to some US customers. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 20 March 2024.

The Research & Development pipeline of 2024 has been significantly
enriched from the previous year as a result of our unwavering
commitment to invest in business development and engineering. Since
the end of COVID-19, adversity has descended with unprecedented
speed and fury. Global economic terrain is rough and bleak. It might be
the epoch of incredulity, or the season of light. But with vigor, wisdom,
and the splendor of teamwork, we are committed in teaming the winter
of despair into the spring of hope.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere appreciation to our customers, business partners and
Shareholders for their continuous support. | would like to also thank the
management team and all staff members for their contribution during the
year.

Chu Wai Hang Raymond
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of HK$1,227.2 million for FY2023 (FY2022:
HK$1,335.5 million), reflecting a decrease of HK$108.3 million or 8.1%.
Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in customer orders from a
few key customers in the year of 2023.

For FY2023, our products were shipped to over 25 (FY2022: 25)
countries and regions. The U.S. continued to be our largest market,
contributing HK$460.3 million (FY2022: HK$496.8 million), or 37.5%
(FY2022: 37.2%) of our total revenue. The U.S. sales showed a drop of
7.3% in the sales mix, which is the result of notable increases in sales
in other regions, such as Switzerland and Chinese Mainland, in FY2023.
The changes in sales mix to other major countries around the world
were mainly the combined impact after the COVID-19 pandemic and
a change in the distribution strategy from some of our major customers
between countries.

Gross profit for FY2023 amounted to HK$210.6 million (FY2022:
HK$195.0 million), which increased by HK$15.6 million, or 8.0%,
and gross profit margin increased from 14.6% for FY2022 to 17.2% for
FY2023. The increase in gross profit was mainly due to the change in
product mix, as well as a decrease in the amount of direct materials
required. This aligns with the decrease in revenue in FY2023.

Selling and distribution and administrative expenses for FY2023 were
HK$161.6 million (FY2022: HK$149.8 million), reflecting an increase
of HK$11.8 million or 7.9%. The cost increase was mainly due to a
strategic increase in headcounts for product innovation marketing efforts
to capture future business opportunities.

Net finance costs increased by HK$5.1 million, or 47.2% from HK$10.8
million for FY2022 to HK$15.9 million for FY2023. The increase
was mainly due to the fact that the global interest rates have been
dramatically increased during FY2023.

The significant drop in profit for FY2023 was mainly attributable to (i)
the significant loss on fair value changes of financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss; (ii) the increase in provision for inventories; (iii) a
significant increase in administrative expenses; and (iv) an increase of net
finance cost. As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company for FY2023 was HK$1.2 million (FY2022:
HK$15.1 million), reflecting a decrease of HK$13.9 million or 92.1%.

8 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$5.0 million).

There is no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group funded its liquidity and capital requirements primarily
through a combination of internally generated funds from its operating
activities and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2023, the Group's
bank borrowings were HK$292.6 million (31 December 2022: HK$275.3
million) while the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
were HK$274.6 million (31 December 2022: HK$242.2 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total net borrowings amounted to
HK$18.0 million (31 December 2022: HK$33.1 million) while its total
equity amounted to HK$150.3 million (31 December 2022: HK$156.0
million), resulting in a net gearing ratio of 12.0% (31 December 2022:
21.2%). The net gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings net of
cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits divided by total equity and
multiplied by 100%.

The Group has adequate liquidity to meet its current and future working
capital requirements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND COMMITMENTS

The Group incurred total capital expenditures of HK$13.8 million during
FY2023 (FY2022: HK$14.6 million) for additions of properties, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital commitments in relation
to the purchase of plant and machinery contracted but not provided for
in the amount of HK$2.8 million (31 December 2022: HK$0.5 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, to the best knowledge of the Board, the Group
was not involved in any legal proceedings pending or threatened against
our Group which could have a material adverse effect on our business
or operations. Besides, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2023.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no charges over the
assets of the Group.

BFERERERAR 9
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

In September 2023, the remaining tranche of convertible bond of a
principal amount of HK$22,000,000 was completed in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the CB Subscription Agreement between
Wise Ally Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
as the subscriber and TTL as the issuer.

Details of the above transaction can be found in the announcements of
the Company dated 28 January 2022, 8 February 2022, 22 March 2022
and 12 September 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other significant
investments, material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2023.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as aforesaid convertible bond included in the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, the Group did not make or hold any
significant investments (including any investment with a value of 5% or
more of the Company’s total assets as at 31 December 2023) during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising primarily with respect to the
United States dollars (“USD”) and Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). Most of
the Group’s sales proceeds are received in USD and some of the Group's
purchases and operating expenses are denominated in RMB. The Group
closely monitors its overall foreign exchange exposure from time to
time and will adopt a proactive but prudent approach to minimize the
relevant exposures.

The Group entered into derivative instruments to hedge against its foreign
exchange exposure during FY2023.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange since 10 January 2020 (the “Listing Date”). As at 31
December 2023, the Company’s total number of issued shares was
100,000,000 at HK$0.2 each (31 December 2022: 100,000,000 at
HK$0.2 each).

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group's capital structure consisted of bank
borrowings and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves. There was no material
change in capital structure of the Group during FY2023.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed approximately
1,600 (31 December 2022: 1,700) employees in Hong Kong and
Chinese Mainland. The reduction in the number of employees can
be attributable to an 8.1% decline in revenue. Total staff costs for
FY2023 amounted to HK$223.5 million (FY2022: HK$230.2 million).
The Group adopts a remuneration policy which is commensurate with
job nature, qualification and experience of employees. In addition
to the provision of annual bonuses and employee related insurance
benefits, discretionary bonuses are also rewarded to employees based
on individual performance. The remuneration packages and policies are
reviewed periodically. The Group also provides in-house and external
training programs to its employees. The emoluments of the Directors are
decided by the Board and the Remuneration Committee of the Company
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme on 10 December
2019 for the purpose of providing incentives to eligible participants of
the scheme, including Directors, full-time employees of and advisers and
consultants to the Group. No option was granted during FY2023 and as
at 31 December 2023, there was no outstanding option granted under
the scheme.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group has set out its future plans in the prospectus of the Company
dated 27 December 2019 (the “Prospectus”). As at 31 December 2023,
the net proceeds raised from the Global Offering (as defined in the
prospectus) have been fully utilised according to its plan on the use
of proceeds as stated in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group does not have any
firm intention or specific plans for material investments or capital assets
as at the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant events occurring after the end of the reporting
period.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (“Mr. Raymond Chu”), aged 71, is our
Chairman, an executive Director and one of the founders of our Group
and has been the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 30
September 2021. He is also a member of the Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee and an authorized representative of the
Company. He is responsible for the leadership of the Board, corporate
governance promotion, strategic planning, and major decision-making of
our Group.

Mr. Raymond Chu is a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Prior to the establishment of our Group in July 2010, Mr. Raymond Chu
had worked for Defond Holdings (H.K.) Co. Limited and its subsidiaries
since June 1990 as the chairman responsible for technical, information
technology and research and development functions and later for the
management and operation of the electronics manufacturing services
(“EMS”) division. From May 1977 to early 1990s, Mr. Raymond Chu had
worked as an engineer for a company principally engaged in the supply
of electromechanical motion systems and solutions.

Mr. Raymond Chu graduated from the University of California, Berkeley
in the U.S. with a bachelor of science in mechanical engineering in
March 1977.

Mr. Raymond Chu is the father of Mr. Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton,
Executive Director and the Managing Director of original brand
development, and the elder brother of Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson (a
controlling and substantial shareholder of the Company). He is also a
controlling and substantial shareholder of the Company and a director
and shareholder of each of Smart Union Global Group Limited and
Smartview Investments Limited, each of which has an interest in the
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”).

Mr. Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton (“Mr. Arthur Chu”), aged 41, was
appointed as an Executive Director on 2 July 2021. He joined the Group
in January 2021 with the position as the Managing Director of original
brand development responsible for overall operation of the New Branded
Division of the Group. His duties include formulation of the marketing
strategy of self-developed products, identification and development of
new sales opportunities, and maintaining long-term relationships with
internal and external partners.
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Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Arthur Chu had worked for Cornerstone
Developments Limited as research and development senior manager
from December 2015 to January 2021, responsible for research, planning
and overseeing development of new LED lighting products. Mr. Arthur
Chu joined Defond Electrical Industries Limited (“DEIL”) as a mechanical
engineer in April 2008, and was responsible for monitoring product
design and development, testing schedule, collaborating with different
departments to drive and control the project progress. He was later
promoted to senior program manager in February 2013, responsible for
overseeing the new projects launching, budget control, coordination
and implementation of products, and handling commercial issues
with customers. Mr. Arthur Chu’s last position in DEIL was research
and development senior manager from April 2015 to November 2015,
responsible for research, planning and implementing new programs
development into the organization.

Mr. Arthur Chu graduated from the University of Southern California with
a Bachelor Degree of Science in Mechanical Engineering in 2006.

Mr. Arthur Chu is the son of Mr. Raymond Chu, the Chairman, the
Chief Executive Officer, an Executive Director, and a controlling and
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Arthur Chu is also the
nephew of Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson, a controlling and substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lau Shui Fung (“Mr. Lau”), aged 57, was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and an executive Director on 31
October 2021 and on 1 December 2021, respectively. He is responsible
for financial and accounting management of the Group. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Lau had been the chief financial officer of Defond
Holdings (H.K.) Co Ltd., and held various positions, including vice
president of finance and company secretary in Defond Holdings (H.K.)
Co Ltd. from April 2016 to October 2021. From September 2013 to
March 2016, he was the vice president of finance of Computime Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 320). He had served as an independent non-executive
director of Kaisa Health Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0876) for the period
from August 2019 to March 2020. He had also served as an independent
non-executive director of Nam Tai Property Inc., a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: NTP), from June 2018 to June
2019. He held various positions, such as group financial controller, vice
president of finance and corporate secretary of Nam Tai Electronics, Inc.
(the company name was changed to Nam Tai Property Inc. in 2014) from
November 2001 to September 2013.
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Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor degree of commerce in accounting from
The University of Southern Queensland in Australia and a master
of professional accounting degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a Certified Practising Accountant of
CPA Australia and a fellow member of the Association of International
Accountants. Mr. Lau has over 22 years of extensive experience
in accounting, auditing and finance gained from high technology
companies listed in the United States and Hong Kong.

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Law Elizabeth (“Ms. Law”), aged 69, obtained a Bachelor of
Commerce degree in Accounting from McGill University of Canada
in 1976. Ms. Law is the Managing Director of Law & Partners CPA
Limited and Proprietor of Stephen Law & Company. She is a Chartered
Professional Accountant, Chartered Accountant of Canada, a Certified
Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong, a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow
member of the CPA Australia. Ms. Law is an independent non-executive
director of Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (stock code:
0188), Clifford Modern Living Holdings Limited (stock code: 3686), The
Wharf (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 0004), Onewo Inc. (stock code:
2602) and Starlite Holdings Limited (stock code: 0403), all of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren (“Mr. Lee”), aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2019. He is
mainly responsible for providing independent advice to our Group. He
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee.
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Mr. Lee was one of the founding directors of Yu Ming Investment
Management Limited (“Yu Ming”) in July 1996 and has worked in Yu
Ming ever since, responsible for overseeing business development,
maintaining client relationship, monitoring industry developments and
supervising corporate finance advisory and asset management teams
on the provision of services to clients. Mr. Lee is an executive director
of Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited, the holding company of Yu Ming,
which has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1073) since July 2019. Mr. Lee was an executive director and
the chairman of the board of SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited which
was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 666)
in December 1990 but was delisted on 23 April 2021 subsequent to its
successful privatization. Mr. Lee first joined SHK Hong Kong Industries
Limited as a manager in July 1992 and became an executive director in
September 2004. He was appointed as the chairman of the board and
ceased to act as the managing director of SHK Hong Kong Industries
Limited in March 2009. From November 2007 to March 2015, Mr. Lee
was a non-executive chairman of Rotol Singapore Ltd which was listed
on the main board of the Singapore Exchange Limited until August 2011.
He acted as an executive director of Viva China Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8032),
from June 2010 to June 2013. From February 2013 to April 2013, he
was a non-executive director of China Kingstone Mining Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1380). From December 2006 to May 2007, he was the chief
executive officer of Nam Tai Electronics, Inc. (currently known as Nam
Tai Property Inc.), an electronics manufacturing services provider listed
on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: NTP). From March 2004
to February 2006, he was an independent non-executive director of Nam
Tai Electronic & Electrical Products Limited, and from February 2006 to
April 2007, he was re-designated as a non-executive director. At the time
of his directorship, Nam Tai Electronic & Electrical Products Limited was
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2633). From
January 2007 to April 2007, he was also a non-executive director of J.I.C.
Technology Company Limited (currently known as China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited), which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 987).

Mr. Lee graduated from The University of East Anglia in England in
1986 with a bachelor of science and obtained a distinction in master of
science from The City University Business School in London in 1988.

Mr. Lee is a responsible officer licensed to conduct type 1 (dealing in
securities), type 4 (advising on securities), type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
SFO.
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Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (“Mr. Szeto”), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2019. He is
mainly responsible for providing independent advice to our Group. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Szeto was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in September 1992
and is currently a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr. Szeto is the co-
founder of Messrs. Y.T. Szeto & Co., Solicitors that was established in
September 1996 and has served as the sole proprietor of Messrs. Szeto
& Co., Y.T. since January 2001. Mr. Szeto worked for Messrs. Paul Chan
& Co., Solicitors from October 1993 to August 1996 as an assistant
solicitor. Prior to that, Mr. Szeto served as an articled clerk in Messrs.
Norman Yung & Co., Solicitors from September 1990 to September 1992
and then as an assistant solicitor with the same firm from September
1992 to October 1993.

Mr. Szeto graduated from the University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong
with a bachelor of laws in December 1989 and was awarded the
postgraduate certificate of laws by the University of Hong Kong in
Hong Kong in June 1990. Since June 2017, Mr. Szeto has served as
an independent non-executive director of Evergreen Products Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1962). Since 4 March 2022, Mr. Szeto has served as an
independent non-executive director of Chiho Environmental Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 976).

Senior Management

Mr. WEI Andrew, Yick Siu, (“Mr. Wei”) age 54, was promoted to Chief
Marketing Officer on 1 January 2023, who was initially appointed as
Vice President of Client Base Management of the Company on 3 August,
2021. He participates in strategic planning and business development
for our Group. Prior to joining our Group, from October 2017 to June
2021, Mr. Wei was managing the EMS Business Unit as a Director at PC
Partner Limited, a subsidiary of PC Partner Group Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1263), the
principal business of which is to develop and manufacture an OBM
line of gaming PCs as well as graphics interface cards. Mr. Wei was
responsible for developing new business, establishing new technology
platform and leading R&D for the EMS Business Unit. From 2000 to
2017, Mr. Wei joined Electronics Tomorrow Limited, a subsidiary of
Tomorrow International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Former stock code: 760) principally
engaged in the designing and manufacturing of LCD time piece and LCD
connected consumer electronics for global markets. His last position
for the group was Chief Operation Officer. From 1995 to 2000, Mr. Wei
joined Hiraoka & Co., HK. Limited, as Departmental Senior Manager, a
renowned Japanese Trading firm that managed outsource manufacturing
and product development for appliance & consumer electronics with
majority of clientele from Japan. Mr. Wei graduated from the University
of Toronto in June 1992 with a Bachelor Degree in Economics &
Japanese Studies. During his years in the University of Toronto, he has
participated in an exchange program with Sophia University in Japan for
his Japanese proficiency since 1990.
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Ms. Choi Yuet Mei Mercury, (“Ms. Choi”) aged 52, has been appointed
as the Vice President of the Supply Base Management of the Group
since October 2021, and is primarily responsible for overseeing the
procurement team of the Group. Ms. Choi leads the procurement team
to negotiate prices and terms, promotes the formulation of alternative
procurement plans to improve material cost competitiveness, formulates
strategic arrangements for suppliers, establishes supplier partnerships,
and manages suppliers service performance.

Before joining the Group, Ms. Choi worked in the electronics and
enclosure manufacturing industry for nearly 30 years, responsible for
procurement, supply chain, logistics operation, production operation
management, program management. Ms. Choi joined Karrie Group (stock
code: 1050), a Hong Kong listed company, from July 2017 to September
2021 as the Assistant General Manager of Procurement — Supply Chain
Management, responsible for formulating overall procurement strategic
management, procurement policy direction, and ensuring the stability
of supply chain management. From July 2009 to October 2013, she
worked for a Chinese based EMS enterprise listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, Shenzhen Sea Star Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2137),
as the Vice General Manager, responsible for managing the Program
Management Department, Purchasing Department, Logistics Supply
Chain and Operations Management.

Ms. Choi graduated from Macquarie University, Australia in July 2009
with a Master Degree in Logistics and Operations Management.

Mr. Chan Wai Ho, (“Mr. Chan”) aged 54, joined our Group on 6 April
2020 as general manager of our Group. He is responsible for overseeing
production operation of our Group.

Mr. Chan has over 30 years’ experience in various multinational
companies in EMS and manufacturing industry. Before joining our
Group, from January 2018 to April 2020, Mr. Chan worked for an EMS
company as general manager and was promoted to the position of vice
president of operations, with the responsibility of formulating overall
strategy and establishing policies to ensure production runs smoothly
and efficiently. Mr. Chan worked for Meter Technology Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of The Hong Kong & China Gas Company Limited,
a company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
3), principally engaged in design and manufacturing of utility gas flow
meter with micro electro mechanical system (MEMS) technology for
China market, from November 2012 to January 2018, where he was
the assistant general manager of operation, responsible for gas meter
production, gas flow senor design enhancement and improvement,
quality improvement, metrology development and manufacturing process
development and supplier development.
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During September 2010 to November 2012, Mr. Chan worked as the
head of manufacturing of IDT Technology Limited, a company listed
on Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 167), principally
engaged in design and manufacturing of radio control clocks, electronic
thermometers, barometers and weather stations, wearable sport & fitness
product, wireless product like including DECT phone & DECT based
conference phone where he was responsible for managing the affairs of
the manufacturing operations.

From April 2008 to September 2010, Mr. Chan worked for Rohm and
Haas Electronic Material Dongguan Limited, a company principally
engaged in design and manufacturing of specialty chemical for print
circuit board production use, as a deputy general manager and was
responsible for daily operation, including supply chain management
team and quality & analytical laboratory.

Mr. Chan obtained a Post Certification in Manufacturing System
Engineering from University of Warwick in the United Kingdom in
July 1999 where he attended the course in Hong Kong and obtained a
bachelor of engineering in computer aided engineering from Liverpool
John Moores University in the United Kingdom in July 1993.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Board is pleased to present this report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 15 January 2019 and was registered as
a non-Hong Kong company under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622, Laws of Hong Kong) on 14 March 2019. The Shares have
been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 10 January
2020 by way of Hong Kong public offering and international placing (the
“Global Offering”).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The net proceeds raised from the Global Offering, after deducting
the underwriting fees and other related listing expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$74.0 million, out of which HK$11.2 million remained
unutilised as at 30 June 2023. As at 31 December 2023, the net proceeds
raised from the Global Offering have been fully utilised according to its
plan on the use of proceeds as stated in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

As at 31 December 2023, all net proceeds were utilised as follows:

Fri8RE
BERR
FRiEFARERRZR Proposed use EFA
Intended use of proceeds of proceeds Utilised
BEET BEAET
HK$ million HK$ million
BBERMEER T REREET SEMER
Increasing production capacity by expanding manufacturing platform
in South East Asia region and the PRC 8.9 (8.9)
AR AL SE K BRI B & $H BE
Increasing marketing efforts in North America
and Europe 2.3 (2.3)
11.2 (11.2)
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries of the Company are primarily engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of electronic products.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 104.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$5.0 million).

There is no arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2024 AGM is scheduled to be held on Monday, 3 June 2024. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
29 May 2024 to Monday, 3 June 2024, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of share(s) of the Company will be registered.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, unregistered
holder(s) of share(s) of the Company should ensure that all share transfer
document(s) accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 28 May 2024.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2023
including an analysis of the Group’s performance using key financial
performance indicators, principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Company, important events affecting the Company that have occurred
since the end of FY2023, and a discussion on the Group's future business
development are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to
7 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 11 of this
annual report. These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.
Other than the events set out in other parts of this annual report, no
other significant event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of
the year under review and up to the date of this annual report.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The Group is committed to environmental responsibility through
minimizing the impacts to the community and environment while
safeguarding the health and safety of the public. More details regarding
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are provided in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 61 to 96 of
this annual report.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board, during the year under review, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Company. Further details regarding the Group’s compliance with
the applicable laws relating to the environmental and social aspects
are provided in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 61 to 96 of this annual report.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the valuable assets
of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring
environment to its employees and emphasise the personal development
of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. Despite the challenging business conditions, the Group aims
to continue providing products and services that meet or exceed its
customers’ requirement or expectation for quality, reliability and value.
In accomplishing this goal, the Group endeavours to build long-term
and mutually beneficial relationships with its suppliers, ensuring reliable
delivery to its customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no significant and
material dispute between the Group and its employees, suppliers and/or
customers.
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DONATIONS

During the reporting period, the Group made charitable donation
amounting to HK$25,000.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There is no significant events occurring after the end of the reporting
period.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2023 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SHARES ISSUED

In preparation for the listing of the Company’s Shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, the Company underwent series of reorganisation
arrangements, which are more particularly described in the subsection
headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in the
Prospectus.

The Company had 1,000,000 issued Shares immediately before
the capitalisation issue and the Global Offering. On 10 January
2020, immediately before the Global Offering, the Company issued
1,499,000,000 new Shares to the Shareholders whose name appeared
on the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on a date prior to the Global Offering by way of capitalisation of an
amount of HK$14,990,000 standing in the share premium account of
the Company credited as a result of the Global Offering. On 10 January
2020, pursuant to the Global Offering, the Company issued 500,000,000
new Shares at HK$0.25 each. The net proceeds received by the
Company from the Global Offering (after deducting the underwriting fees
and other related listing expenses), amounted to approximately HK$74.0
million. Details of the Global Offering were disclosed in the Prospectus.
Immediately upon completion of the Global Offering, the total number
of issued shares of the Company was 2,000,000,000. On 5 August 2022,
the Board proposed to implement the Share Consolidation on the basis
that every twenty (20) issued and unissued existing shares of par value
of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company be consolidated
into one (1) Consolidated Share of par value of HK$0.2. The Share
Consolidation became effective on 16 September 2022 and as at the
date of this report, the total number of issued shares of the Company is
100,000,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$82,734,000.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Details of the Company’s dividend policy are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023
are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, certain Group’s bank borrowings
and banking facilities were secured through the undertakings given by
Mr. Raymond Chu, an executive director and Controlling Shareholder
of the Company, and Mr. Wilson Chu, a Controlling Shareholder of the
Company. The undertakings given by Mr. Raymond Chu and Mr. Wilson
Chu stipulate that for so long as these bank facilities are available to the
Company, Mr. Raymond Chu and Mr. Wilson Chu undertake to (i) notify
the bank before pledging their shares of the Company; if their shares are
pledged, a facility review of the Company will be triggered; and (ii) at all
times collectively maintain at least 51% of the beneficial shareholding
interest in the Company and collectively remain the single largest
shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, certain financial covenants in respect of bank
borrowings of an aggregate HK$240,116,000 from two banks were not
satisfied and might be immediately repayable should the relevant banks
exercise their right of demand. Subsequent to year-end date, the Group
has obtained waiver letters from the banks confirming that such non-
compliance of financial covenants would not trigger their immediate
demand for repayment of these loan balances.

Taking into consideration of the cash and cash equivalents amounting
to approximately HK$274,572,000, the financial position and operating
activities of the Group and the undrawn bank facilities available as at
31 December 2023, the Group considers that the non-compliance of
financial covenants under the bank facilities described above did not
have any material adverse impact to the Group.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the previous financial years is set out in the section headed “Five-Year
Financial Summary” in this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company did not enter into
any equity-linked agreements, save for the Share Option Scheme (as
defined in this annual report) of the Company as disclosed under the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this Report of the Directors.
As at 31 December 2023, no share option had been granted by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton
Mr. Lau Shui Fung (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Law Elizabeth (appointed on 1 June 2023)
Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (retired on 1 June 2023)
Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

Pursuant to Article 123 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Chu Man Yin
Arthur Newton and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting shall retire from office by rotation
at the 2024 AGM and be eligible for re-election at the 2024 AGM.

Mr. Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the 2024 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Raymond Chu, an Executive Director, has entered into a director
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date and the term has been renewed for
a further period of three years commencing from 10 January 2023 while
each of Mr. Arthur Chu and Mr. Lau Shui Fung, executive Directors, has
entered into director service agreement with the Company for terms
of three years commencing from 2 July 2021 and 1 December 2021
respectively (all are subject to termination in certain circumstances
as stipulated in the relevant director service agreement, including
termination by giving to the other party three months’ written notice or
payment in lieu of notice).
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Each of Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren, Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting and Ms. Law
Elizabeth, the independent non-executive Directors, has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company on 1 March 2023, 1 March
2023 and 1 June 2023 respectively, which did not specify the term of
appointment but their appointment may be terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM
has a service agreement or letter of appointment with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with “related parties” as
defined under applicable accounting standards during the financial
year ended 31 December 2023 which were disclosed in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. Save as the related parties transactions
involving purchase of goods from Defond Electrical Industries Limited
(Note 32(b)(i)) and payment of remuneration to certain key management
of the Group (including directors) (Note 32(c)), which constituted
continuing connected transactions fully exempt from the connected
transaction requirements under Rule 14A.76(1) or Rule 14A.95 of the
Listing Rules, no related parties transactions disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements constituted a connected transaction as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
and in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this annual report,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the
Group's businesses to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or
any of its holding companies was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2023.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

With effect from 1 January 2024, monthly remuneration of Mr. Raymond
Chu has been increased from HK$380,000 to HK$405,000, monthly
remuneration of Mr. Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton has been increased
from HK$100,000 to HK$125,000 and monthly remuneration of Mr. Lau
Shui Fung has been increased from HK$180,000 to HK$205,000.

With effect from 1 January 2024, monthly remuneration of Mr. Lee
Wa Lun Warren, Ms. Law Elizabeth and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting has been
increased from HK$30,000 to HK$33,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her duty or
supposed duty in his/her respective offices or trusts.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for the
Directors’ and officers” liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. As
at the date of this annual report, the permitted indemnity provision is
currently in force for the benefits of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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Name of Director
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Capacity/Nature of interest

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company and/or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

(1) Long position in the Shares

EERDERE
HBYB D
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

in the Company

ZBERHE
Number of
ordinary Shares

=EkE
Mr. Raymond Chu

Bz 12,000,0000% i {5 LASmart Union Global
Group Limited ([Smart Union |) &) %
&5 MSmart Uniond) 2 262 3 17 A%
MEREEREEZEHE 51,000,000
fi% B% 173 LA Smartview Investments Limited
([Smartview | ) #)& & Z 52 * M Smartview
HI50%E BITRMH AR ZELEES 1R
BESRBEGKRY AEEXEERA
FASmart Union & Smartview$s & #) 2 S0 %
DREA R
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SR EE S

Interest in controlled corporations

63,000,000 63.0%

(B3E)
(Note)

Note: 12,000,000 of the Shares are registered in the name of Smart Union
Global Group Limited (“Smart Union”), all the issued shares of which
are wholly-owned by Mr. Raymond Chu. 51,000,000 of the Shares are
registered in the name of Smartview Investments Limited (“Smartview”),
50% of the issued shares of which are owned by Mr. Raymond Chu.
Under the SFO, Mr. Raymond Chu is deemed to be interested in all the

Shares held by Smart Union and Smartview.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(2) Long position in the shares of associated corporations

A6 N Bt O [ AR A Y
BMOBE D
Approximate
percentage of

BB EE AR shareholding
Name of B EatE RHER interest in the
EEpE associated Capacity/Nature #3538 5l Number of associated
Name of Director corporation of interest Class of interest share(s) corporation
KEEBEE Smartview EmEA A Tim
Mr. Raymond Chu Smartview Beneficial owner  Ordinary 1 50.0%

B XA EE SN 72023F12 8318 @ #i
EERARANRETERAERARASKHE
ERAEEE (xR EHRPEEFIEXV
H)MBD - EERGOKEST BEREE
HRE GBI EXVEET RSN BB E AR
A REBRAMEMERIOAR (BREBER
H R EEEGI A BIGXHEEESEIEHESR K
I ERSORR) kA RENIRIEEF SR K
BB GBI ZE3521EAR R RIZAGFE NS MR
EAZAEST BB A AN A | K B A2 BT H A A

HEHR
EEREEROVER

BrARNF IR BITHEEE N AR A sk E ]
B a RN EE20235F12 8318 15 E @k
ME2HEAFE S EBEABBKER
A A) Bk ] H AR A B 88 A % (5 DA BRAS F 25
HY(Efa] 22 HE

FERRREMALTRAERFR
DREBERDPHEER AR

PMEETA R2023F12A31H A AL
(BEZRARBEZITHRABRIN REMD
R P A SRR IE B A R E IR
FI3EA AR EFENESLMBIBEZSF K
HE & F EXVERFE2 3D BB AR AN R A7) K& Bt
X BT F LA BE A95%8k LA _E AR S

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2023 was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in
the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2023, the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company)
had interests in 5% or more of the Shares and underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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ROWEFE

TERREE BB

Name of substantial Shareholder

Long position in the Shares

g4 RmHE

Capacity/Nature of interest

EARDFREN

BMOE DL

Approximate

ZERHE percentage of
Number of shareholding

ordinary Shares

in the Company

o

Smartview
Smartview

Smart Union
Smart Union

Grandview Group Holdings Limited
([ Grandview ] )
Grandview Group Holdings Limited
(“Grandview”)

REERE
Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson

BEELL

Ms. Tam Wai Yee Czarina

REL+
Ms. Ng Ching Annetta

G2

B m
Beneficial interest 51,000,000 51.0%
et iy
Beneficial interest 12,000,000 12.0%
g2 fo
Beneficial interest 12,000,000 12.0%
PR E E s
Interest in controlled corporations 63,000,000 63.0%
(BEET)
(Note 1)
B B A 2
Interest of spouse 63,000,000 63.0%
(KT&E2)
(Note 2)
Bi {8 4 2
Interest of spouse 63,000,000 63.0%
(HM$3E3)
(Note 3)

Notes:

(1) 12,000,0000% B% 15 LA GrandviewF) & & & & - &
2R AHABEEENIRABEBELERE
# A ° 51,000,0008% B% 5 LA Smartview ) % & &
i H50%MAmABEELALEBE-BEESFR
BB &G - KRB 5 4 W AR 1E % B Grandview &

Smartview FTH5 2 Z0 AL 1 8 7 25 ©

2 BEEXIA/RBBEENLE -REZFRB
BEp BEERIREERRBELRERES
EAEEDRNERSE RO EEES -

B) REZITAREBEAENEB-REZFRAE
Pl RELZTHERERREELEEREPER
EREMBERSE RO hEEES-

(1)

3 O WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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12,000,000 of the Shares are registered in the name of Grandview, the entire
share capital of which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson (the
younger brother of Mr. Raymond Chu). 51,000,000 of the Shares are registered in
the name of Smartview, 50% of the share capital of which is owned by Mr. Chu
Wai Cheong Wilson. Under the SFO, Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson is deemed to

be interested in all the Shares held by Grandview and Smartview.

Ms. Tam Wai Yee Czarina is the spouse of Mr. Raymond Chu. Ms. Tam Wai Yee
Czarina is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr.
Raymond Chu is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Ms. Ng Ching Annetta is the spouse of Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson. Ms. Ng
Ching Annetta is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which
Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson is interested by virtue of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person (other
than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had interests
in 5% or more of the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO or which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolutions of the then Shareholders
passed on 10 December 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). No share option
has been granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme since
the Adoption Date and up to the date of this report.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

(@) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognise and
acknowledge the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b)
below) who have contributed and will contribute to the Group.
The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view
to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimize their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth
of the Group.

(b) Participants
The “Eligible Participants” are:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(ii) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries;

(iif) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

BEEFIZERER AR
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(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of our Board, will
contribute or have contributed to the Group, the assessment
criteria of which are:

e contribution to the development and performance of the
Group;

e quality of work performed for the Group;

e initiative and commitment in performing his/her duties; and

e length of service or contribution to the Group.

(c) Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of all the Shares in issue as at the Listing Date,
being 200,000,000 Shares, and this number has been adjusted
to 10,000,000 Shares (the “Limit”) (representing 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report)
following the Share Consolidation. The Board may renew the Limit
subject to approval of the Shareholders and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme but
the Limit must not exceed 30% of the issued Shares from time to
time.

(d) Maximum number of options to any one individual

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options and Shares which were the
subject of options which have been granted and accepted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company but subsequently canceled) under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue as of the date of grant. Any further grant of options
in excess of this 1% of the issued shares of the Company should be
subject to approval of the Shareholders and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme.
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Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of ten years from that date. The Board may at its absolute discretion
determine any minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which
must be achieved before the option can be exercised, except that
no option may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and the
payment period

To accept the grant of an option, HK$1.0 as consideration for the
grant of an option must be paid by the grantee to the Company
on or before the relevant acceptance date, as defined in the Share
Option Scheme, which is a date not later than 30 days after the date
of grant.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price determined by the Board in
its absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than the
highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing
in securities (“Business Day”);

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five Business
Days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iti) the nominal value of a Share.

(h) Life of the Share Option Scheme

(i)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing from 10 January 2020 up to and including 9
January 2030.

The number of options available for grant

As at 1 January 2022, the number of options available for grant
under the scheme mandate of the Share Option Scheme was
200,000,000. Given that no option was granted during the year
ended 31 December 2022 and following the Share Consolidation
which has become effective from 16 September 2022, the number of
options available for grant under the scheme mandate of the Share
Option Scheme has been adjusted to 10,000,000 as at 31 December
2022.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023 and as at 31 December 2023
and up to the date of this annual report, no share options had been
granted or agreed to be granted under the Share Option Scheme. As a
result, the total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme as of the date of this annual report was 10,000,000
Shares, representing 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as of the
date of this annual report.

With effect from 1 January 2023, Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules has
been amended. As provided under the transitional arrangements under
the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, the Company would
continue to make grants to participants eligible under the existing Share
Option Scheme until refreshment or expiry of the existing scheme
mandate, upon which the Company will be required to amend the terms
of the scheme to comply with the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules and seek shareholders’ approval for a new scheme mandate.

As at 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has not adopted any share schemes (as defined under Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules) other than the Share Option Scheme.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, no controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries has any material contract (including
material contract for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries) with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year ended 31 December
2023 attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as
follows:

Sales

— the largest customer: 15.6% of the Group’s total sales

- five largest customers combined: 48.7% of the Group’s total sales
Purchases

— the largest supplier: 10.7% of the Group’s total purchases

— five largest suppliers combined: 32.6% of the Group's total
purchases

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder (who to
the best knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number
of issued shares of the Company) had an interest in the above major
customers and suppliers.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



EXEHREE

Report of the Directors

RIRERIETE

AEBHRABNFEFBENEAE W BER
=M EE8() ©

EEREFREBRHNERS

ARPEEREESNHER N ERAKAEE
MEBIN BEEETNERNFERBEERX
BMEERGFAAEBREFNETTRE
Efa4Eas o

MR2023F12A31H FEEFFRAN BMEES
WHRARERSK IS EANEBEETEN
MEBNEFNESTES TED ES
ERARRARA L/ RAEBNFZmMEZR
EEEENEBRIN -

HEERBRREHNEY

BHE2023F12A31B L FE - BRAFRIEA
MBI ERRAERS | —SMAREE
S AR B B E AT fa] B B X A S B B 4% i AR
R HEMKBARGIZEREH

EEER

ARACEEAEROEERARER L
EEAREE] -

BERREGENFEXRE

AAREZEECBIE=RBYINITES
MBEEER LT (BRZESERE) TEMBIT
ERAERELE - BZEZESERHBAE
B & =2023F12A318 L FE MRS TR
%o

ARERE

RIBARFASOHRRER REFHRM
P03 R FEHELREEAFHRAH K
RRI-HARRENARKRE -

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 8(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The Company has received confirmation letters from the Directors
confirming that other than the business of the Group, none of the
Directors holds any interest in business which directly or indirectly
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors, none
of the Directors was considered to have any interests in businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, other than those businesses where the Directors
were appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company
and/or the Group.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements and
in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this annual report,
no contract of significance has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS BY AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Law Elizabeth (chairperson of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float for the period during FY2023 and up to the date of
this annual report.
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AUDITOR

The Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since 10 January
2020 and there has been no change in auditor since then. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers whose term of office will
expire upon the conclusion of the 2024 AGM. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the 2024 AGM.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our
management and staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group
throughout the year.

By Order of the Board

Chu Wai Hang Raymond
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to ensuring that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with high ethical standards. This reflects its belief that, in
the achievement of its long-term objectives, it is imperative to act with
probity, transparency and accountability. By so acting, the Company
believes that shareholder wealth will be maximised in the long term
and that its employees, those with whom it does business and the
communities in which it operates will all benefit.

Corporate governance is the process by which the Board instructs
management of the Group to conduct its affairs with a view to ensuring
that its objectives are met. The Board is committed to maintaining and
developing robust corporate governance practices that are intended to
ensure:

satisfactory and sustainable returns to the Shareholders;

— that the interests of those who deal with the Company are
safeguarded;

— that overall business risk is understood and managed appropriately;

— the delivery of high-quality products and services to the satisfaction
of customers; and

that high standards of ethics are maintained.

The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business
strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.
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The Company has in place a corporate governance framework and
has adopted a set of policies and procedures based on the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules. Such policies and procedures provide the infrastructure
for enhancing the Board’s ability to implement governance and exercise
proper oversight on business conduct and affairs of the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended 31 December
2023, the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set
out in the CG Code except as disclosed in this Corporate Governance
Report.

The Company has also put in place certain recommended best practices
as set out in the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the period during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model Code for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company. No incident of
non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes
responsibility for its leadership and control and takes collective
responsibility for promoting the Company’s success by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs. Directors make decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business
and regularly reviews the contribution required from a Director to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and whether the Director
is spending sufficient time performing them that are commensurate with
their role and the Board’s responsibilities. The Board includes a balanced
composition of executive Directors and non-executive Directors so
that there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.
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Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton
Mr. Lau Shui Fung (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Law Elizabeth (appointed on 1 June 2023)
Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (retired on 1 June 2023)
Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

The biographical information of the Directors and the relationships
between the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 12 to 18 of this annual report.

Board Meetings and Directors” Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board held six meetings.
A summary of the attendance records of the Directors at the Board
meetings held during the year is set out below:

EENR HEBR
Name of Directors Attendance
KEEXEE Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond 6/6
KNELE Mr. Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton 6/6
BTkt Mr. Lau Shui Fung 6/6
RN+ (MEET) Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (Note 1) 2/2
TEGILAE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 6/6
RIERE R E Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 6/6
BEEZ+ (HM7E2) Ms. Law Elizabeth (Note 2) 4/4
s % Notes:

EZODRZEE B2023F6 A1 HEETBE L IERNTT
=

—

2. BEFLITEHE2023F6A1BREZTAEELIE
WITES-

REBME=S & BHE2023F12A31H
LEE FTETREMEZTETREENBER
THEBYIFATEFHRTT —RE&E-

1. Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum has retired as independent non-executive Director with
effect from 1 June 2023.

2. Ms. Law Elizabeth has been appointed as independent non-executive Director
with effect from 1 June 2023.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held one meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company has deviated from this code
provision as Mr. Raymond Chu has acted as both the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 30 September 2021.

Considering that Mr. Raymond Chu is the founder of the Group
possessing the expertise and extensive experience in the EMS
industry conducive to the Company’s development, coupled with his
responsibility in major decision-making concerning the Group’s daily
management and business, the Board believes that the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer being assumed solely by Mr. Raymond Chu
can provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow
for effective development of long-term business strategies and efficient
execution of business decisions and plans.

The Board also believes that the balance of authority is adequately
ensured as the Board currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors who offer different independent perspectives. At the
same time, all major decisions of the Company are made in consultation
with members of the Board as well as the senior management. Therefore,
the Board is of the view that the current organizational structure of
the Company is in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole, and
there is adequate balance of power and safeguards in place. The Board
will nevertheless review the organizational structure of the Company
and composition of the Board from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances in order to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-
third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years. The Company’s Articles of Association also provides that
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the first annual
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and shall then
be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Mr. Raymond Chu, executive Director, has entered into a director service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date and the term has been renewed for a further period
of three years commencing from 10 January 2023. Each of Mr. Arthur
Chu and Mr. Lau Shui Fung, executive Directors, has entered into a
director service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 2 July 2021 and 1 December 2021 respectively. Either
party may at any time terminate the director service agreement by giving
to the other party three months’ written notice or payment in lieu of
notice.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. Law Elizabeth has been
appointed as independent non-executive Director. Ms. Law Elizabeth
has obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules on 1 June 2023 and she has confirmed that she understood her
obligations as a Director.

Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting, the independent non-
executive Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.
Each of Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren, Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting and Ms. Law
Elizabeth, the independent non-executive Directors, has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company on 1 March 2023, 1 March
2023 and 1 June 2023 respectively, which did not specify the term of
appointment but their appointment may be terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.
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Board Independence Evaluation

The Company currently has in place the following mechanisms to ensure
that independent views and input are available to the Board:

(@) the Company receives confirmations from all independent non-
executive Directors for their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules;

(b) the Company has an annual evaluation on board independence
through the Directors’ participations in and discussion of the
Company’s business during the year in which independent non-
executive Directors demonstrated their ability to continue to bring
in independent judgements to the Board and respective Board
Committees;

(c) under the terms of reference of all Board committees, it is clearly
stated each Board committee is authorised to obtain external
independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise where necessary to
assist the Directors’ performance of their duties; and

(d) the Directors are aware of any potential conflicts of interest that may
arise on their part in relation to the Company’s businesses. In case
of such conflict of interest arises, the Director concerned would
declare his/her interest to the Board, and abstain from voting on the
issues or matters to be resolved.

The Company has also established its Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism which sets out the processes and procedures to ensure
a strong independent element on the Board, as well as allowing the
Board to effectively exercise independent judgment to better safeguard
Shareholders” interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness,
maximize strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement
or further development. The evaluation process also clarifies what
actions of the Company need to be taken to maintain and improve the
Board performance, for instance, addressing individual training and
development needs of each Director.

Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, the Board
will conduct annual review on its independence. A board independence
evaluation report will be presented to the Board which will collectively
discuss the results and the action plan for improvement, if appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors has completed
the independence evaluation in the form of a questionnaire individually
and supplemented by individual interviews. The board independence
evaluation reports were presented to the Board and the evaluation results
were satisfactory.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism and believed that it was adequate and effective to ensure
independent views and inputs were available to the Board for them to
perform their duties.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All' Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. The independent non-executive Directors are responsible
for ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company
and providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent
judgement on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses, for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them.

The principal functions of the Board are to supervise the Group's
business and affairs; to review the Group’s financial performance; to
review the Group’s systems of risk management and internal control; to
approve the strategic plans; and to appoint Directors of the Company.

Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on appointment and any necessary briefing
and professional development to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the operations and business of the Group, and is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities under statutes and common law, the
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the Group’s
business and governance policies.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company organised
training sessions conducted by legal advisers for all Directors. The
training sessions covered a wide range of relevant topics including
directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and
regulatory updates. In addition, relevant reading materials including
compliance manual, legal and regulatory updates and seminar handouts
have been provided to the Directors for their reference and studying.
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The training records of the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2023 have been provided to the Company and are summarized as

follows:

E=E 3 5| 28 I M

Directors Type of Training Notes

HTES Executive Directors

KEBEEE Mr. Raymond Chu AXB
A and B

KXERE Mr. Arthur Chu AKB
A and B

ZtgxE Mr. Lau Shui Fung AKB
A and B

BYKHITES Independent non-executive Directors

BRI T (K5 Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (Note 1) AKB
A and B

FEMBELE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren ANB
A and B

RIERE R E Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting AKB
A and B

BB ELZT (MEE2) Ms. Law Elizabeth (Note 2) AKB
A and B

P& Notes:
AR Types of training

1. ZBZOLRZLEEB2023F6A1HEBETBLIERNTT
EHe

2. BEFLITEH2023F6A1BRERTEBEILIE
WMITES

A Z2INEIIRE BREETRAGR e 2=
& g

B: BIEARRIFTEEM WA BT S RABETY

EEZEg

ExecRY=-AZ8e NELZES ¥
MEZEeRREZEE UEEARAER
MEETE AABMEEEEZE TS
EHBESE BMATSANBEREE-
EXZEeNBBRECRNAR R RBRA
Wuk e P ERRER T IAER -

1.  Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum has retired as independent non-executive Director with

effect from 1 June 2023.

2. Ms. Law Elizabeth has been appointed as independent non-executive Director

with effect from 1 June 2023.

A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars,

conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant

publications

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit

Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination

Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available

to Shareholders upon request.
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The list of the chairperson and members of each Board committee is
set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Law Elizabeth, Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren and
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting. Ms. Law Elizabeth is the chairperson of the
Audit Committee. At least one of the committee members possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information
and reporting process, risk management and internal control systems,
effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope of audit, relationship
with the external auditor, and arrangements to enable the employees
of the Company and those who have dealings with the Company to
raise concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties (including
financial reporting and internal control) in the Company.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2023 to review annual financial results and report in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2022, interim financial results and
report in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2023, significant
issues on the financial reporting, operational and compliance controls,
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
and internal audit function, re-appointment of external auditor, audit
planning, engagement of non-audit services, continuing connected
transactions and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are as

follows:
EREZEEHREHR HERR
Name of Members of the Audit Committee Attendance
ERL R+ (M) Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (Note 1) 1/1
TEGIE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 3/3
RITESIZ oA Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 3/3
AT (MI5E2) Ms. Law Elizabeth (Note 2) 2/2
P eE Notes:

1. ERLZTEB2023F6A1HRREBIERNTT
é%

2. BEFXLIEHE2023F6A1BREZTEBELIE
BITES-
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1. Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum has retired as independent non-executive Director with
effect from 1 June 2023.

2. Ms. Law Elizabeth has been appointed as independent non-executive Director
with effect from 1 June 2023.
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Remuneration band

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting, Ms. Law Elizabeth and Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren,
independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Raymond Chu, executive
Director. Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management, reviewing
and/or approving matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules, establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held two meeting during the year ended
31 December 2023 to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration proposals of the executive Directors, independent
non-executive Directors and senior management and the remuneration
policy and structure of all Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee also made recommendations to the Borad
on the terms of letters of appointment of the new independent non-
executive Director appointed during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration of the senior
management by band is set out below:

AE

Number of persons

1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,0007%8 7T
1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,000/8 7T

HE2023F12A31HILFESBE SR
FIBEN AR A SRR MIFE33 ©

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 3

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

FHEEEREHSR HERER
Name of Members of the Remuneration Committee Attendance
RN+ (M) Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (Note 1) 2/2
TEGgE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 2/2
RITESIZ LA Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 2/2
REELRE Mr. Raymond Chu 2/2
#EFL (KFE2) Ms. Law Elizabeth (Note 2) 0/0
P& Notes:

1. BEALZETEBH2023F6A1HRREBIERNTT
=

2. BEFLITEA2023F6A1BREZTEBELIE
BITES-

REZES
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EETEREL BEEXXLIRARRES
EURATEERZELEE -FTERELER
REZEEXIRE-
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1. Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum has retired as independent non-executive Director with
effect from 1 June 2023.

2. Ms. Law Elizabeth has been appointed as independent non-executive Director
with effect from 1 June 2023.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Lee
Wa Lun Warren, Ms. Law Elizabeth and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting, independent
non-executive Directors, and Mr. Raymond Chu, executive Director. Mr.
Lee Wa Lun Warren is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal
duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, the Board Diversity Policy and
Nomination Policy of the Company, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria
as set out in the Company’s Nomination Policy that are necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendations to the Board.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity
Policy of the Company and to consider and recommend to the Board on
the Directors standing for re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained and has not set any
measurable objective implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee
are as follows:

EEEEERENA HEER
Name of Members of the Nomination Committee Attendance
RNt (M) Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (Note 1) 2/2
FEMGEE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 2/2
RITESIZ oA Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 2/2
KEEEE Mr. Raymond Chu 2/2
EEELL (HiFE2) Ms. Law Elizabeth (Note 2) 0/0
I Notes:

1. EBLLZLEE H2023F6 A1 8 EEBLIENIT
=

2. BEFLITEH2023F6A1BREZTEBEILIE
BirES-

ESESTLBE

ARAERMREZTELTILBR EFHEHA
EHEFEEZ N E-ARARARMBE
EZTNESEHRAERARENES
Y TERANEZTEZ TR FRBIHR
ARBAERERBEBRAKEERNEER
==

ERFEFGEARK ARRECKZETE
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ZEEER ARABERSZEZ TILAE
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1. Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum has retired as independent non-executive Director with
effect from 1 June 2023.

2. Ms. Law Elizabeth has been appointed as independent non-executive Director
with effect from 1 June 2023.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to talent,
skills, professional experience, independence and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates for appointment as Directors will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to talent, skills,
professional experience, independence and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. At present, the Nomination Committee
considered that the Board is sufficiently diverse.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition can be by the
following main diversity perspective:

E=AH

Number of Directors

=]
z

[==]
Zp)

B %5
1 B

FiR

A1Z=505%
51E605%
61E705%
71ZE805%

PR 7 & PR
[E=0ke=
EBE
3E4F
4T 54

(-3 E2(4
ARRNERAEEEBENMERS TR

ABEAH AEEET (BREFS LR
EIEE) R HIEMN TR

Gender
Female 1
Male 5

Ethnicity
Chinese 6

Age

41-50
51-60
61-70
71-80

_ W =

Length of Service
1-2 years
2-3 years
3-4 years
4-5 years

w O O W

Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group. The
following table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of the Group,
including the Board and senior management as at the date of this report:

B % (A)
Unit: % (person)

e £
Hhl Category Female Male
E¥g Board 16.7% (1) 83.3% (5)
SREEE Senior Management 33.3% (1) 66.7% (2)
Hit g8 Other employees 50.9% (795) 49.1% (766)
BEET Overall workforce 50.8% (797) 49.2% (773)
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The Board had targeted to achieve and had achieved at least one female
Director, one female senior management and at least 40% of female
employees of the Group and considers that the above current gender
diversity is satisfactory.

The Nomination Committee will continue to identify suitable
female candidate(s) to develop a pipeline of potential successors for
appointment to the Board on merit against objective criteria in order to
maintain gender diversity in the Board.

Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the
selection criteria and process in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of
expertise, skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability of
a proposed candidate, including but not limited to the following:

e Skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the operations of the
Company;

e Commitment in respect of available time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company;

e Various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy of the Company
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience;

¢ Independence of the proposed independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

e Company’s business model and specific needs.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection and
appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee
recommended to the Board the appointment of a new independent
non-executive Director, namely Ms. Law Elizabeth. The appointment
was subject to a stringent nomination process in accordance with the
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy, to ensure the Board
possesses the necessary skills, experience and knowledge in alignment
with the Company’s strategy.
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The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee
will also review at least annually the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and diversity of
the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provisions of the CG Code contained in Appendix CT to the Listing Rules.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report. A manual setting
out various corporate governance policies and procedures has been
adopted by the Company, which applies to assist the Board and the top
management to better perform their corporate governance duties to the
Group and delegate the responsibilities to the Board committees.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and
overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk

management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including sales and
receivables, procurements and payments, financial reporting, human
resources and information technology.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Company’s risk management and internal control systems include
a defined management structure with limits of authority. Appropriate
policies and control procedures have been designed, implemented
and reviewed to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal; established system, relevant rules and regulations are
adhered to and complied with; reliable financial and accounting records
are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements; and key risks that may impact the
Company’s performance are appropriately identified and managed. Such
procedures are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The management, in coordination with department heads, assesses the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the
risk management progress, and reports to the Audit Committee and the
Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the systems. Any significant
internal audit issues identified and associated remedial actions are
followed up for proper implementation, and the progress is reported to
the Audit Committee periodically.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

During the year under review, the Company engaged its external
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, to conduct an internal control
review on certain operational processes of the Group. A report
on the result of assessment and recommendations was provided
by PricewaterhouseCoopers to the Audit Committee. The Group
will take measures to implement the recommendations made by
PricewaterhouseCoopers on the internal control system.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the year ended 31 December
2023, and considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The
annual review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit
function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.
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The Company has adopted a Whistle-blowing Policy to facilitate
employees of the Group and those who deal with the Group to raise,
in confidence, concerns with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in the practices and procedures, including financial
reporting, internal control and other matters, in their workplace.
It enables employees to report matters that may constitute (i) non-
compliance to laws or regulations; (ii) malpractice, impropriety or fraud
relating to internal controls, accounting, auditing and financial matters;
(iii) endangerment of the health and safety of an individual; (iv) damage
caused to the environment; (v) improper conduct or unethical behaviour
likely to prejudice the standing of the Company; and (vi) deliberate
concealment of any of the above.

The Company has developed its Inside Information Policy which provides
a general guide to the Directors, officers and relevant employees of the
Group in handling confidential information, monitoring information
disclosure and responding to enquiries. The Inside Information Policy
ensures that potentially price sensitive or inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the Board
to decide the need for timely disclosure in order to ensure compliance
with Part XIVA of the SFO.

The Company has in place the Anti-corruption Policy to safeguard
against corruption and bribery within the Company. The Company has
an internal reporting channel that is open and available for employees of
the Company and stakeholders to report any suspected corruption and
bribery.

The Company has also adopted a Code of Business Conduct Policy to
ensure that the Group conducts its business activities and transactions
with honesty and integrity, and in accordance with moral, ethical
and legal standards of the countries in which the Group conducts its
business. This policy applies to the Company’s business worldwide and
to all employees of the Group (unless the subsidiary(ies) of the Company
has(have) its(their) own code of business conduct) and covers the
following aspects:

e Obligations towards the Group

e Personal conduct

e Employment practices

e Relations with customers

e Relations with suppliers and contractors

e Responsibilities to shareholders

e Responsibilities to the community

e Monitoring of compliance and means of enforcement

e Compliance with laws, rules and regulations

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of the controlling Shareholders, namely Smartview, Smart Union,
Grandview, Mr. Raymond Chu and Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson, has
entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Company on 20
December 2019 (the “Deed”), details of which have been set out in the
Prospectus.

The Company has received written declaration from each controlling
Shareholder in respect of his/its and/or his/its close associates’
compliance with the terms of the Deed during the year ended 31
December 2023. The independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed the compliance with the Deed and enforcement of the terms
of the Deed by the controlling Shareholders and confirmed that the
controlling Shareholders have not been in breach of the Deed during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 97 to 103 of this
annual report.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.
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Service Category

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services and non-
audit services for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:

B ENER
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2,400,0007%5 7T
HK$2,400,000

Audit services

Non-audit services

— Tax compliance and advisory services 455,000/ 7T
HK$455,000

— Other advisory services—environmental, 350,000/ 7T
social and governance HK$350,000

3,205,000/ 7T
HK$3,205,000
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Sau Ling of Tricor Services Limited, external service provider,
has been appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company with
effect from 31 October 2021.

Ms. Chan Sau Ling has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The primary contact person of Ms. Chan Sau Ling at the Company is
Mr. Lau Shui Fung, executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various
communication channels.

To safeguard Shareholders” interests and rights, separate resolution should
be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Director. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of
the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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A summary of the attendance records of the Directors at the general
meetings of the Company held during the year is set out below.

HEER

Attendance

BRRBFAE

Annual General

EEpE Name of Directors Meeting

KREERE Mr. Raymond Chu 1/1

RAXERE Mr. Arthur Chu 1/1

2l TigkAE Mr. Lau Shui Fung 11

RO T (R2023F6 A1 HRE) Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (retired on 1 June 2023) 0/0

FEREE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 11

AITESE A Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 1/1

BEZELLT (R2023F6H1HEZ(F) Ms. Law Elizabeth (appointed on 1 June 2023) 0/0
BRI ARE Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
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Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the requisition of
one or more Shareholders (including a clearing house (or its nominee(s)))
holding, as at the date of deposit of the requisition, in aggregate not less
than one-tenth of the total voting rights (on a one vote per Share basis)
in the share capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
any one or more Shareholder(s) (including a clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition in
aggregate not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights (on a one
vote per Share basis) in the share capital of the Company can make a
requisition to add resolutions to the agenda of a meeting.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For enquiries about shareholdings, Shareholders shall direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited and the contact details are
set out as follows:

Address: 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Telephone:  (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

For enquiries about corporate governance or other matters to be brought
to the attention of the Board, Shareholders shall send their written
enquiries to the Company either via mail to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong or via email. The mail address and email
address are set out in the subsection headed “Contact Details” below.

Contact Details

Shareholders can send their requisitions, proposals and enquiries as
mentioned above to the Company as follows:

Address: Units 3203-3207, Tower 1, Enterprise Square Five,
38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2505 1283

Email: ir@wiseally.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.

Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company will normally not deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other general
meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) will be available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.wiseally.com.hk where up-to-date information and updates on
the Company’s financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are posted.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has not made
any changes to its Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-
date version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association
is available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Shareholder Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholder Communication Policy. The
policy sets out the standards and practice in relation to communicating
with Shareholders and prospective investors. The Company is committed
to maintaining effective and timely dissemination of the Company’s
information to Shareholders and the market. The Company believes
that providing regular communications to Shareholders and the market
is important to ensure they have the available information reasonably
required to make informed assessments of the Company’s strategy,
operations and financial performance.
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The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining an
on-going dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

Shareholders’ meetings

The annual general meetings and other general meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with
Shareholders and for shareholder participation. The Company encourages
and supports shareholder participation in general meetings. Shareholders
are encouraged to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and
on their behalf if they are unable to attend such meetings. Mechanisms
for enabling shareholder participation will be reviewed on a regular
basis by the Board to encourage the highest level of participation. The
Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the Board committees
and the external auditor of the Company will attend the annual general
meetings to answer questions from the Shareholders.

Company’s website

The Company’s website (www.wiseally.com.hk) contains information
about the Company including shareholder communications. The
Company will place on its website the Company’s announcements,
circulars, notices of general meetings and other information in
compliance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s share registrar. Shareholders and the public may at any
time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available. Shareholders may direct their queries to
the Company’s company secretary. The Company will respond promptly
to Shareholders’ queries and concerns.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders” Communication Policy and the results were satisfactory.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a
financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject
to the Shareholders” approval. The Board do not recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OVERVIEW OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (THE “ESG REPORT”)

Wise Ally International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and its

"noou

subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”, “we” or “us”) is dedicated to
sustainability as it is fundamental to our long-term business success. We
are pleased to present our Environmental, Social and Governance Report

(“this Report”).

In this Report, the Group summarises its Environmental, Social and
Governance strategy, practices, and vision, conveying a clear message
about the impact it has on the environment, social, and governance
(“ESG”) issues. Additionally, it provides pertinent updates on major ESG
issues identified during the reporting period. For the Group’s corporate
governance practices, please refer to the section “Corporate Governance
Report” of this Annual Report. Overall, the reporting boundary remains
the same as last year.

Reporting Period and Scope

The scope of this Report covers all principal subsidiaries, which include
the businesses and offices in Hong Kong and Dongguan production plant
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

This Report covers the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023 (the “reporting period” or “the Year”). There was no change to the
reporting scope compared to the previous reporting period.

Reporting Standard

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the “mandatory
disclosure requirements” and adheres to the “comply or explain”
provisions set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) under Appendix C2 of the Main Board
Listing Rules issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“HKEX").
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Materiality

Reporting Principles

This report has followed the Reporting Principles as set out in the HKEx
ESG Reporting Guide to define the report content and to ensure the
quality of information presented, including:

Stakeholder engagement and materiality review is conducted to assure that the ESG issues

identified remain relevant and material to our business operations and stakeholders.
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ESG initiatives.
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Balance

Quantitative metrics are collected and monitored regularly in order to track the progress of our
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To provide an unbiased picture of our ESG performance, this report highlights both the

accomplishments and improvement areas of our ESG management.
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For meaningful comparison of our ESG performance, we adopt consistent methodologies.

Remarks are provided in case of any change in data compilation methodologies and scope.
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In preparing the ESG Report, the Group has adopted the international
standards and emission factors specified in the respective guidance
materials on the ESG Guide for computing the relevant Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs”)'. There is no change from the previous year in the way
the ESG Report has been prepared.

Source of Data and Reliability Statement

The information disclosed in the ESG Report is extracted from the
Group’s internal documents, statistical reports and relevant public
materials. The Group undertakes that the ESG Report does not contain
any false information, misleading statement or material omission, and
takes responsibilities for the contents hereof as to the authenticity,
accuracy and completeness.

! How to prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs, https://www.hkex.com.hk/-media/hkex-market/listing/rules-
and-guidance/other-resources/environmental-social-and-governance/how-to-

prepare-an-esg-report/app2_kpis.
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Confirmation and approval

The ESG Report was approved by the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) on 26 March 2024 upon confirmation by the management
of the Company. The ESG Report is prepared in both Chinese and
English. In case of any discrepancy between the Chinese and English
versions of the ESG Report, the English version shall prevail.

Contact

We welcome feedback on our report, reporting content and sustainability
performance, please contact us at ir@wiseally.com.hk.

ESG GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

The Group ensures that the appropriate structure and processes are in
place to foster an atmosphere of trust, transparency, and accountability,
as well as safeguard the interests of stakeholders. The foundational goal
of effective governance is protecting the interests of all stakeholders, both
internal and external, including the community we serve.

Board Statement

The Board understands the value of implementing sustainable practices
and actively integrates ESG systems into important business decisions.
As the highest level of authority, the Board oversees the Group’s ESG
risks and opportunities, develops and implements ESG strategies and
objectives, assesses progress toward these goals, and reviews ESG
strategies in the case of significant delays in attaining them.

The Board evaluates and determines the risk (including ESG-related risks)
relevant to the Group on a regular basis, monitoring internal control
systems and ensuring effective risk management. The Board holds regular
board meetings to discuss the effectiveness of these systems and progress
towards relevant ESG goals. The Board will continue to review and
monitor the Group’s environmental performance to ensure it aligns with
our environmental targets. Our operations will be environmentally and
socially responsible while generating strong shareholder returns.

The Board performs regular reviews and assessments to identify risks,
including ESG-related risks that are relevant to the Group and monitors
internal control mechanisms to ensure effective risk management.
The Board holds regular board meetings to review the effectiveness
of these mechanisms and to monitor progress towards the relevant
ESG targets. Continuous assessments and monitoring of the Group's
environmental performance are also carried out to ensure that we meet
our environmental objectives. Our businesses will constantly prioritise
environmental and social responsibility while providing strong returns to
shareholders.
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ESG Governance Structure

An ESG Working Group has been established, with members including
middle management to senior management. To assist the Board in
executing ESG strategy and goals, the ESG Working Group performed
materiality assessments on ESG concerns and gathered ESG data from
several functional departments. If any significant issues are identified, the
ESG Working Group will immediately report them to the Board.

The ESG Working Group is responsible for assessing the implementation
of measures related to identified ESG concerns. It also evaluates any
deviations from the Group’s ESG objectives and targets, collaborating
with the appropriate functional departments to address such differences.
Every year, regular meetings are held to examine the success of ESG
measures that have been implemented. By conducting industry research
and adhering to regulatory requirements, we can appropriately identify
emerging difficulties.
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Governance Structure

ESG is formulated, administered, and assessed by the Board, which is responsible for overall
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ESG Working Group assists Board members in managing and monitoring ESG matters daily.

This working group consists of senior representatives from various departments whose goal is

to facilitate better coordination in addressing ESG issues.
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Implementing measures to achieve the set strategies and targets and monitoring and evaluating

their effectiveness is the responsibility of the functional departments, including Operations,
Supply Base Management, and Client Base Management.
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Recognising our role as a responsible corporate citizen, the Group places
great importance on implementing a strong ESG process that contributes
to sustainable economic growth and development. We are committed to
minimising our environmental impact as a participant in the Electronic
Manufacturing Services (“EMS”) industry.

Climate-related issues have been carefully considered and integrated into
our risk management system to enhance the Group’s ability to withstand
and adapt to the potential impacts of climate change. We conduct data
analysis and stakeholder engagement to identify climate-related risks that
may impact our financial and operational performance.

We also thoroughly evaluate risks that have the potential to significantly
affect our business operations in our annual enterprise risk assessment.
Currently, we are implementing appropriate mitigation strategies to
mitigate the potential climate-related risks and are exploring possibilities
to enhance long-term sustainability and resilience. We will continue to
monitor the performance of our risk mitigation strategies and controls to
ensure that they align with our enterprise risk management framework.

As part of the Board’s commitment to provide greater social and
environmental contributions, we will continue to evaluate the Group’s
progress regarding ESG issues.
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MEERRE HEREAEE:

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

Throughout our operations, the Group remains attentive to the significant
concerns expressed by both internal and external stakeholders.
We actively engage with stakeholders through transparent and
comprehensive communication, continuously enhancing our sustainable
development strategies and plans based on their valuable feedback.
By addressing the expectations and needs of stakeholders, we aim to
foster mutual trust, cultivate cooperative relationships, and pave the way
for a future marked by sustainable economic growth, environmental
responsibility, and social inclusivity in the workplace.

The table provided below summaries the communication and
engagement channels employed by the Group to connect with
stakeholders. It also outlines the primary ESG concerns raised by
stakeholders:

BiE BRR HERELRHEIER ZHRE
Stakeholders Areas of ESG Concerns Engagement Channels
BT & B E Esr EmARA FEEERF:
s EREEEARER: ZAN/NI Y S /N
s EEAM: G
o HOEMBL: M IR R &
o REREENNE
Government and e Compliance with the Listing Rules; Annual reviewal process
regulatory authorities e Disclosure of information and Company’s website and announcements;
submission of materials; Meetings; and
e  Operational compliance; Trainings and seminars
e Tax payment as legally required; and
e Timely and accurate announcements
KREE o EBWEENMRIR: BRAE :
s BREXEAR: MBEmERDE R
o BEAF: Rk ZA/NSIE b
o KREMH
Investors e Business strategies and performances; General meetings;
e Effective corporate governance; Financial reports and announcements; and
e Sustainable profitability; and Company’s website
* Investment returns
BERDR s EFENE: N
o RERE: R ZA/NIF SN
o B AREA MERhE
Media & Public e Corporate Governance; Announcements;

e Environmental protection; and
e Uphold human rights standards

Company’s website; and
Press conference
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FHE
Stakeholders

RE HERERBIEM
Areas of ESG Concerns

SHERE

Engagement Channels

HER o IR EHE: o EMEE:
o FTREEM: s EE K
o HEAM R o EBEmEmhEH#
s BEMRBHEER
Suppliers e Payment schedule; e Site visits;
e Demand stability; *  Meetings; and
e Operational Compliance; and e Conference calls and interviews
e Quality services and products
'F s EBEMRBHEEM: s WE:
s EmRE: s B
s BEFEE: e EBEEH R
o MBMERERE: M o EPARIEHS
o ZEAM
Customers e Quality services and products; e Visits;
e Product safety; *  Meetings;
e Commercial credibility; e Conference calls; and
e Intellectual property rights and e Customers’ enquiries handling
protection; and mechanism
e Operational compliance
== o [EERNREF: s EHEFE:
o HIIRER: o EEHEI:
o IERBRMBELZEZ R s FEZE:
o FEHEHE e BRMK
e WhatsApp & 115 &t
Employees ¢ Rights and benefits of employees; e Regular meetings;
e Training and development; e Employee training;
e Work environment and occupational e Annual Appraisal;
safety; and e Opinion box; and
e Equal opportunities e WhatsApp and WeChat group
ol s MEEE: o HERER:
o HEKE: o HREH#: R
o RERE: R s MEBMEIE
o HEfEit
Community e Community development; e Community service activities;

e Employment opportunities;
e Environmental protection; and
e Social welfare

e Media enquiry; and
e Press release and announcements
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We have identified ESG issues that may adversely affect our sustainable
development. These issues have been identified from various sources,
including our previous ESG report, internal policies, industry trends, and
feedback from stakeholders. We have carefully evaluated these issues
with our overall ESG strategy, development, goals, and target.

According to our review of our business operations, priorities, and
development, the 16 material issues identified last year remain relevant
and applicable. The factors have been addressed by relevant measures,
and we believe they have no significant effect on our financial and
operational performance.

Our materiality assessment is illustrated in the table below, highlighting
the ESG issues that are deemed most significant and have the greatest
potential to affect our performance.

BE B == HE
Environmental Operations Employees Community
1. BERB(RERBLE 6. EmERE 1. &R 16. HEHKRE

RBE

1. Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) & 6. Product Responsibility ~ 11. Employment 16. Community Investment
Air Emissions
ReIRERE R BKE 7. HEEEE 12. BT AR
Energy & Water Consumption 7. Supply Chain 12. Labour Standards
Management
BEEYEIE 8. EmiBAREIH 13. @FEEZE
Waste Management 8. Product Related 13. Health and Safety
Complaints
4. mIREE 9. REFEH 14, BREE
4. Climate Change 9. Anti-corruption 14. Development and
Awareness Training
5. BEMEDERE 10. ZIBER 15. AR IRE
5. Packaging Material 10. Intellectual Property 15. Privacy Protection

Consumption
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BMRMRERENEEN BRIRER
PMBEEEEFRITAREZER BERES
BEMNRRER ABEAUREZRRNRE
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REREF PINREEEFM RERE B
EHORHA A REHEF RRERRER
NitElF UEBAERAKERER -

ENVIRONMENTAL
Overview

The Group is a reputable EMS provider that provides complete end-
to-end solutions to customers, with a specific focus on a variety of
consumer electronic products. These products encompass a diverse range
of applications, including vapour products, appliances, commercial
controls, and heating, ventilation, and air-conditioning systems.

We recognise the significance of environmental protection and are
committed to practicing sustainable development in our day-to-day
operations. We aim to enhance the environmental awareness of our
employees and contribute to creating a more sustainable environment.

Additionally, we have established an ESG policy to guide our ESG
practices. Our Dongguan production plant has also implemented
an environmental management system that adheres to international
industry-specific environmental standards. This system has been certified
with I1SO 14001:2015. Our environmental management system includes
various policies and procedures, such as the Environmental Management
Handbook, the Procedure for Environmental Factors/Hazard Source
Identification, Evaluation, and Updating, the Procedure for Monitoring
and Measurement of Environmental Performance, and the Management
Procedures for Electricity and Water Usage.

BFERERERAR
20235 %%
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RNREFRRESTRHNBREIRIEAEER The Group strictly adheres to the relevant environmental laws and

BIEETRER regulations in the PRC, including but not limited to:

o (RIBIRER) e “Environmental Protection Law”

o  (RE\SBHEMAEE) e “Law on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”

o (KIFBRMAEY e “Law on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”

o (EEREYTHIREN AL K& e “Law on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution to the

Environment”; and

o  (EIRIBEIRIE) © e “Law on Energy Conservation”.
BEE-K
Environmental targets at a glance
HE B& BZE2023F12A31HHER
Aspects Targets Progress as of 31 December 2023
B RPN 1 45 E380ME — AL IR E 8 R ET AREE2023F R ERBHRERER PN
SEBESEMNUT- B1% (A1360.33M — (Lt ¥ 8 1R (&
DEBESEN) RERENHMA L
RIRH BB ERR D
GHG Emissions Maintain below 380 tonnes CO,e per million The Group’s GHG emission in 2023 was slightly
units of production by pieces. lower than our target (i.e. 360.33 tonnes CO,e

per million units of production by pieces)
due to decrease in electricity consumption,
refrigerants and the use of fuel-burning
generators.

BEEREEYEE  ERHE0I0NE REANEEEESEMNT  RMAFERBAKEEREEVELEERZ0.09
M/ RGN ERBEEBEMRER TE—

iR

Hazardous Waste ~ Maintain below 0.10 tonnes per million units of ~We achieved this goal by reducing our

production production by pieces. hazardous waste production to 0.09 tonnes

per every million units of production by pieces
this year.

ARORFE R HEFRFTE030ME, RN B ESESEMIAT . RMAFERBHAREAMEZ0.0208 R
ANEREEEEMKRER TE—BR-

Paper Consumption Maintain below 0.30 tonnes per every million We achieved this goal by reducing our paper

units of production by pieces. consumption to 0.02 tonnes per every million

units of production by pieces this year.
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REERE-E
Environmental targets at a glance

HE A& BZE2023F12A31HHER
Aspects Targets Progress as of 31 December 2023
REIRIHRE BFRFEOS0T R MR ETBEBEMIAT . AEE2023FHERERESNEMEFE
#) B & (BN0.58 T LB R AT ARES
Bfy) -
Energy Maintain below 0.50 kWh per total production ~ The Group’s energy consumption in 2023 was
Consumption unit by pieces. slightly above our target (i.e. 0.58 kWh per
total production unit by pieces) this year.
FA7K MFFTE0.033 77 K R MR EE B BFIAFERBEAKERZ0.01 25K,/
AT RUEFHEESEMRER TE—BiF-
Water Maintain below 0.03 m’ per total production We achieved this goal by reducing our water
Consumption unit by pieces. consumption to 0.01 m’ per total production

unit by pieces this year.

AEEBEMBLARRE R RAKED
REBREREMANAIRKEERRA YEE
VEERABERELRR

BE SR BE IR

AEBERAMBERERENTE - ES
HERS (INOx ) ~ TR ([SOx])
REERE ([PM]) RRRIS AN EZRIR -
BB T EHY e MRBERREROMKEER
moBEEEMHEREHNER BHHE
B BE SRR o

The Group is highly aware of the environmental targets mentioned in the
above table. We are dedicated to actively monitoring our sustainability
performance and implementing the necessary to accomplish these goals.

Air Emission

The Group is acutely aware of the environmental impact that fuel usage
can have. A significant contributor to air pollution is our fleet of motor
vehicles, which emits Nitrogen Oxides (“NOy ”), Sulphur Oxides (“SOy”)
and Particulate Matter (“PM”). We strive to continuously reduce air
emissions by consistently identifying and procuring the most eco-friendly
fuel alternatives and prioritising the purchase of the most fuel-efficient
vehicles available in the market.

EEHRY By 2023F B B2 20225 BERE
2023 Amount 2022 Amount

Major Emissions Unit of Emission” of Emission

REALHNO) AR

Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) Kg 194.98 59.94

Al so,) Ny

Sulphur Oxides (SO) Kg 0.36 0.11

FERY)E (PM) NI

Particulate Matter (PM) Kg 18.55 5.64

? BRR2EERRZMBAMN RRABER
EIRERIES | PR ABGHE -

2 The calculation of air pollutants has taken reference from emission factors in
“Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by HKEX.

BEEFIZERER AR
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BERBHER

ARBENEERBEXRFREIERRNER
BV RS EIOER S - H AERER
EREBRAZENEZRENIMNBEES ER
MERAREEREHE

GHG Emissions

The main drivers of the Group’s direct GHG emissions are the fuels used
in vehicles and refrigerants. On the other hand, the main sources of the
Group’s indirect GHG are electricity purchases, discarded waste paper,
and employee business travel.

HRYER By 2023 F H M E 2022FHENE
2023 Amount 2022 Amount

Types of Emissions Unit of Emissions of Emissions

EE1 - HEZEIREN

Scope 1 - Energy Direct Emissions

EET1 - B EBRRERRS

Scope 1 - Fuel burning in generators®

—&1EHR(CO,) W& tix & &

Carbon Dioxide (CO,) Tonnes CO,e - 12.89

— & (L =AN,O) WS B

Nitrous Oxide (N,O) Tonnes CO,e - 0.01

45 W& tix g &

Total Tonnes CO,e - 12.90

EE1-EHHRERR

Scope 1 — Combustion of fuels in vehicles

— & {Lh(CO,) W= A R

Carbon Dioxide (CO,) Tonnes CO,e 57.65 18.05

FBE(CH,) WS LIREE

Methane (CH,) Tonnes CO,e 0.13 0.03

— L= AN,0) BB (R

Nitrous Oxide (N,O) Tonnes CO,e 6.55 2.05

et WS LikEE

Total Tonnes CO,e 64.33 20.13

BEFELBEABAEHNESY ALY EERH °
HERMRENEEBUR -
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230 YL % By 2023F BN B 20225 HERE
2023 Amount 2022 Amount

Types of Emissions Unit of Emissions of Emissions
EE1I-ERARSHE
Scope 1 — Use of refrigerants
— &L H(CO,) oS (HEE
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) Tonnes CO,e 124.89 208.15
g#HE-REREHER
Scope 1 — GHG Emissions*
#st WS LIREE
Total Tonnes CO,e 189.22 241.18
EE2-RREEHERK
Scope 2 — Energy Indirect Emissions
- WS LR EE
Electricity® Tonnes CO,e 5,047.35 7,151.68
SE3-HtEEHER
Scope 3 — Other Indirect Emissions
JBE 4o W R(CIREE
Waste Paper® Tonnes CO,e 1.30 15.14
7 795 2= K7 WS CREE
Business Trip” Tonnes CO,e 29.20 9.21
T WA LIREE
Total Tonnes CO,e 30.50 24.35
BERBHENAE
Total GHG Emissions
#a T W —S(CIREE
Total Tonnes CO,e 5,267.07 7,417.21
B R W —EALIRE 8 REET R

BEBESEM
Emission Intensity Tonnes CO,e/every million units of

production by pieces 360.33 385.31

HEVREREBHENNHFERRABTIREBZ BB S ¢ The emission factors of Scope 1 GHG emissions were calculated based on the

RHMBERRE ([BERSAH]) TN [RKEH
REMERERIES | PHORRARBGE -
HIEeEERIMNEENRELN
WARR A AR KB AERRITE (2019F) K&
BEMAREERRMEENHFRRSGEE -

emission factors in the “Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by
The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX").

B =R > The data includes GHG emissions from the use of purchased electricity and is

calculated based on the emission factors provided by The Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of the People’s Republic of China (2019) and local utilities
companies in Hong Kong.

HEOEREREZNEERMEENAZRTE ¢  The data includes GHG emissions from disposal of papers to landfill and

Bt WARIR A B R 5 P T B H [BRIF R R AE SR
TRERE S]] REVPER R G E -

is calculated based on the emission factors in the “Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” published by HKEX.

HERHEBMEERMEANRZERESH.MK WE 7  The data includes GHG emissions from business travel and is calculated based on

5 [ B RATAR B BB Gt H 23S 58 -

the “International Civil Aviation Organisation Carbon Emissions Calculator”.

BERRARARAT
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BNz BREERARELTTNIE
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The quantity of GHG emissions has decreased this year compared to
the previous Reporting Period mostly due to a decrease in electricity
consumption and the use of fuel-burning generators. However, with
fewer travel restrictions to various countries this year, an increase in
business trips contributed to a rise in GHG emissions. To address this,
the Group will implement the following mitigation measures to reduce
its carbon footprint in accordance with the principles of sustainable
development.

Measures to Reduce Emissions

The Group has implemented several strategies to lower the emissions we
generate. Regarding our fleet of vehicles, the Group has made it illegal
for workers to use them for reasons other than business, and employees
are only allowed to use our vehicles for long-distance travel when
required. In addition, the Group does routine maintenance and weekly
checks on the vehicles to guarantee optimal fuel economy.

The Group’s production facilities routinely undertake desulfurisation,
dust removal, and purification to lower emissions from diesel generators.
In order to regulate pollutants produced during the soldering process, we
also established exhaust ventilation systems. Appropriate staff from the
Administrative Department are in charge of managing and maintaining
these exhaust facilities.

Due to the above measures, the Group has been maintaining a stable
emission level that meets the emission standards set out by law to
maintain ISO 14001:2015 certification.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BRERUEE

ARBEXFRERERAIBETHEREES
IWEHF [BRIR4R ] RA O ER - EEMER
BREERERER) BEREERHTAE
e AR D AR SR BV R -

AEENETERENEEREF WEEMUR
EEMHERMETHIR

Waste Management

The Group supports the notion of an environmentally friendly and
sustainable workplace and upholds the 4R’s of environmental protection
(reduce, reuse, recycle, and replace). Employees are encouraged to
communicate digitally in order to use less paper.

The Group also put the Waste Management Procedures into practice,
classifying the nature of wastes as hazardous or non-hazardous.

BEREYEE B 20235 20224
Types of Waste Unit 2023 2022
BEBRRY
Hazardous Waste
BEERRYEE WA
Total Hazardous Waste Tonnes 1.29 3.70
BEEBRENTER W RAENEABEBEM
Hazardous Waste Intensity Tonnes per every million units of

production by pieces 0.09 0.19
BEBERY®
Non-Hazardous Waste®
MREREE M4
Total Paper Consumption Tonnes 0.36 3.88
Total Non-hazardous Waste Tonnes 19,575.55 =
ARERAEE W RGN EBEBEBEM
Paper Consumption Intensity Tonnes per every million units of

production by pieces 0.02 0.20
BERREYMREETE W R RN ABERBEM
Total Non-Hazardous Waste Tonnes per every million units of

Intensity production by pieces 0.001 -

LEBERY) MERBYH 2RKEAKEH
EEEERYNIERR AKEEERFE
EEREVEHEBORERBGEREETAQ
BFEREREAZTEEY-

BEEERVMEIBERENAREARSEER
M—REEERY MZHRERERAR®-
S 7N 5 [ 4 R IR W) 0 4B 2% R 0 Uk R
BY R EERY - K& R AR
CfEENHBEFR YEERFREED
WEiE - RPTEREEEEITERFE ¥
EREARITHNENRBE R TS
WA AR WA

5 AMEEF2023FRE e REARENEE
R ENE R ENEEEENRENTE S
FBIBEKEEREEFREFHBENRRER -

° ER[-IBRNREATEEIERNEE  kE
BB ABHEENEBRSHHNER  NUE
AZPREFZEERANEESRRENER -

Chemical waste, such as waste mineral oil, mercury-containing lamps,
and paints, is the primary source of hazardous waste. The Group has
contracted an environmental service provider with a Hazardous trash
Business License to collect hazardous trash on an annual basis.

The primary sources of non-hazardous waste are paper consumption and
various types of general commercial waste, including plastics and office
supplies. Additionally, non-hazardous waste is divided by the Group
into recyclable and non-recyclable waste. The recycling companies
will then separate and collect the recyclable waste from the centralised
location. We also require our staff members to utilise both sides of
paper when conducting printing or photocopying activities. Single-sided
paper is recycled after it has been used to print or photocopy prototype
documents if no confidential information is contained.

8 To enhance our 2023 ESG reporting disclosure, we have revisited and updated
the methodology for calculating the total non-hazardous waste which the data
collection has included paper consumption disclosed in past year report.

? Data which marked with a symbol “-”, is not available in previous years and new
data collection to correspond to the updated HKEX, in order to provide additional

information on our sustainability performance to the audience.
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Use of Resources and Energy Efficiency

To promote energy conservation in the workplace and assure industrial
safety, the Group has implemented the Management Procedures for
Electricity Usage about electricity conservation. Specific measures have
been implemented to conserve energy, such as employees are obligated
to deactivate electrical equipment and the power supply before leaving
the premises or when not in use; cable installation is strictly prohibited
without prior authorisation from the Administration Department; monthly
monitoring of electricity consumption is conducted; and departments
that surpass the electricity usage standards are subject to disciplinary
action.

The table below summarises the Group’s direct and indirect energy
consumption, which is mostly derived from the use of fuel for vehicles
and electricity.

BE IR OH #E Energy Consumption
RERmE B 2023F HFER 2022FHFEE
2023 2022
Types of Energy Unit Consumption Consumption

HERRHRE REHR

Direct Energy Consumption: Generators

SIH F R

Diesel kWh - 52,799.10
EERREE  TUBLERN

Direct Energy Consumption: Non-Renewable Fuel

o FRB

Gasoline kWh 236,789.88 -
BERERERE 8

Indirect Energy Consumption: Electricity

£ TRE

Electricity kWh 8,294,398.00 8,927,305.60
REFUH RS

Total Energy Consumption

REIREREE T LB

Total Energy Consumption kWh 8,531,187.88 8,980,104.70
RERERERE TRE REANBEBEN

Energy Consumption Intensity kWh per total production units by pieces 0.58 0.47

REBMBAOAREFTERE - BDAEE - AR
AERTAFERAEEN ERERTEEDE
Z058 T BB RIFFTNRESEEMN B R
R BEE-

RO - 7R 5 B 4] 4k 4B 75 1 B ORI 30 R A BE TR OB
Feo RPITRER R FRe MM B = = H A B

The Group is dedicated to fostering a low-carbon culture. This year, our
energy consumption intensity of 0.58 kWh per total production unit
by pieces, is slightly above our target because of the increased use of

gasoline in production.

Moving forward, the Group remains committed to actively monitoring
and reducing energy consumption. We also aim to ensure the continued

Z o attainment of our target in the following year.
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Water Usage

The Group’s daily operational water needs are adequately met by the
existing water supply, and we did not encounter any difficulties in
sourcing water. In our Hong Kong offices and the Dongguan production
plant, water is primarily used for cleaning and sanitation purposes.
The data provided below specifically pertains to water usage at the
Dongguan production plant, as the water supply for the office premises
in Hong Kong is managed centrally by the property management.

Rk B 2023F HAER 20224 HFEE
2023 2022

Water Usage Unit Consumption Consumption
RKEE AV
Total Water Consumption Cubic Meters 100,711 97,613
RKBEEE MARRGEEES B
Intensity of Total Water Cubic meters per total production units

Consumption by pieces 0.01 0.01

RETEIKAGE  ARBERR— R
BREBERBKER EHREKERN
BRETBENRKEEEREEMNER &
HFEARKERZ R LA KEOIRE -
ZEREEEREENEH/KER WRE
BREHEIKXE -

BEMH
AEBEERNBEEAAR AF 2RER -

BRASAREBENH - TRHIIAEH
A& B A ) B R B8R -

In line with our commitment to water conservation, the Group has
implemented a range of measures. These include the adoption of a
circulating water system, regular checks on faucets to prevent leakage
and enable immediate reporting of any damage, and the placement of
water-saving signs in toilets and next to faucets. These efforts aim to
raise awareness among our employees and promote a culture of water
conservation throughout the organisation.

Packaging Material

The Group utilises various materials for product packaging, including
paper, paper boxes, partition cardboard, plastic bags, and foam sponges.
The table provided below presents the data on the quantity of packaging
materials consumed by the Group during the Reporting Period.

BEMH B 2023F HAER 20224 HFEE
Packaging Materials Unit 2023 Consumption 2022 Consumption
ERBEMFHBE WA
Total Packaging Materials Used Tonnes 641.14 551.96
ERAEEMHEERE W RN EABEEEM
Intensity of Total Packaging Tonnes per every million units of

Materials Used production units by pieces 43.88 28.67

BEBEFERER AR
202358 /7
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The Environment and Natural Resources

In line with our dedication to environmental responsibility, the Group
consistently monitors the impact of our operations on the environment.
We adhere to the ISO 14001:2015 environmental management standards
and have implemented an ESG policy. Our commitment to minimising
our carbon footprint and mitigating our environmental impact is evident
through the systematic management of all aspects of our activities,
products, and services. By implementing effective strategies and
practices, we actively work towards reducing our environmental footprint
and promoting sustainability.

Climate Change

In response to the imminent challenge of climate change, the Group
has taken into account the potential risks associated with climate
change. Following the guidelines of the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”), we have identified specific climate risks,

(BREEEREBERR) - encompassing both physical and transitional risks, that apply to our
business operations.
RizEBRER AR EkRE [ P 3t
Types of Climate Risk Specific Risk Description of the risk
EREAR (1) Bm AR (MR BRI HARMORFEREERETERZRBEHR

Physical risk (acute)

Extreme weather conditions (e.g.
typhoons, extreme heat flooding)

R gnwE BINANELE %ﬁm Gl
LA 1R B8 R 3% AR B AT REMEFE E &K

It is essential to implement safety measures and drills
to minimise the likelihood of such risks occurring
despite our offices and production plants being

not situated in regions prone to severe weather

conditions.

AR (12MH%) BHE=R REMBREEBENS ASEHAESEM - AE
BB EENBE R D R BB RIREREER
IREKF -

Physical risk (chronic)

Sustained high temperatures

The occurrence of chronic heat waves and
prolonged high temperatures can increase electricity
usage. Thus, the Group should adopt energy
conservation measures to reduce or maintain overall
energy consumption at a steady level.

/8
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RizEBREE ARER 22, B i it
Types of Climate Risk Specific Risk Description of the risk
B E R EEARER f&iﬂﬁ“”E!ﬁfiW MuﬁzﬁﬂﬁﬁTEAm%E’JﬁﬁR?ﬁL

Transition risk

Regulatory compliance risk

SEA A AREFERD THMERER
ﬁﬂ%Liﬁ%
As environmental regulations become more
stringent and carbon taxes carry significant financial
implications for businesses, the Group must remain
fully informed about these issues to prevent any
violations of laws.

AR AR BERR

Transition risk

Reputation Risk

HEETRBEIHNAKE R EREEEL A
FEEBNBA ALY EBFNEE At A%
BARBERGSER(CEBRNA mAgEETH
RSER IIEFAEeELARENRA -

The reputation of Wise Ally may be influenced by
changes in customer behaviour or their perception
of the Group'’s contribution to the transition to a
low-carbon economy. Therefore, the Group needs
to enhance its business model to align with the
low-carbon economy. Failure to make progress in
this regard may result in negative perceptions from
customers.

AEERR/BImRRANELEZENNREN
BEPIMEETEHEERESELERT
2,

SO EFEEmE R KA AKEER K
WE‘]@E@:%&EQH RS Ll F0pS
o ERAREERREBRE B2 N2

HERIRARE I — F IR AR E R K
SRR T R 5B oF i B A 5 B B SRS 1F AT
BIRE

BENI ARBENEHEERR Eﬂéﬁ’%@
[R) B B B 2 10 8248 0 DARL A b il SR (R 4R
Bl A

The Group believes that the potential impact of extreme weather
conditions and changes in environmental regulations would not
significantly affect its current operations.

In addition, the Board ensures effective oversight of climate-related
issues by actively monitoring and evaluating the potential consequences
of the Group’s business strategy and its dedication to mitigating the
effects of climate change. The Board has also participated in climate-
related training to further develop the understanding of climate risk and
the regulations and be better equipped to make informed decisions on
the Group's strategy.

Nonetheless, the Group continues to monitor and evaluate the situation
while implementing appropriate measures to mitigate exposure to the
aforementioned climate-related risks.

BFERERERAR
20235 %%
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SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Standards

The Group recognises the immense value of employees as a vital asset
to us. We consider human resource management to be an essential
component of our overall business strategy. In all aspects of employment,
the Group diligently adheres to relevant laws and regulations, which
include, but are not limited to:

In Hong Kong:

e “Employment Ordinance”,

e “Minimum Wage Ordinance”, and

e “Employees” Compensation Ordinance”

In PRC:

e “Labour Contract Law”,

e “Labour Law”,

e “Regulations on Paid Annual Leave of Employees”,
e “Law on the Protection of Women'’s Rights and Interests”,
e “Law on the Protection of Disabled Persons”, and
e “Social Insurance Law”

Beyond mere compliance, the Group is deeply committed to fostering a
diverse and inclusive workplace where no employee faces discrimination
or is denied opportunities based on factors such as gender, ethnicity,
religion, colour, sexual orientation, age, marital status, or family status
during the recruitment and promotion processes. To protect the rights of
our employees and ensure fairness, we have developed specific policies,
such as the Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees and
Anti-discrimination and Harassment Procedures. These policies are in
place to ensure that all employees’ talents are evaluated, acknowledged,
and rewarded fairly.

The Group maintains a strict policy of zero tolerance towards child
labour and forced labour in the workplace. We firmly prohibit any
form of child labour or forced labour. To prevent such practices, the
Human Resources Department implements rigorous interview screening
procedures for each candidate. This includes conducting thorough
background checks to verify the accuracy of personal information
provided on application forms. We carefully examine the candidate’s
original identity card and make detailed inquiries to ensure that
no individuals involved in child labour are employed within our
organisation.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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If any incident of child labour or forced labour is identified in the
workplace, the Group will promptly terminate the individual’s
employment and initiate an investigation into the underlying causes.
We retain our right to take disciplinary measures against any employees
who are found responsible for employing child labour or forced labour.
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
regarding the practice of child labour or forced labour at work.

To streamline operations and enhance productivity, the Group has
implemented a comprehensive Human Resources Policy that governs
various aspects of employee management, including recruitment,
resignation, and promotion. This policy serves to standardise procedures
and improve overall efficiency within the Group. We also employ a
variety of selection procedures to recruit qualified candidates and meet
our specific requirements. These processes encompass resume screening,
conducting background checks, and conducting job interviews. If an
employee wishes to resign, they are required to provide written notice
in advance to their Department Head and Manager-in-Charge. On the
employee’s final day, the Human Resources Department conducts an
exit interview to understand the reasons for their resignation and gather
valuable feedback or complaints. This process helps us identify any areas
where the workplace environment can be improved.

Employee probation assessments and annual appraisals play an important
role in determining rewards, penalties, salary adjustments, promotions,
year-end bonuses, etc. Our remuneration policy is designed to align with
the job responsibilities, qualifications, and experience of our employees,
and it undergoes an annual review to ensure its effectiveness.

In addition to providing annual bonuses and insurance benéefits,
we offer discretionary bonuses based on individual performance to
further incentivise and recognise our employees. The Group also offers
competitive remuneration packages, comprehensive fringe benefits, and
welfare allowances to attract top talent and foster motivation. These
include medical and social insurance coverage, travel allowances, and
phone bill allowances.

Furthermore, the standard working hours for our employees are 8
hours per day and 40 hours per week on average, with at least one rest
day per week. To promote team cohesion and a harmonious working
environment, the Group regularly organises various group activities.
These activities serve to strengthen team bonds and create a positive
atmosphere within the organisation.
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R2023F  ANEFEEFNFEFTHEH SR In 2023, the Group was awarded the “Caring Company Logo” by Hong

BT f?ﬁg‘i}%ﬁﬁli‘éj et Jy= K& Kong Council of Social Service for 8 consecutive years to recognise
a/u—I%[iZTF‘ﬁETE}?;EEEJ \z{zX{b&%ﬁ,\mﬂE’\jIﬂE our commitment to offering a caring culture and inclusive workplace
REHENE N - environment.

EESGTHE 2023%F 20224
Employees Demographics 2023 2022
EERAR Total number of employees 1,570 1,695
BRUEBESHNEEAR Number of employees by gender

pegiis Female 797 873
S Male 773 822
RERERBSNEEBAH Number of employees by age group

25BRA TN <25 195 321
25ZE295% 25-29 214 349
30E395% 30-39 542 694
40E495% 40-49 519 292
5085 A £ >50 100 39
REREZREINEEAH Number of employees by employment type

s Full-Time 1,570 1,682
Fe Part-Time - 13
RBEEIHNES AR Number of employees by geographical region

s Hong Kong 88 63
A PRC 1,481 1,632
HAit Others 1 4
EER AL R 2023%F 20224
Employee Turnover 2023 2022
BRESMALE Overall employee turnover rate 117% 18%
REBIE S HESRALR Employee turnover rate by gender

g Female 40% 14%
St Male 197% 21%
RERARE S WIEERALLE Employee turnover rate by age group

255RA T <25 217% 37%
25F2975% 25-29 173% 16%
30E395% 30-39 138% 1%
402495% 40-49 52% 15%
508% A £ >50 29% 18%
RUBESHNEESRA LR Employee turnover rate by geographical region

BB Hong Kong 17% 56%
F PRC 123% 16%
Hith Others 0% 0%

0 BIRFRAMAE2023F MRS e REARMEH  ©  To enhance our 2023 ESG reporting disclosure, we have revisited and updated the
BKF BHMEEFRNLEFFEREERAKL
KM E - EERMKLENFAETER [HIEER
RIRBERLE B ABRIAEERBINEES A A
& IA100% ] ©

methodology for calculating the employee turnover rate. Employee turnover rate
is calculated as “employees in the specified category leaving employment divided
by number of employees in the specified category and then multiplied by 100%".
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Health and Safety

The Group places the utmost importance on the health and safety of its
employees. We fully comply with relevant safety regulations, including
the “Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong and the
“Production Safety Law” and “Fire Protection Law” in the PRC. To ensure
a safe working environment, we have developed an Employee Safety
Policy that identifies potential hazards and outlines safety procedures
for various aspects of our production activities. Furthermore, we have
implemented contingency measures in our Employee Handbook. These
measures outline special work arrangements to be followed during
times of crisis, such as typhoons, rainstorms, serious infectious diseases,
and other emergencies. By proactively addressing these situations, we
prioritise the well-being of our employees and strive to maintain a secure
working environment.

In our Dongguan production plant, we have a dedicated Environmental
Health and Safety (“EHS”) employee responsible for managing health and
safety issues. As part of our safety procedures, all employees are expected
to examine their work environment and acknowledge their observations
by signing a confirmation notice. Additionally, new employees are
required to complete a comprehensive “3-Level Safety Training” before
commencing their duties. This training program encompasses both
operational and preventive guidelines, to increase employees” awareness
of work safety. It guides operating equipment accurately and safely, while
also encouraging prompt response in emergencies.

Additionally, the Group has developed a range of general safety
measures. These measures include the prohibition of smoking in non-
smoking zones, such as warehouses, flammable areas, and other
production areas. We also adhere to fire safety management plans and
precautionary procedures under applicable laws and regulations. Regular
fire drills are also conducted to enhance safety awareness among all
employees and ensure they are prepared for any fire-related incidents.
We will continue creating a safety-conscious environment and promote
the well-being of our workforce.

During the Reporting Period, there were no work-related fatalities but 11

BEINFEIERS RAHEHRNELRIIER reported cases of work injuries, resulting in a total of 119 lost days.
HHEAT19K -
2023 20224 20214
EEREZE Health and Safety 2023 2022 2021
TEHE Number of injuries 11 6 11
BIBELRTHER Lost days due to work injuries 119 30 62
ITHEH Work-related fatalities ZNil ZNil ZNil

BEZF(REREHME) AEBREH L

El’xJI%%éﬂZ%(%%&%EF{EVM? AEEK

BEZNNEABRENLZERF RUERH
BEREBELZDEE-

Throughout the past three years, including the Reporting Period, our
employees have consistently experienced a minimal number of work-
related injuries. The Group remains committed to bolstering our current
safety procedures and is dedicated to making necessary improvements to
enhance occupational safety measures.
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Development and Training

The Group highly values the skills and expertise of its employees,
understanding their critical significance in driving the Group’s long-
term growth. Hence, we prioritise investing in the development of
our employees by providing training opportunities that enhance their
knowledge and skills. These programmes cover a broad range of subjects,
spanning technical knowledge in areas such as electronic components
and welding, as well as communication skills and relationship building.
By enhancing employees’ capabilities, they are better equipped to
perform their duties efficiently and achieve personal goals. The Group

B EEREEEAKE- is fully committed to providing comprehensive in-house and external
training opportunities for employees at all levels, supporting their career
progression and personal growth.

EEEIT 2023%F 20224
Employee Training'! 2023 2022
RERESHNEZIEET DL Percentage of employee trained by
gender
joedts Female 54% 55%
St Male 46% 45%
RESERESHWZIEET DL Percentage of employee trained by
employee category
g Management 4% 13%
hiRES Mid-level employee 17% 10%
REE Junior employee 79% 77%
REBEINEERER Average training hours completed
7 3 A B T 1 R B per employee by gender
2L Female 16.04/)M 9.68/) ¥
16.04 hours 9.68 hours
B Male 21.39/ B 10.65/)NFF
21.39 hours 10.65 hours
RESEREINEEER Average training hours completed
7E 32 A B 1 R B per employee by employee category
EIRE Management 2.19/0 B 6.64/)NFF
2.19 hours 6.64 hours
hikfES Mid-level employee 3.89/) B 2.80/) B
3.89 hours 2.80 hours
AREE Junior employee 11.44/N B 6.68/ )\
11.44 hours 6.68 hours

T RERRESERESNRIEEBES L RESR U

EBEERZINFHRRD2ETEI HMEM
0 (2R RAE R RERES!] 5T E -
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The percentage of employee trained, and average training hours completed per
trained employee is calculated with reference to “Reporting Guidance on Social
KPIs” published by HKEX.
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Supply Chain Management

Recognising the vital role of responsible supply chain management
in sustainable development, the Group is fully committed to fostering
long-term and harmonious partnerships with our suppliers. The Group’s
suppliers are required to comply with relevant laws and regulations,
including those outlined in the European Union (“EU”) directives and
regulations. Suppliers working with the Group are required to comply
with applicable laws and regulations, including EU directives and
regulations. This includes adhering to the Restriction of Hazardous
Substances Directive 2002/95/EC (“RoHS”) and the Registration,
Evaluation, Authorisation, and Restriction of Chemicals Regulation (EC)
No. 1907/2009 (“REACH”). Ensuring suppliers’ compliance with these
directives is a fundamental aspect of our supplier relationships. We
prioritise integrity and pragmatism, expecting our suppliers to uphold
these values and deliver products and services that strictly align with
applicable laws and regulations. Adherence to these principles and legal
requirements is of paramount importance to us as we maintain strong
and sustainable partnerships with our suppliers.

To standardise procurement procedures and enhance supplier monitoring
and management, the Group has implemented a comprehensive set of
Standard Operating Procedures known as Supply Base Management
(“SBM”). The procedures encompass evaluations carried out before
accepting a supplier as an approved supplier, as well as continuous
assessments and regular inspections of approved suppliers.

During the supplier sourcing process, the SBM team and supply
quality assurance team evaluate the potential supplier’s capabilities.
Our engineers may request samples from potential suppliers for testing
purposes. In addition, the SBM team collects pertinent documents from
potential suppliers, such as signed supplier information forms with
company seals, as well as compliance declarations on RoHS and REACH
regulations.

New suppliers will be accepted to the approved vendor list only after
passing a thorough assessment and receiving approval from the SBM
manager and vice president. These assessments encompass various
aspects, including the supplier’s background information, the quality
of their products and services, their reputation, and their commitment
to human rights management. Additionally, we conduct investigations
to ensure potential suppliers have not been involved in any significant
incidents of environmental non-compliance. Supplier performance is
evaluated annually, and those who fail to meet the Group’s standards
may face termination of the cooperation.

2023F 20224

HEBHE HEmSE

Number of Number of

RWES S HHER suppliers in suppliers in
Geographical region of suppliers 2023 2022
a3 PRC 460 430
Ep Hong Kong 146 181
B~ BOM B g8 M A0 B 3R K b [ U.S., Europe, and the rest of Asia 55 106
#at Total 661 717
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Product and Service Responsibility

The Group is committed to delivering products and services that are safe,
high-quality, and reliable to our customers. We prioritise maintaining
stringent quality standards throughout our manufacturing process. We
have also implemented the principles of total quality management and
continuously provide comprehensive training to our employees in quality
assurance. Furthermore, we strictly comply with all relevant regulations,
including the “Product Quality Law” in the PRC, the EU Directives
2006/122/EC, 2005/69/EC, and 2011/65/EU, as well as the Regulation
(EC) No. 1907/2006.

We place a strong emphasis on maintaining stringent quality assurance
measures and conduct thorough inspections at various stages of the
manufacturing process. This includes rigorous checks for incoming
materials, ongoing inspections during production, and final quality
assurance for finished electronic products. Our diligent quality assurance
officers perform periodic sample checks, employing visual inspections,
functionality tests, automated optical inspections, and/or x-ray
inspections. These comprehensive measures are implemented to ensure
that all products meet the required specifications and standards before
they are delivered to our valued customers.

To facilitate the retrieval of production data, the Group has established
a traceability record system within the production line. As part of
this system, all our products are labelled with barcodes during the
manufacturing process. In the event of any quality concerns with our
products, this system enables the Group to quickly determine the origin
of the defect throughout the production process. It allows us to identify
the specific batch of faulty products and implement suitable corrective
actions to address the issues and prevent their recurrence in the future.

Moreover, our production facility includes a Class 100K cleanroom
production floor, spanning approximately 2,700 square meters. This
cleanroom area also features a specialised Class 10K cleanroom
laboratory facility, designed to meet the stringent sanitary requirements
for the production of medical and healthcare products.

The Group has received various certifications to demonstrate our
commitment to quality assurance. These include ISO 9001:2015 for our
exceptional quality management system in the manufacturing of printed
circuit board assemblies and the design of household control modules.
We have also obtained ISO 13485:2016 certification, demonstrating our
adherence to a robust quality management system for the production
of electrocardiogram monitor patches. Additionally, our compliance
with the United States Food and Drug Administration’s Medical Device
Quality System Regulation (QSR 820) has been acknowledged for our
pulse oximeters.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Furthermore, we have obtained highly regarded Good Manufacturing
Practice certifications for food production from both the International
Electrotechnical Commission and Underwriters Laboratories Inc.. These
certifications validate our commitment to maintaining the highest
standards in the production of food products.

Intellectual Property

The Group acknowledges the utmost importance of safeguarding and
upholding our intellectual property (“IP”) rights. We are fully committed
to complying with all relevant laws and regulations that significantly
impact us in this regard. We strictly adhere to relevant laws and
regulations, including the “Trademarks Ordinance” and “Copyright
Ordinance” in Hong Kong, as well as the “Trademark Law” and “Patent
Law” in the PRC. To prevent any potential infringements on our IP rights,
we have implemented various practices. These practices include entering
into Confidentiality Agreements or Non-Disclosure Agreements with
our subcontracted manufacturers and employees. Additionally, we take
proactive measures to register our intellectual property rights that hold
significant value to our business operations.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group has registered a total of 6 domain
names and 2 are actively used.

Privacy Protection

As part of our business operations, we gather and maintain essential
information about our customers, suppliers, and employees. To safeguard
the interests of all stakeholders, it is strictly prohibited to use or disclose
this data for any purposes other than normal business activities. In
adherence to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong Kong and
the Cybersecurity Law in the People’s Republic of China, the Group
has established rules and formulated a Personal Data Policy. This policy
ensures the proper handling of confidential information and prevents
any unauthorised release of data concerning the Group, our suppliers,
customers, and other external parties.

During the Reporting Period, our Dongguan production plant took
proactive measures by arranging regular training sessions for employees
on information system safety. The purpose of these trainings was to
enhance employee awareness and knowledge regarding the protection
and privacy of data.
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Complaints and Responses

The Group places great importance on customer feedback as a crucial
element for our success. We value and address all feedback and
complaints from customers promptly and seriously. To ensure effective
handling of customer complaints, we have established a dedicated
customer complaint handling procedure. When complaints are received,
our Quality Assurance Department’s quality engineers conduct thorough
investigations. Detailed reports are prepared, outlining the department
held responsible, identifying the root causes of the problem, and
documenting the corrective actions taken to resolve the issue.

During the Reporting Period, 18 customer complaints were received by
the Group. All customer complaints were effectively addressed through
appropriate follow-up actions, and no similar issues were observed in
subsequent production and shipment processes. There were also no
product recalls due to safety or health concerns.

Anti-corruption

The Group strictly adheres to relevant anti-corruption laws and
regulations, such as the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” in Hong
Kong and the “Criminal Law” in the PRC. Our Employee Handbook
explicitly outlines the expected business conduct and professional ethics
for our employees. We effectively communicate a strong message to all
employees, emphasising that bribery, corruption, extortion, and fraud are
strictly forbidden, in alignment with the Corporate Governance Policies
and Procedures and the Policy on Inside Information.

During the Report Period, over 750 hours of anti-corruption training
sessions are conducted for employees in the Dongguan’s plant and the
Group’s Hong Kong office to highlight the importance of upholding
ethical standards.

We have consistently maintained our adherence to the implementation
of the Anti-Corruption Policy, which provides employees with
comprehensive guidelines on accepting gifts and benefits, as well as
managing conflicts of interest. The policy clearly outlines the specific
circumstances under which employees are permitted to accept gifts and
benefits. Additionally, employees must report any existing or potential
conflicts of interest to the Group’s Head of Human Resources. Our
dedication to conducting business with ethics and integrity extends to
our business partners, and we hold them to the same level of compliance
with the applicable Group policies and standards.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Moreover, the Group has taken proactive steps to ensure the effective
implementation of its updated Whistleblowing Policy, which provides
employees with enhanced guidance on reporting any concerns
associated with misconduct or inappropriate conduct. In the case of
employees having any such concerns, it is highly encouraged for them to
promptly report these concerns to their supervisors or the Whistleblowing
Committee via email. Subsequently, a thorough investigation will be
carried out, and necessary disciplinary measures will be implemented
against any employees who are found to be implicated, once the
allegations have been substantiated. Depending on the specific nature
and circumstances of each case, the Group may also pursue further legal
actions.

During the Reporting Period, no legal cases regarding corruption were
brought against the Group or our employees, and the Group is not aware
of any incidents of bribery, extortion, fraud, or other violations.

Community Investment

The Group is dedicated to fulfilling social responsibilities by actively
engaging in public welfare activities, viewing public welfare as a vital
pillar of our corporate culture.

This year, the Group donated a total of HK$25,000 to the Salvation
Army and participated in 600 hours of volunteer hours respectively to
demonstrate our dedication to social community service. We actively
work towards improving the well-being of the community, with a
particular emphasis on supporting the elderly and children.
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Mek— BREXZAR

ARERESIRET RS
BE —REBR

B-HE@KkE Appendix I: HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Index

HRENER U SELR Big
Aspects, General Reference and
Disclosure and KPIs Description Remarks Page
BEA: HBD
Aspect A1: Emissions ) )
—RIKE ARERMAERBHN MKRIHOES BEEREZEE HE 69
MELEM:
(a) R - ]
) BTHETAGEAZENHEERIRPINEF -
General disclosure Informatlon on: Overview 69
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non hazardous waste.
BB IR IRATLT PR E LR B SR BERFEM 71
KPIAT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Air Emissions 71
BREMIEIRA12 B (8E1) RERAE (BE2)2ERBHR () AR (1@ EEREHR 72
R)EE-
KPI'AT.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas GHG Emissions 72
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.
BARENERALS FELAERZEYEE (M) (MER)BE - BEENER 75
KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste Management 75
appropriate, intensity.
FRERERAL4 FELBERZEYEE (W)L (MER)BE - BEENER 75
KPIAT.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste Management 75
appropriate, intensity.
BRENIERALS AT RERRRREZBRMRINSR - B R BHE IR 69, 74
KPIAT.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Overview, Measures 69, 74
them. to Reduce Emissions
BR A UIETRATLG HIRBAEREIREYNNE RELAEE R AEER HE BEYERE 69, 75
F%%Wmi%
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Overview, Waste 69, 75

handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

Management
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B —-REER
BRENER I 2EREE "
Aspects, General Reference and
Disclosure and KPIs Description Remarks Page
BEA2 : BRER
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
—RBE BREAF A (REER KRREMRM ) B - BRGNS 76
General disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water  Use of Resources and 76
and other raw materials. Energy Efficiency
B EMIRIRAL RENASMERLR SR ELRERE (FER)REE  BRER 76
KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumptlon by type in total Energy Consumption 76
(kWh in "000s) and intensity.
B EIRIRA2.2 BRKEREE- Ak 77
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Water Usage 77
BREMIRIZAL3 BRIV RERRR R R AEREBRMRRN TR - BE BRER R 69, 76
xﬁl 5 ML IR
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to  Overview, Use of 69, 76
achieve them. Resources and Energy
Efficiency, Energy
Consumption
R BMWIETRAL.4 WK RER KR LR EERARRE  MRUMAKREERER BE AKX 69, 77
REBBEARRN LR
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that Overview, Water 69, 77
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps takento ~ Usage
achieve them.
BREMIEIRALS SEmAABREMHOEE () Rk (ER)BEESNEE BENH 77
KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, Packaging Material 77
if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
BEA3 RERXRER
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
—REE BEBRTAERERAREREXEAY EOHK RERBRER 78
General disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the The Environment and 78
environment and natural resources. Natural Resources
FREMIERA3 HRXBRPHRERARERNEAFERREREHTYE RERBRER 78
ERETE
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the The Environment and 78
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to Natural Resources
manage them.
ETEA4 RIRBIE
Aspect A4: Climate Change
—REE BAREHCE L AR EHETAELFENEARKERE REEL 78-79
HHOHEK -
General disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate- Climate Change 78-79
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.
BREMIRITA4.1 EERARABTAELFENEARGHBAZTERELTE . REE(L 78-79
KPI' A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Climate Change 78-79

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.
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BREMER S SERBEH B
Aspects, General Reference and
Disclosure and KPIs Description Remarks Page
BB : B
Aspect B1: Employment
—RKE ERHFMLRE REREN TERH RY TSRS fEfR K5 T 24 80
1t RIBHRIA R M58 R AR FR) -
(a) HE: R
) BTHETABEAZENREEIERIBEPINER -
General disclosure Informatlon on: Employment and 80
(@ the policies; and Labour Standards
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
BR A IEIRB1.1 BIER BRER  FRARN RS S HES A {B1R & 55 TR 80 - 82
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Employment and 80 - 82
geographical region. Labour Standards
BREMIEIRB1.2 IR FieA R LRSI D BB RKLE - {B1R &5 TEA 80 - 82
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical Employment and 80 - 82
region. Labour Standards
BmB2 : REARE
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
—RKE ERRAZE2THRERREREER2BEMLREN: EEEZe 83
(a) HE: R
) BTHETABEAZENRBEREIAEPINER -
General disclosure lnformatlon on: Health and Safety 83
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
BR A IEIRB2.1 BEZF (BRBREFR)BFRITHMARRLL R EEEZe 83
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the ~ Health and Safety 83
past three years including the reporting year.
B S A AR 1RB2.2 AIBBATIERS eEaze 83
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety 83
BB MIEIRB2.3 HlFRBNBRERELZ 2 ARABRTRER DL REERS 83
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, ~ Health and Safety 83

and how they are implemented and monitored.
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BRENER I 2EREE "
Aspects, General Reference and

Disclosure and KPIs Description Remarks Page

EEB3 : %E KIE3

Aspect B3: Development and Training

—REE BRI EE BT TEREMABREENBR - HlEEg - BRI 84

General disclosure Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for Development and 84
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. Training

B A MEIRB3. BRI REEEHNBDNZIEEADLL BR RS 84

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Development and 84
category. Training

FR R IEIRB3.2 B REEEREDNEREB AN TR TR RE 84

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and Development and 84
employee category. Training

EEB4 - S5 TEA
Aspect B4: Labour Standards

—REE AR IEE T RoaH5 T ER &5 TR 80 - 82
(a) B &
) EFHIBEITABERZENEBAR LR ER
General disclosure Informatlon on: Employment and 80 - 82
(@) the policies; and Labour Standards

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.

BB MEIRBA R R E AN AR R ET RBHST - {EfR K5 T 28 80 - 82
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid ~ Employment and 80 - 82

child and forced labour. Labour Standards
FREUNEIRBA.2 HERREREREERERERARRO TSR - (R ) 55 TR 80 - 82
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Employment and 80 - 82

discovered. Labour Standards
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Aspects, General Reference and

Disclosure and KPIs Description Remarks Page

BEBs - RERERE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

—RIKE R HERORE R GRBEE - R E R 85

General disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply = Supply Chain 85
chain. Management

AR B UEIRB5.1 BiRE D HEREA - g e 85

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain 85

Management

FR B W IEIRB5.2 MR EREREEROEL AEARTEREONHERHE - fEREE 85
NRRBATRER A

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of ~ Supply Chain 85
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how Management
they are implemented and monitored.

FREMIEIRB5.3 HABRARERSERPNREREEAROEN AR  HEREE 85
HERTRERT A

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social ~ Supply Chain 85
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and ~ Management
monitored.

FR A MIEIRB5.4 HAREREREREZARRERLRGVES  AREE HERSE 85
BIREREN A

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply Chain 85
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and Management

how they are implemented and monitored.
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BRENER I 2EREE "
Aspects, General Reference and

Disclosure and KPIs Description Remarks Page

EEB6 : EmEE
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

—RHER BFAMRHEERNRBNERERRZ S BE BEELEZEN EQRRBERE 86
RER AR :
@@ BE: Rk
(b) EFHBITABERTZENE@EE LA ER
General disclosure Information on: Product and Service 86
(@) the policies; and Responsibility

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.

BB HE1RB6.1 EEFCEXERBBTRZZERFEMMARNKNES L - EmRBEL 86

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for ~ Product and Service 86
safety and health reasons. Responsibility

AR B 515 B6.2 REBERERRBRBORFRAUREE L. 1 7 2 o e 88

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and ~ Complaints and 88
how they are dealt with. Responses

BR B MEIRB6.3 g R REAREEEENED - HBERE 87

KPI 6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Intellectual Property 87

intellectual property rights.

AR B MIE1RB6.4 Mg EREREREMEKRER- Em MR E 86
KPI 6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Product and Service 86

Responsibility

R EI515B6.5 R EEERGERALBEE URMBRTRER L MAER 87
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and  Intellectual Property 87

how they are implemented and monitored.
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Aspects, General Reference and
Disclosure and KPIs Description Remarks Page
EEB7 : RES
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
—REE BRFTLLRRE  BR RFRAREN: RES 88
(a) B R
) ETHETABERZENERERLRPINER -
General disclosure Informatlon on: Anti-Corruption 88
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.
BREIETRB7 .1 Fﬁiﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂAiﬁﬁhﬁlﬂﬁ ENEISRRRENE RESD 88
EWSEENES
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Anti-Corruption 88
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
BB BN IEIRB7.2 WA RHEEERBRERF URBBRTRERE - RE)S 88
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing Anti-Corruption 88
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BRENIEIRB7 .3 HlREERE TRENR A REF 88
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and  Anti-Corruption 88
staff.
EBEBS  HERE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
—REE E@MHE%QKT% ENEREXBEYE HERE 89
ZRARAEHER
General disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the  Community Investment 89
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities” interests.
BRENIEIRBS.1 FIHERRNERE- HEERE 89
KPI'B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community Investment 89
R B M IE1RBS.2 FinE R ERRPAER- HERE 89
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Community Investment 89
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To the Shareholders of Wise Ally International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wise Ally International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 104 to 188, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to fair value
measurement of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) — investment in convertible bonds:

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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HEETER
Key Audit Matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BANESTONNEERRETEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRAFEFABRZEREEN A TETE— TR
REFZRE

Fair value measurement of financial asset at FVTPL —
investment in convertible bonds

B2 MRS M SRR EES.5 - 4.4%15 o
Refer to Notes 3.5, 4.4 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BE2023F12A31HLEEE: BEEEZRFRAY
B A B ((RAFEFABS D ZEREEL
NTEZEE1E%29,364,0008 7T H I EREXR
TABERRABEFE USORRIEF=ReRMT
Al

During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group recorded a loss of approximately
HK$29,364,000 on fair value changes of financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
which was measured based on significant
unobservable inputs and classified as “Level 3
financial instrument”.

BHE IR TE RAREEETSREENRT
B(XEEEARTSRE)FARRGER RS
EREETEREREE RRIELSE A -

We focused on this area due to the high degree of
judgement required in determining the fair value
of the financial asset which does not have direct
open market quoted value, with respect to the
adoption of applicable valuation methodology and
the application of appropriate assumptions in the
valuation.

B RAFEFABSZEREEMPTHNEAEFERE:
Our audit procedures performed on financial asset at FVTPL
included:

o HfRBFNMG BEEEEFHBELMGEMNED BHELR
FBINE LHEES A RRESREETHENER &
AREBIE:

e We evaluated the competency, capability and objectivity of
the independent valuer engaged by the Group for performing
the valuation of investment in convertible bonds by assessing
its qualifications, relevant experience and independence with
the Group;

e BMBERNFGHESREERE LB EEMN R AFME
RFBEBEIAFEFABRREZEREEN R FEMATER
B ERTREE 1

e We involved our internal valuation expert to discuss with
management and the independent valuer to evaluate the
appropriateness of methodology and valuation techniques
used in the valuation of fair value of financial asset at FVTPL;

o BMFBBRAFEFABGZZEREENATEETHE
MERBERRBAENNEE ERARYE  BESER TR
BENEZRDELH AN R

e We assessed the appropriateness and relevance of the key
assumptions and inputs in valuation of fair value of financial
asset at FVTPL including discount rate and probability of cash
flows happening of each scenario; and

o RMABERARGEERELNRBETHr BRI -
e We tested the accuracy of mathematical calculation applied in
the valuation model.

EREiEF RARREEENEERAFEMAREZER
BENATERAHENGEETNERBREREREX R -
Based on the procedures above, we found the valuation
methodology and the assumptions made by management in
determining the fair value of financial asset at FVTPL were
supported by available evidences.
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e
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained some of the other information
including corporate information, financial highlights, five-year financial
summary, chairman’s statement, management discussion and analysis,
directors and senior management, and report of the directors prior
to the date of this auditor’s report. The remaining other information,
including the corporate governance report and environmental, social and
governance report to be included in the annual report, are expected to
be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the
annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance and take appropriate action considering our legal rights
and obligations.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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B R K

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Lap Yam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

EZ2023%F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
B FTHET FABT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Yas Revenue 5 1,227,190 1,335,549
SHE AR Cost of sales 6 (1,016,544) (1,140,595)
EF Gross profit 210,646 194,954
HnFEE Other losses, net 7 (29,159) (9,774)
HA WA Other income 7 816 3,288
HE R HRAX Selling and distribution expenses 6 (53,138) (52,247)
TR X Administrative expenses 6 (108,467) (97,573)
TREEREREE Reversal of/(provision for) impairment losses
B, (EE) on financial assets 3.2(a) 672 (6,541)
R A Operating profit 21,370 32,107
ST ON Finance income 9 4,073 725
BE A Finance costs 9 (19,958) (11,519)
F A& AR Finance costs, net 9 (15,885) (10,794)
_THeEER2ZRAEA  Shareoflossofajointventure 1755 [ - 2,000)
R BT 15 i A & F Profit before income tax 5,485 19,313
FriSfiM Income tax expense 10 (4,240) (4,179)
AATFERISEAEMLER  Profit for the year attributable to equity
i A holders of the Company 1,245 15,134
Hitt 2 EEE: Other comprehensive loss:
Hig o] B 7 EEEam ey ltem that may be subsequently reclassified to
HH profit or loss
E¥IRE R Currency translation differences (1,987) (6,843)
_FAAMEEERMASE  Total other comprehensive loss for theyear IS .. (6,843)
AATFERIEEAELFEA  Total comprehensive (loss)/income for
2H (F18) WEen the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company (742) 8,291
ARmEREEAER Earnings per share attributable to equity
BRER holders of the Company
EA N8 GBl) Basic and diluted (HK cents) 11 1.2 15.1
LR e 2 ERE R EEBEN M — 3  The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
B o read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

72023412 A31H As at 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Bt & FTHET FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
e RN E Properties, plant and equipment 12 129,056 88,927
BVEE Intangible assets 13 637 700
R RFANRIEA Deposits and prepayments 16 6,827 5,569
R—RaEbEZRE Investment in a joint venture 19 = -
BAFEGAERZ Financial asset at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 15 1,730 9,094
BEETRIE & E Deferred tax assets 22 4,719 6,453
142,969 110,743
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 17 223,828 227,846
H 5 EWGRIE Trade receivables 20 297,822 368,267
TBNRIE - EE R Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Hfth & Y 3R IR 16 26,440 28,467
IRITER Bank deposits 18 = 32,370
RekREeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 18 274,572 209,823
________________________________________________________________________________________________ BN 866,773
WEE Total assets 965,631 977,516
i EQUITY
AT ERFEE AEMLER  Equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company
P& A Share capital 28 20,000 20,000
1 Reserves 130,293 136,035
B Total equity 150,293 156,035
BFBREERBR AR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
20235128318 As at 31 December 2023

2023 2022
5 FHET FHET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
=R LIABILITIES
FERBAMG Non-current liabilities
REABRTS & 51 &l Long service payment scheme 25 25
BELEMIERE Deferred tax liabilities 22 116 1,615
HEBE Lease liabilities 21 66,875 24,962
67,016 26,602
nEAE Current liabilities
B 5 RNTIA Trade payables 23 249,755 332,591
EHEE HEMEMNFKIER  Contract liabilities, other payables
FEET & and accruals 25 167,378 157,171
HEBE Lease liabilities 21 19,775 12,976
AN Bills payables 24 = 3,614
RITENK Bank borrowings 27 292,603 275,340
FES — R BB A R FUE Amount due to a related company 32 171 338
BIEAFTIS i & & Current income tax liabilities 18,640 12,849
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 786,3227 794,879
Wi AT IOV U I S 815338 | 821,481
EaRkaEAeR Total equity and liabilities 965,631 977,516

AR A B SR R FEEERE M F B s — 3]  The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in
e

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

1042 188E MRS M ISR KR Jh&EF  The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to 188 were

2024 F3 A26 B HLERRKEE - approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and were signed
on its behalf.
KEifE 2|+ lg Chu Wai Hang Raymond Lau Shui Fung
o o Director Director

—I 06 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

#Z2023%12 A31 B IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

202351 A1H &8 Balance at 1 January 2023
2EKE Comprehensive income
FRE Profit for the year
Hit2Ek & Other comprehensive loss

Rt ] B M E Bmm B E Item that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss

BHmE RS Currency translation differences

2EKHELHE Total comprehensive loss

HEBREAETHRS Transaction with equity holders

e (MizE26) Dividend (Note 26)

HBEEE G (fi5Ea) Transfer to statutory reserve
(Note a)

R2023F 12831 B V&R Balance at 31 December 2023

BFEEFIERER AR
o 2023%%& 1 07



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EZE2023912 A318 IEFZ For the year ended 31 December 2023

ARREERAARLE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BRA RORE EEEE  HoREE EiEE  BRNE ot 3
Share Share  Statutory Other  Exchange  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
THT FHT THT THT TAT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(BtzEb)
(Note b)
R202251 318 &Sk Balance at 1 January 2022 20,000 80,355 7,725 67 (240) 44,837 152,744
2EkE Comprehensive income
FRE Profit for the year L - 5 s . 15,134 15,134
Hit 2@k Other comprehensive loss
BREAEMABHZBmM)EA  lrem that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
EEmEEE Currency translation differences & L 4 = (6,843) 2 (6,843)
EENGAE Total comprehensive income - = - = (6,843) 15,134 8,291
HERKEAETHNRS Transaction with equity holders
B (Wi2e) _ Dividend Note26) .. bl | N . ia) \ B .. BO00ETE (5,000
R2022F12A31 B B8R Balance at 31 December 2022 20,000 80,355 7,725 67 (7,083) 54,971 156,035
et Notes:

()
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REARKME (THE] ) ERERBRE  HEZE
it 2 BN R A AEH RN 2 KA A58
HEXBEEMBRRAZMAMEHZEN (E
HBEFENRFBRR)BRNE TAERB
FHERBE - FTAAE R BT E B HOM R F
Bl R 9 Ik E AN R RO B A% 0% AU AT AEE BT
DI P AS BR A TE i A1 0%H) & #8275 T B8R
1o BHRATE BRRRIE L M EAR50%E - &
AAELER O RERRERSERANAMHE QR
BiE BRAREERENDAERULIN A A
ARBESFERAR E - PEBANRENE
B 15 B AR

HifFREAREREETE R BAENRIMRY
SRFBIFTREORE NS  EZ B EE AP EH
% MARAKEHN QRN G AR B EE AN
BARRE-

AR A HE 28 B Bh 5% FE B BB B AO B RE — GF 6O
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(a)

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws and regulations require
companies registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves,
which are to be appropriated from the profit after income tax (after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory
financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory
reserves are created for specific purposes. A PRC company is required to
appropriate an amount of not less than 10% of statutory profits after income tax to
statutory surplus reserves, prior to distribution of its post-tax profits of the current
year. A company may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum of the
statutory surplus reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory
surplus reserves shall only be used to make up losses of the company, to expand
the company’s operations, or to increase the capital of the company. In addition, a
company may make further contribution to the discretional surplus reserve using
its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of the board of directors.

Other reserve represents the accumulated actuarial gains on the Group’s long
service payment scheme for its Hong Kong employees and the excess of the
combined share capital of the companies comprising the Group, after considering
the intra-group elimination, over the consideration given in relation to the
reorganisation.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

conjunction with the accompanying notes.



RERERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

# 22023512 431 H IEFZ For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Bt &E FTHET TAET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
KRETHELEWNELSRE  Cash flows from operating activities
KEEEAMRS Cash generated from operations 29(a) 90,067 90,196
2iRER (B ) FriEH Income tax refunded/(paid) 1,733 (2,195)
RERDELENFRE Net cash generated from operating activities 91,800 88,001
RETZHEEMNRENRE  Cash flows from investing activities
BEVE BELRE Purchase of properties, plant and equipment (13,391) (14,087)
HEWR MEMRED Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
FT{S k318 and equipment 29(b) 1,539 16
BEETEE Purchase of intangible assets (442) (557)
EUFIE Interest received 4,073 541
WE—fHe&EhE Acquisition of a joint venture 19 - (2,000)
REEHA—HAEMRFEETT  Subscription of convertible bonds issued
Z Al R &S by a joint venture (22,000) (22,000)
RITFEFORD (1) Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits 32,370 (32,370)
REESES, (FTA) Net cash generated from/(used in)
FRE investing activities 2,149 (70,457)
RETEEENESRE Cash flows from financing activities
RITIE KPS FRIA Proceeds from bank borrowings 29(c) 910,269 905,886
BRBITHER Repayments of bank borrowings 29(c) (892,480) (880,446)
TRNHEEABHARSES  Payment of principal element of
lease liabilities 29(c) (22,247) (23,322)
ERIRE Dividend paid 26 (5,000) (5,000)
B FLE Interest paid (19,958) (11,519)
MEESTAFRS Net cash used in financing activities (29,416) (14,401)
HERBELEEYIEMFEE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 64,533 3,143
FNHRE LR EEDY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 209,823 207,272
B E R Currency translation differences 216 (592)
FRECRREZEDY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 18 274,572 209,823

il aRenEREEBEWH M —fFE  The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
& e conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 —RERREA

1.1 —REHR

ARl B—ZXBEBERASHEENE
28R AE (196155 M =) (K45
& RIEFT)N2019F1R15BERE
HEdMK I ERRER AR A
s 9 S R b hE A4th Floor, Harbour
Place, 103 South Church Street, P.O.
Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands °

ARAB B —REREZERR A REK
BRal (I AEE ) FTBZRFETE
mnH) SUE RS E - R R AR
BEEE(RBERLE]) RAEE
FE(TREEEE]) (B ERR
Rl

ARRARIIMD E20205F1 A10H RER
BHMAERZMERARER LM
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(TR REMZS -

2 WMBEERERSFTEE

RBERAMBEBRRARANEIEGTR
RER N -BRRBHPI ZFHERRN
FEJMBFEERER-

2.1 A ERE
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AEBFEVBRRIDRIEF LG
firg ([BEEFMAE])RMD
PrEEAEAWHRERED ([FH
MBHREER]) RBBEMF622E
D AP TR AR E B - SR A
R ILIRE 2L - R E (A
BAFEFAER (RAFEFA
B# ) 2 EMEEFLER M&F
TREERDATFEAK.

mETETEMHEREENEEY
BHATRERE TRRS A
MERARBEENEAANEES T
BRI 1F #0812 R H
HEMNE - HBRRAFTHEA T
WK BEREN T ERKFE4HE -

1T GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION

1.1 General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
15 January 2019 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, P.O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of electronic products. The ultimate
controlling shareholders are Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (“Mr.
Raymond Chu”) and Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson (“Mr. Wilson
Chu”) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”).

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10 January
2020.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$000”), unless otherwise
stated.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all the applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified
by the revaluation of financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"), which is carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the directors of the
Company to exercise their judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 RBEEERBEARESSTHE () 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 IR EE (R) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(@ AEECRMAEET REIERTE (@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
]

AREEDF2023F1 A1EHBR
FERE MR EREM T
R RT 2R :

BB LB 1R KRBT
s R EEEERA 25
(1BEIZR)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 (Amendments)

BB G ERIZEST (BFTA)
HKAS 8 (Amendments)

BB ER|FE125 (BFTA)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

BB GETERIFE125E (BRI A)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

BAMBGHREERSD175%
HKFRS 17

BEBT R E R FE1798
(B85T4)
HKFRS 17 (Amendments)

R2022F6 8 HABBTREM
€2022%F 12 & KB IRFHEE
(EEZHE) UBRDIEGD ([1&
TG - 5 B82025F581H
(TEH B ])RER - BRIEEETIE
Pl - EEEERAFEATEST
ST T #9 58 FI 1 AR ST E A R
MEEED ((RESER]) B
TEEERBMEERET Az
BRZENEHERBES ([REB£])
Ao EREE T -REH B
2ENEREIFHOHNHE—@A
B A Fr et B2 E A L -

The Group has applied the following new and amended
standards for the first time for their annual reporting period
beginning 1 January 2023:

BEBR KR

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SRIEEZIER

Definition of Accounting Estimates

B -RPMELHREERARMARZELTEHRE
Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from
a Single Transaction

BB R — 5 - XEREB AR

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

R A )

Insurance Contracts
BEUEHREERIFE175R 2 185]
Amendments to HKFRS 17

In June 2022, the Hong Kong Government enacted
the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
(the “Amendment Ordinance”) which will be effective
from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Under the
Amendment Ordinance, any accrued benefits attributable
to the employer’s mandatory contributions under mandatory
provident fund scheme (“MPF Benefits”) of an entity would
no longer be eligible to offset against its obligations on long
service payment (“LSP”) for the portion of the LSP accrued
on or after the Transition Date. There is also a change in the
calculation basis of last monthly wages for the portion of
the LSP accrued before the Transition Date.

B FERIZERBR AR
" X202;; £ 1 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 WEEEREARSEBER (&)

21 mAEE (&)
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@ AEBECRMNIRTREBITE

A (%)

R2023F1A1HEA NEEER
EB e ERI 1957593 (b)EXHY
AITRER A ([ATEERE])
BRI RS S ARIIER
ElR B 3 DUR A BB R 7% 12
L BR RS /9 B ER R 75 A S ©

MR2023F7H BESETAIAEHE
mIEEERAE: -EREK
EMH R EET 2] ([#5])) -
HEBEREEEINSHEE
IRLRAMT ¥R 153 - 5z 55| FRA
EBRIEPIEHRE ERETER
WER 2 JITRE R ETR [

BERHRETE

AEED EEIES ERE S
KR TBEAATERS A I
RIBEEBEFERE1955593()
B BEEREREMNBRELERS
AR ERESERBERE KE
MEESHARRIERBHR-
TBEAAITERREE 2
TR E) Al e B B BT RS
RAEHERHAZBEARERR
ERT BB EE (BNE 22022
FR2A3IBLEFE)NEREE
EAEFEE N - B =2022412 A31
HRERZAEN R ELTE
A+ i A S HA ) B A7 U aS S
B E MBI e TR o
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(continued)

Prior to 1 January 2023, the Group applied practical
expedient in HKAS 19 paragraph 93(b) (the “practical
expedient”) to account for the offsetable MPF Benefits
as deemed employee contributions to reduce the current
service costs in the period in which the related services
were rendered.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” (the “Guidance”) which
provides clarified and detailed guidance on the accounting
considerations relating to the abolition of the offsetting
mechanism. The Guidance clarified that following the
enactment of the Amendment Ordinance, LSP is no longer
a ‘simple type of contributory plans’ to which the practical
expedient had been intended to apply.

By following the Guidance, the Group has therefore
changed its accounting policy and ceased to apply the
practical expedient and reattribute the deemed employee
contributions on a straight-line basis from the date when
services by employees first lead to their benefits in terms of
the LSP legislation in accordance with HKAS 19 paragraph
93(a). This change in accounting policy upon the cessation
in applying the practical expedient may result in a catch-
up adjustment for past service costs and a corresponding
increase in the Group’s LSP obligations in the year of
enactment of the Amendment Ordinance (i.e. year ended
31 December 2022). The cumulative effect of recognising
this adjustment as of 31 December 2022 was not material
and hence no adjustment was made to the beginning
retained earnings, or other component of equity.



RE MR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
2 RBEEREAGETHE (&) 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 mREE ()
(@) A5 ERA 3T RS T

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group

A (&)

BEGFERE125 (BETA)
PSR E 2 7] ¥ 1) 46 M AR B X
HEERERY R AU E R E
ENRZGERAELERE-ELBT
BERARABANBEERRZRERD
ERXG WHKFEHABBINEILE
MREENAE-

ZIERT N ARANEZINHKT
R 2 BRBEENR
Zeltoh BEREERT LR
RFRESHEEREEENEE
B EAE R R P B A HIR & R AR
TR ERBARTERBEE (JA
HRAARECASR) REE
HMIAAE -

HE2022F12 A31 B #RZEF
BHENAFETTEN QL E
HHTB RS R
FXEB 7 fEH FA %

RNZ LR MAEEET R &
HAKENE A BREKREMNE

By 488
o

(continued)

The amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes require
companies to recognise deferred tax on transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of
taxable and deductible temporary differences. They will
typically apply to transactions such as leases of lessees
and decommissioning obligations, and will require the
recognition of additional deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The amendment should be applied to transactions that
occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented. In addition, entities should recognise
deferred tax assets (to the extent that it is probable that they
can be utilised) and deferred tax liabilities at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities.

The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustments
as of 31 December 2022 was not material and hence no
adjustment was made to the beginning retained earnings, or
other component of equity.

The adoption of these new and amended standards did
not have any significant impact on the Group’s accounting
policies.

B FERIZERBR AR
" X202;; £ 1 1 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 WEEEREARSEBER (&)

21 mREE (&)
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(b) 1 REREBERAK ST ER
&3

THIEIERT R M2 R 2023 F
1TATERB 2T BEEE BB
i) A A Ak B P 4 K £ B IR B R
4N :

R ERE1H (BRI R)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

RS ENE1H (BRI A)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BBMBREEAE 65 (BF]A)
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

BEBRRBESTR (KEFT)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)

RO ENEI MR B AU
HEEAF7H (BETA)
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

BB ERE215 (BFTA)
HKAS 21 (Amendments)

BRI BmELNF105 R
BEEGTEAE285 (BFIA)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

AR BIR IE AP % F RIS RT £ R
LRBRNRXERENEE 1)
FREWMBMZFEIATEHA
R BE AR R A B R
BEX¥E-

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted by
the Group

The following amended standards and interpretation have
been issued but are not effective for the Group's financial
periods beginning 1 January 2023 and have not been early
adopted by the Group:

RUT BHR
ZERABRZ

B HBEX
Effective for
accounting period
beginning on or after

BEDEAREIFRD

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

MERBZIFFRBAE

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

ERHENELZHEERRE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

ABHRR 2 2 - ERAHBERERBEEKEZ
BEHERZ DR

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayments on Demand Clause

HEERE 2
Supplier finance arrangements

Rz A R s
Lack of Exchangeability

REEHHBENAREEREZHNEE
HESTE

Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

2024F1A1H
1 January 2024

2024F1A1H
1 January 2024

2024F1A1H
1 January 2024

202451 H18

1 January 2024

2024%1A1H
1 January 2024

202551 A1R
1 January 2025

N

STET

To be determined

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these amended standards and interpretation upon
initial application and has concluded on a preliminary basis
that these are not expected to have a significant impact on
the Group’s financial position and results of operations.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies

2.2.1Subsidiaries

(a)

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(i)  Business combination

Except for the reorganisation upon listing, the
Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2.1Subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

Consolidation (continued)

(i) Business combination (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability are recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amounts of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the profit or
loss.
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2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2.1Subsidiaries (continued)
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(b) Separate financial statements
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Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.2.2Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor,

rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in
consolidated statement of financial position.

(a)

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from joint venture are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2.2Joint arrangements (continued)

(@) Equity accounting (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in this entity. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.2.7.

When the Group ceases to equity account for an
investment because of a loss of joint control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)
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220268 28 (&) 2.2.2Joint arrangements (continued)
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(@) Equity accounting (continued)

MG ZhENE S NTH If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
FrEERBIIERBFEE associate is reduced but joint control or significant
EHEXERTE SN AE
BEDE M 2 U R TR R
TRIRLAA BN ERH
\iﬁﬁﬁﬁn (a@Em) - appropriate.

influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where

22370 WMEHE 2.2.3Segment reporting

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segment, has been identified as the Chief
Executive Officer (the “CEO”) who makes strategic
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Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2.4Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transaction. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a net basis within “other losses, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities held at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2.4Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

The results and financial positions of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that consolidated statement of
financial positions;

e income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in foreign
operations are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified to
profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2.5Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying
amounts or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs, net of their residual value, over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years
Plant and machineries 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years
Right-of-use assets Over the lease term
Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of lease term

and useful life of 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in profit
or loss.
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2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)
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System software

Acquired system software licences are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised using straight-
line method over the shorter of licence period and their
estimated useful lives of three years.

2.2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group
of assets (cash generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

2.2.8 Financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
either through other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(a)

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2023

Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and reward of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(0)

Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends

on the Group’s business model for managing the asset

and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The
Group classifies its debt instruments to be measured at
amortised costs and FVTPL.

(i)  Amortised cost

(i)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised
cost and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.

FVTPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured at
FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other losses in the period in which it
arises.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amounts reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2210 Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost are
subject to HKFRS 9’s expected credit loss model. The Group
assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables from third parties and related parties,
the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the trade receivables
from third parties and related parties. The Group has
assessed the expected credit loss by considering historical
default rates, existing market conditions and forward-
looking information.

For other receivables, the Group measures the impairment
as either twelve months expected credit losses or life-
time expected credit losses, depending on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of the
other receivables has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses.
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2211 Derivative financial instruments
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Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values. Changes in the fair value
of derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

Derivative financial assets are classified as current assets
if they are expected to be realised within 12 months after
the balance sheet date. Derivative financial liabilities are
classified as current liabilities if they are due to be settled
within 12 months after the balance sheet date.

2212 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

2213 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw material, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash at banks and cash on hand.

2215 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.2.16 Trade, bills and other payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and bills payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in interest expense over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)
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General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amounts can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2220 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted

by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable

to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a)

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2023

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2220 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amounts
and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2221 Employee benefits

(a)

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the
end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position if the
entity does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting
period, regardless of when the actual settlement is
expected to occur.

Defined contribution plans

The Group pays contributions to state-managed
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.



RE MR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 WMANEERBERSTBER (&)

22E KREFTHEE (#)
LNEEER (&)

(e)

RHIRG 2

REFZEERGD  AKE
AREETERATRILEER
BEREEAENRARS
EFENRBRREMNE T
R AEBAY MBE TR
e R AR 75 1 AJ B ER B K 2R 4R
il

ZEENRABEAEMLESR
RAERF & B EHER(E
I HORAR 5 AN & B AR AR5
RitmgEm (BRAKEE
HEER) RBRXBEBHK
FINEESESR (RBHA
HABEEZBHAESE)
REBEEBZER K -ZL
ERANZEHKETINER
H e {6 9 B2 5% 52 48 A =+ &1 4
RZz&shARE-

EFatmlaRkBERNR
HAR % & 51 81 10 BN HA AR 75 K
X RRAFERERGE
ERRMRESE EMEM
BHEE ERLEE - BE
RISEABIR R4 & 2 E UK
BmRER-MERANTIHE
HIREEEEZEARERR
RAEAEMG -RELRM
HAENBERBEUANBER
REOBBEREHMNE M
EHEEAEREE MR
Kt Ace

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2221 Employee benefits (continued)

(e) Long service payments

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

The Group’s net post-employment benefit obligation
in respect of long service payments to its employees
in Hong Kong upon cessation of their employment
in certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefits
that the employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit
credit cost method, discounted to its present value and
reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s
retirement schemes that are attributed to contributions
made by the Group. The discount rate is the yield at
each balance sheet date of Hong Kong Government's
Exchange Fund Notes which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related liability. The
expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment using the same accounting
methodology as used for defined benefit plans.

The current service cost of the long service payment
scheme, recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income reflects the increase in
the long service payment’s obligation as a result of
employee service in the current year, benefit changes,
curtailments and settlements. Past-service costs are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. The interest cost is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance
of the long service payment’s obligation. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustment
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to equity in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2221 Employee benefits (continued)

(f)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either: terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed formal
plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.

2222 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s activity.
Revenue is shown net of returns and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the
period between the transfer of the promised goods to the
customers and the payment by the customers exceeds one
year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of
the transaction prices for the time value of money.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the consolidated statement of
financial position as a contract asset or a contract liability,
depending on the relationship between the Group’s
performance and the customer’s payment. A contract asset
is the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods
that the Group has transferred to a customer. Incremental
costs incurred to obtain a contract, if recoverable, are
capitalised and presented as assets and subsequently
amortised when the related revenue is recognised.
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2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2222 Revenue recognition (continued)
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If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right
to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers the promised goods to the customer, the
Group presents the contract as a contract liability when the
payment is received or a receivable is recorded (whichever
is earlier). A contract liability is the Group’s obligation
to transfer the promised goods to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been met
for the Group’s activity as described below:

Sales of goods

Sales of goods transferred at a point in time are recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being when the
Group has delivered the products to the customers and the
customers have accepted the products, the customers have
full discretion over the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customers’ acceptance of
the products.

2.2.23 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

2224 Leases

The Group leases various properties and plant and
machinery. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of three months to five years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain various terms
and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2224 Leases (continued)

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets (included in
properties, plant and equipment) and the corresponding
liabilities at the date of which the respective leased asset
is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate;

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate.
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Right-of-use assets are measured at costs comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs; and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. The
useful life used for the assets” depreciation purpose is:

Properties Over the lease term

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases for
properties, plant and machinery with a lease term of less
than 12 months. Low-value assets comprise machinery with
value below HK$5,000.

2225 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the years in which the dividend is approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

BEEFIZERER AR
X202;; £ 1 3 7
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2226 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to expenses are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the
expenses that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of properties,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies

This note provides a list of other potentially material accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.3.1 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amounts of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then
be recognised as a provision.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

3.1 Market risk

3.1.1Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the Chinese
Mainland and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
the United States dollar (“USD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations, which are denominated
in these currencies.

The Group also manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and may enter into foreign exchange
contracts to manage foreign exchange risks. As at 31
December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no outstanding
forward foreign currency contracts.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, if USD had
strengthened/weakened by 0.5% against HK$, with all
other variables held constant, profit before income tax for
each year would have changed mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of USD denominated

HEZEYW BHEWKZE cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade and
2 FE AN 5RIA N Ho Al FE A /TAIEE’\JM\ other payables.
PE U an A o
2023 2022
FTHET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EJ IV Vv USD/HK$
BR BT A3 15 A& A Profit before income tax
#gm, Omd) increase/(decrease)
—FHE0.5% — Strengthened by 0.5% 1,618 1,799
—i2180.5% — Weakened by 0.5% (1,618) (1,799)

BFERERERAR
20235 %%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Market risk (continued)

3.1.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest
rate risk is mainly attributable to its cash at banks and
bank borrowings with floating interest rates. Details of the
Group’s cash at banks and bank borrowings have been
disclosed in Notes 18 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, if interest rates on
cash at banks and bank borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all variables held constant, profit
before income tax for the year ended would have been
approximately HK$90,000 (2022: HK$166,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expenses
on the bank borrowings netted with interest income on the
cash at banks.

3.2 Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash at banks,
trade and other receivables and financial asset at FVTPL. The
carrying amounts of each financial asset represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Risk management

The Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers.

The Group’s cash at banks were deposited with high quality
financial institutions. Therefore, the Group does not expect any
losses arising from non-performance by these counterparties.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, 49% (2022: 48%) of
the Group’s revenue was derived from its top five customers.
As at 31 December 2023, 51% (2022: 61%) of the total trade
receivables were due from the Group's top five customers.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

Risk management (continued)

(@) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss models:

e trade receivables from third parties

e other financial assets carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. Future cash flows
for each group of receivables are estimated on the basis
of historical default rates, adjusted to reflect the effects
of existing market conditions as well as forward looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis

Trade receivables with dispute or known insolvencies
are assessed individually for impairment allowances and
are write-off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators of insolvencies include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group and a failure to make contractual payments.

BEEFIZERER AR
X202;; £ 141
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

Risk management (continued)

(@) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis

Remaining trade receivables without known insolvencies
are collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer and its ageing
category, and applying the expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are estimated on the basis
of historical credit losses experienced, adjusted to reflect
the effects of existing market conditions as well as forward
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivable.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously write-off are credited in
profit of loss.

Other financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group’s other financial assets carried at amortised cost
include other receivables in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The impairment loss of other financial
assets carried at amortised cost is measured based on the
twelve months expected credit loss. The twelve months
expected credit loss is the portion of lifetime expected
credit loss that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within twelve months after the
reporting date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will
be based on the lifetime expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, management
considered the credit risk of other receivables to be low
as counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The
Group has assessed that the expected credit losses for
the other receivables were immaterial under 12 months
expected loss method. Therefore, the loss allowance
provision for these balances was close to zero and no
provision was recognised.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

Risk management (continued)

(@) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial asset at FVTPL
For convertible bonds that are measured at fair value
through profit or loss, credit risk has been considered in
the fair value measurement of the investment in convertible

bonds.

The loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 reconciles to the opening loss allowance as

YRR follows:

B 5 EIRRRIE

Trade receivables

FHETT

HK$’000

202251 A1 8 &8k Balance as at 1 January 2022 1,842
VEREE 1] Provision for impairment 6,541
2022512 A31H &tk Balance as at 31 December 2022 8,383
72023F1 818 &% Balance as at 1 January 2023 8,383
Rk (B 75 g [ Reversal of provision for impairment (672)
1B B S 3 Write-off of provision for impairment (1,305)
72023F12 A31 8 & Balance as at 31 December 2023 6,406

BEEFIZERER AR
X202;; £ 1 43
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

Risk management (continued)
(@) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial asset at FVTPL (continued)

On such basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 was determined as follows for trade receivables:

EMT
R2023F12A318 As at 31 December 2023
BHEEE On collective basis
RHEEX Expected loss rate
REeE Gross carrying amount
BiRES Loss allowance provision
BIEFIEE On individual basis
HHERE Expected loss rate
REeE Gross carrying amount
BRI Loss allowance provision
At Total
FEHEREX Expected loss rate
REEE Gross carrying amount
BEERA Loss allowance provision

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2023
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

Risk management (continued)

TRMEERE (&) (a) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
BRFEAAED L EHBEE Financial asset at FV'TPL (continued)
(/%
B H190H B E BEF
AR 365H W E #BEt
Up to 90 91 to 365 Over
days days 1 year
past due past due past due Total
FHT THT FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2022512A31H As at 31 December 2022
HHRFEE On collective basis
RHERX Expected loss rate 0.3% 3.6% - 0.3%
RHAE Gross carrying amount 362,035 7,465 = 369,500
BRERE Loss allowance provision 968 265 - 1,233
ZIEFIEE On individual basis
TR R X Expected loss rate = 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
REAE Gross carrying amount - 4,393 2,757 7,150
B Loss allowance provision - 4,393 2,757 7,150
5 Total
HHERE Expected loss rate 0.3% 39.3% 100.0% 2.2%
REBE Gross carrying amount 362,035 11,858 2,757 376,650
EEEE Loss allowance provision 968 4,658 2,757 8,383

BEEFIZERER AR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the shorter
and longer term.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$274,572,000 (2022:
HK$209,823,000), that are expected to be readily available to
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources including
orderly realisation of short-term financial assets, receivables and
certain assets that the Group considers appropriate. Long term
financing including long-term borrowings are also considered
by the Group in its capital structuring. The Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient bank
balances, committed credit lines available and interest bearing
borrowings which enable the Group to continue its business for
the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total undrawn bank
facilities amounted to approximately HK$101,232,000 (2022:
HK$155,452,000).

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which is based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date in which the
Group can be required to pay:

BRAMERERN
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARERME —&R —ERf st
Repayable Less than Between
on demand Tyear  1and>5 years Total
TET TET TR TER
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000
M2023%12A31R At 31 December 2023
BHEMNTE Trade payables = 249,755 = 249,755
HtERZUERESTER  Other payables and accruals - 132,819 - 132,819
MEEE Lease liabilities = 23,644 72,217 95,861
RITEK Bank borrowings 293,955 = = 293,955
JE S BRB  R150R Amount due to a related company - 171 - 171
293,955 406,389 72,217 772,561

1 46 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

AHRBRRTR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARBNEER —&R —ERf st
Repayable Less than Between

on demand Tyear  1and5 years Total
TEL THT TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

120225124318 At 31 December 2022
8P RENFE Trade payables - 332,591 - 332,591
HitER s EREER  Other payables and accruals - 116,932 - 116,932
REAE Lease liabilities - 14,478 27,124 41,602
ENER Bills payables - 3,614 - 3,614
RITER Bank borrowings 277,508 = = 277,508
FE SRR 2 R FUR Amount due to a related company - 338 - 338
277,508 467,953 27,124 772,585

JA4EARER

AEEEREANABRERELE
BRELEMEE S URRRERE
- FESRBAE BN SEARE M
I M B BRAE Y B AN AE R DARUE & AR
o

RERIABELAER AEELE
R BRIKAN B RS E  MARR
BREENYHEEEREER -

AEEZRBEEEHBENL REX®
BR BB EINIRITHER B EARE
RE M BEARRATRAY A B RER - R
2023F N2022F12A31HEEFE
HBERLENT

3.4 Capital management

The Group'’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amounts of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total debt to total
capital ratio. Total debt represents bank borrowings. Total capital
represents total equity, as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The total debt to total capital ratios at 31
December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

2023 2022

FTHET THET

HK$'000 HK$'000

#ER Total borrowings 292,603 275,340
B Total equity 150,293 156,035
BEBEHBEENREX Total debt to total capital ratio 1.9 times 1.8 times

HE2023F12A31B ILFE BB &E
HREARL R A FBRHRIRITER
HENFTER ©

The increase in total debt to total capital ratio during the year
ended 31 December 2023 was mainly due to the increase in
bank borrowings.

BEEFIZERER AR
X202;; £ 147
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5 Fair value estimation

The below table analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2023 by level of the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The

level of inputs is categorised into three levels within a fair value

hierarchy as follows:

F1EL: HABEHIBENERETS Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
MRE (REHE) o identical assets or liabilities.

FEH: VIEMABIERNRE: Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within
MR BB (BIER) B level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
(BREER)BRNEE either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
o B ER AR - is, derived from prices).

FIBAR:  WIHRAIEERNTISHRED Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
BENBERNHASE (B on observable market data (that is, unobservable
AR ARE) - inputs).

E1ER E2ER EIBR st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
THERT TR THER THET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2023512A31H At 31 December 2023

BRAFEFABRZZEMEE Financial asset at FVTPL

—JEEmARRES — Unlisted convertible bonds = = 1,730 1,730
Foy Total = = 1,730 1,730
EAN=E A =F FIER 4Bt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
THET TET FHET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2022%12831H At 31 December 2022

BRAFEFABZZEMEE Financial asset at FVTPL
—JE LM ES — Unlisted convertible bonds 5 S 9,094 9,094
wat Total = - 9,094 9,094

FA-RBEERFEFERE 2R
3B A BmEEHL -

1 48 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for recurring

fair value measurements during the year.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5 Fair value estimation (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

(level 3)

The following table summarises the quantitative information
about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair

e value measurements:
ATABERBARE
¢RIA fEER M TABRBARE HERFEZBE
Financial Valuation Relationship of unobservable
instruments technique Unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
AT RES PRBERE WEX 2455% MREHS DFESE
(20225 :18.79%)
Convertible bonds  Discounted Discount rate 24.55%  The higher discount rate,
cash flow (2022: 18.79%) the lower the fair value

REFEN MG ATREE 5%
(20225 : 50%)

Estimated probability of 5%
operational subsistence (2022: 50%)

4

REGFEOAELELER

AFEEE

The higher probability of
operational subsistence,

the higher the fair value

RBERR LAXREREZ SR

BEMBIAEMGE:.

Valuation of the above financial asset held by the Group
as at the end of the reporting period was performed by an

independent valuer.

BFERERERAR
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

4.1 Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period.

4.2 Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong Kong
and the Chinese Mainland. Significant judgement is required in
determining provision for income taxes. There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred income tax assets and tax expense in the periods in
which such estimate is changed.
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ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
4.3 Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group'’s historical default rates, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. The identification of impairment of receivables requires
the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment of
receivables recognised in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.

4.4 Valuation of financial asset at FVTPL

The Group considers various factors, such as the losses
incurred by the bonds’ issuer since its incorporation, its net
liabilities position and liquidity at 31 December 2023, the
extent of realisation of business plan in prior years to estimate
the expected future cash flows under different scenarios and
the discount rates used in determining the fair value of the
convertible bonds as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. Such
valuation requires the use of judgment and estimates.

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group is
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of electronic
products.

The CODM has been identified as the CEO of the Company. The
CEO reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CEO has determined the
operating segment based on these reports.

The CEO considers the Group’s operation from a business
perspective and determines that the Group has one reportable
operating segment being the manufacturing and sales of electronic
products.

B FERIZERBR AR
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5 WEkoEER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
THAHERBEE N EFNGTE2FEHE The CEO assesses the performance of the operating segment based
B EHYRIE o on a measure of revenue and gross profit.
HZE2023F K2022F12 A31HIEFE K During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the
EENRAERSKEEREII VAL Group’s revenues were from contracts with customers and were
WRAE—BREZER - gER SRR recognised at a point in time. Please refer to Note 2.2.22 for details
TR ERELMME2.2.22 of accounting policies on revenue recognition.
@ XEFEEZF (HEJNER A (@) Revenue from major customers who have
EEAWRZTMNI0%R L E)B individually contributed to 10% or more of the
U 2= total revenue of the Group
2023 2022
FE T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEPA Customer A N/A* 38 F 143,251
EFB Customer B N/A* 8 R * 158,796
EPC Customer C 191,074 136,334
=FD Customer D 142,720 N/A* 7 i A *
* MEEEFRATEELEIRASER *  The corresponding customers did not contribute over 10% of the total
WS B10% ° revenue of the Group for the denoted years.
(b) BREFHHEBNEE S DB (b) Segment revenue by customers’ geographical
= location
AREBZMWBMNE (ERRXNUEBE The Group’s revenue by geographical location, which is
E) SRS determined by the delivery location, is as follows:
2023 2022
TR THTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
> United States 460,323 496,838
FEREE Philippines 228,058 197,914
ERW Ireland 87,655 129,922
It Switzerland 83,473 45,026
BRI Malaysia 70,087 93,247
BB Hong Kong 54,610 56,669
2= g &f Mexico 54,040 75,848
R B AT Chinese Mainland 53,188 39,239
ET United Kingdom 31,153 89,770
= Germany 30,363 33,826
Gl | Netherlands 20,272 18,785
i Norway 9,169 9,362
Ht Others 44,799 49,103
1,227,190 1,335,549

1 52 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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5

(0 EHREEBEHE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(c) Details of contract liabilities

2023 2022
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B AR (HE250) Contract liabilities (Note 25(a)) 12,495 25,354
k=3 Notes:
() AHABEMRTERNEHEREZET (i) Contract liabilities represent advanced payments received for orders
BE O RIEE P WA AR R from the customers for goods of which the control has not yet been
transferred to the customers.
(i) TFRINIRNA RS HERIL RLEE S L (ii) The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the
EEAHENNRSRE: current reporting period relates to carried forward contract liabilities:
2023 2022
TR FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
SRAFNEHNBEERZ Revenue recognised that was included
B R ES in the contract liabilities balances at
the beginning of the year 25,354 61,161
(i) RBITEHAEE (iii) Unsatisfied performance obligation

720234 }2022412 A318 - NEE 14
KBITHEBRAOEKHRE RIEH
BRRE—FME40 At RIEEHH
BHREEBEIHNEAERER 25t

BE DEEZERBTENERTHR
SERIL AR -

d ZUBNEASTNHERBEE

R2023F 202212 A318 - A& &
R EERE (ELERBEERS
b T EBRIN) AL A TR :

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all performance obligations not
yet satisfied by the Group were from contracts with original expected
duration of less than one year. Therefore, as permitted by the relevant
practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied performance obligations was not disclosed.

(d) Non-current assets by geographical location

The total amounts of non-current assets, other than deferred tax
assets and financial instruments of the Group as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 were located in the following regions:

2023 2022

FTET FHEIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

E3 Hong Kong 5,769 9,115
A B A Chinese Mainland 124,081 82,758
129,850 91,873

BFERERERAR
20235 %%
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6 EHEETHEX 6 EXPENSES BY NATURE

SABHEKREK HERDHEMAXUAKRITHR Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses
XM STET and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:
2022
FHET
HK$’000
Fr A R A7 Raw materials used 941,990
EERAAA (KizEs) Employee benefit costs (Note 8) 230,199
e (M&E12) Depreciation (Note 12) 39,250
By (FY5E13) Amortisation (Note 13) 791
BEEMEREESHNEHREE Short-term leases in respect of properties
(Mt3E21(c)) and car parks (Note 21(c)) 825
B KRARREAS Electricity, water and utility expenses 10,104
HEMERAX Sales commission expenses 9,346
FEM Consumables 6,375
BENKH Freight and custom declarations 13,035
HENRE Repair and maintenance 1,925
H b 18 Other taxes 7,772
BEXNHAE Professional and consultancy fees 6,655
MAEFRXL Office expenses 1,784
=AD& Auditor’s remuneration
— 1% B AR 7 - Audit services 2,311
— R BRTS — Non-audit services 725
RITFEE Bank charges 1,772
REx Insurance 2,102
AfE Telecommunications 977
FEREE (H5E17) Provision for inventories (Note 17) 1,583
ERE Travelling 1,171
B THHE Staff recruitment 3,006
BX Donation 522
Hity Others 8,195
HERA - $HE R #HF A Total cost of sales, selling and
RATH A X 4858 distribution expenses and
administrative expenses 1,292,415

154
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7 HBREREREMEA
(a) HAFER

7 OTHER LOSSES, NET AND OTHER INCOME

(a) Other losses, net

2023 2022
THET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
PEE 3 W zm Exchange gains 4,315 7,318
MTESmMTAZEER Net realised losses from derivative
S EE financial instruments (2,051) (3,849)
HEYE BB RREN Loss on disposal of properties, plant and
&8 (KisE29(k)) equipment (Note 29(b)) (2,059) (153)
BAFEFABRSEN Loss on fair value changes of financial
TREEZRFE asset at FVTPL (Note 15)
ZE)EE (MEE15) (29,364) (13,090)
(29,159) (9,774)
(b) E il A (b) Other income
2023 2022
THET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
T 70 B Government grants 810 3,278
HAt, Others 6 10
816 3,288
8 EERAAA EBIEEEME 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2023 2022
THET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
IE& %o REA Wages, salaries and bonus 190,933 202,452
RIRNE KA — e KEE Pension costs — defined contribution
(MI¥a) schemes (Note a) 23,067 18,336
AR Termination benefits 1,518 1,599
Efth 8 TE A Other staff welfares 8,027 7,812
HESRNAX Total employee benefit expenses
(BREESFHM) (including directors’ remunerations) 223,545 230,199
BFBREERBR AR
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8 EERAMAL BIEESEELS 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(%
o3t

(@)

~

BAEHA - REMRGE

58

BABEAKAE - REMHKEE

AEBERFETEEEZ2MABHERTES
e ((RESEE] —AHBYIRTAE

I 8 SRE R

2) - REBEBEEEE AE

ErEERZRESRA CERELRIMEATE
E 5 PI) 25%F A mEr 8 e REE
Ko {2 B #5851 R 5039 LA A 1,500/ 7T &
ER-

B RS A] BIOR D SRF A SR -

PER

R BEEERANERRE  ARERT
BARMmEENMNBARAREREENEEE
By R KT EER R - R FEEBRHF
BAMREBAIIEWRE  HBARZAEL
HESEAFLETEDLNHENR B E
E—FEERZZERFIMGRKS FORIKIER
BAEHER X - ZFBRE B HR NG
FEARNENEENZMEREEE:

(b)

EEREHFMAL

HZE2023F12A31B L EE AEBRAR
EYMALTEEMBES 202260 MEE
F) HEME RBEN L2 M DT &
F2023F12A3MBLEFE ENBRT=8A
+ (20225 : =/ A TS 0T ¢

Notes:

(@)

(b)

Pension costs — defined contribution schemes
Hong Kong
Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution schemes

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’ mandatory contributions
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in
future year.

Chinese Mainland

As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group's subsidiary operating in Chinese Mainland contributes to state-
sponsored retirement plans for its employees. Depending on the provinces
of the employees’ registered residences and their current region of work,
the subsidiary contributes certain percentages of the basic salaries of its
employees and has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions
or post retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

the retired employees.
Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
include 2 directors for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 2 directors)
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 33. The
emoluments payable to the remaining 3 individuals for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: 3 individuals) are as follows:

2023 2022

FEx FHT

HK$’000 HK$’000

I& #Hek{ELa Wages, salaries and bonus 5,498 5,121
BAREKAN—REHRKETE Pension costs — defined contribution schemes 54 54
5,552 5,175
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8 EERAAEL BIEESEEL 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING

(&) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Bt (48) Notes: (continued)
b EEESHFMAL (H) (b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)
e EE T : The emoluments fell within the following bands:
AH Number of individuals
2023 2022
MEeE Emolument bands
1,500,001 70 Z2,000,0007% 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 2
2,000,001/ 7T 22,500,000/ 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 1
3 3
B E2023F K2022F12A31B IEF & R&E During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no emoluments were
EffEnEtAER A Efaa s MA LT paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
E(T B & V5 7% N B2 =k 72 N BR 7S £% [0 B ) B2 B as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
A RBERAE(E - loss of office.
9 FREMNAK 9 FINANCE COSTS, NET
2023 2022
FEx FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
IRITFE T BUA Interest income on bank deposits (3,798) (541)
AR E S B A Interest income on convertible bonds (275) (184)
(4,073) (725)
RITEFF B FX Interest expenses on bank borrowings 16,008 9,300
HERBENEMX Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(FHEE21(b)) (Note 21(b)) 3,950 2,219
BERE ] Financecosts ... 0000l 19958 11,519
SFELE A Finance costs, net 15,885 10,794

BEEFIZERER AR
X202;; £ 1 57
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10 FIEHAX 10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

HE2023%2022F12 A31HIEEE - T
FEHERFANGHFTERT & A16.5%
R AT IR -

HE2023F12A31H I FE REBEF
B B A R ZE 1R AR HE TR K2 5% M 1
X¥EH([DEREH]) - HZE2022F
128318 IEFE - A& B BB EER
TR A I LS SR B -

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, Hong Kong
profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s subsidiary
in the PRC was subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a standard
rate of 25%. During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
provision for CIT has been provided as the Group had no assessable
profit in China.

2023 2022
FTHERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000
BN P 15 Bt Current income tax

—BBHEHR — Hong Kong profits tax 1,869 7,550
— R Bl b 2RISR —~PRCCIT 2,368 2
4,237 7,550

BEFEBERE Over-provision in prior year
—BBNFHR — Hong Kong profits tax (124) X
BVERFR 15 1 42 58 Total current income tax 4,113 7,550
EEEH (MaE22) Deferred income tax (Note 22) 127 (3,371)
FTSHiF X Income tax expense 4,240 4,179

—I 58 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10 FREHRAx ()

7K 55 [B B P15 % A it A B9 B IR A Bl 2
FRE R AN 62 B 1O B /B8 2 B) g A O 0
FOREMEENE RSO T

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amounts that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of subsidiaries of the Group as follows:

2023 2022
TERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000
BR PR A5 54 Al A Profit before income tax 5,485 19,313
1R R AR A BT B8 1 B0 A Y Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to
METENTIA profits of the respective subsidiaries 2,253 2,713
UTHEENRIALE: Tax effect of:
BRRTUA Income not subject to tax (698) (656)
AR X Expenses not deductible for
tax purpose 5,534 3,138
PEEIRNTE Effect of PRC withholding tax (1,298) (466)
HEEFHIBE & Research and development tax credit (1,427) (550)
BEFEBEREE Over-provision in prior year (124) =
IR A3 Income tax expense 4,240 4,179
11 BREF 11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

SREARFITREA R AR A A
A5 2 PR DA P B B 47 AR 0 0 AR
FHBGE -

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BZ128318LEE

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
RRAPERFEE AEIEFA Profit for the year attributable to equity
w A (FET) holders of the Company (HK$'000) 1,245 15,134
BT BRI HE Weighted average number of ordinary
(F ) shares in issue ('000) 100,000 100,000
BRREAR REE AR (BAl) Basic and diluted earnings per share
(HK cents) 1.2 15.1

R2022F9A16H ' R RAREF - +RE %
TRRBETEBREME —RARAR
D (TRBES])  -ARETEEE2022F
NRABBLEFEEZERERBF REFK
BRI 2 RhmiETFEEE BRZERD
AHE2022F1 B1HEBER T AGTE -

HRFERLEEXTEINECEETER
B ERIREAR N EE RN 2 I EERE

On 16 September 2022, every twenty issued and unissued ordinary
shares of the Company were consolidated into one share of the
Company (the “Share Consolidation”). The weighted average
number of shares for calculating basic earnings per share and diluted
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been
calculated on the assumption that the Share Consolidation had been
effective since 1 January 2022.

There were no differences between the basic and diluted earnings
per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

BFERERERAR
20235 %%
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12 % -HERZE 12 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BENE HR RER
ERREE kB BORE RERESR RE @i
Furniture,
fixtures
Right-of-use  Leasehold  and office Plant and Motor
assets improvements  equipment  machineries vehicles Total

TEL BT TEL TAL TAL TAL
HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000

#202251R18 At 1 January 2022

s Cost 104,687 44,980 23,949 123,709 2277 299,602
Zith& Accumulated depreciation (76,400) (40,098) (16,590) (74,090) (1991 (209,169)
REHE Net book amount 28,287 4,882 7,359 49,619 286 90,433

HZ202F128318LEE  Year ended 31 December 2022

HRmFE Opening net book amount 28,287 4,882 7,359 49,619 286 90,433
NE Additions 30,900 1353 2,432 9,085 3 43,770
& Depreciation (20,484) (2,021) (2,458) (14,165) (37) (39,165)
& Disposals - - (109 (60) - (169)
EREE Exchange differences 2,431) (234) (377) (2,882) (18) (5,942)
HREEFE Closing net book amount 36,272 3,980 6,847 41,597 231 88,927
R2022%128318 At 31 December 2022

A Cost 127,565 43,437 24,450 123,508 2,117 321,077
2 E Accumulated depreciation (91,293) (39,457) (17,603) (81,911) (1,886) (232,150)
RRFE Net book amount 36,272 3,980 6,847 41,597 231 88,927

HZ2023F12831HLEEE  Year ended 31 December 2023

R FE Opening net book amount 36,272 3,980 6,847 41,597 231 88,927
NE Additions 72,548 1,851 3,371 8,228 320 86,318
Vil Depreciation (23,665) (1,660) (2,182) (12,602) (103) (40,212)
& Disposals - - (260) (3,326) (12) (3,598)
EHEE Exchange differences (1,487) (72) (128) (688) @ (2,379)
HAREHFE Closing net book amount 83,668 4,099 7,648 33,209 432 129,056
#2023%12A31R At 31 December 2023
A Cost 196,766 44,465 26,111 122,934 2,154 392,430
Zithe Accumulated depreciation (113,098) (40,366) (18,463) (89,725) (1,722)  (263,374)
REFE Net book amount 83,668 4,099 7,648 33,209 432 129,056
HZE2023F12A31BIFEE FTEHS During the year ended 31 December 2023, depreciation expense
#912,387,0007% 7T (20224 : 9,446,000/ of approximately HK$12,387,000 (2022: HK$9,446,000) has
70) B AT 2 1 B I #4928,609,000/8 been charged in administrative expense and approximately
7 (20224 : 29,804,000/ 7T ) B A tHE K HK$28,609,000 (2022: HK$29,804,000) has been charged in cost of
NI o sales respectively.

1 60 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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13EBBEEE 13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

R
System Software
F#ET
HK$'000
R202251A1H At 1 January 2022
BN Cost 6,966
RS Accumulated amortisation (6,031)
R FE Net book amount 935
BZE2022F12831H LFE Year ended 31 December 2022
HA V) BR TEFHE Opening net book amount 935
NE Additions 557
N (MizEe) Amortisation (Note 6) (791)
ME 3 ERR Exchange differences (1)
HRBREFHE Closing net book amount 700
72022512H831H At 31 December 2022
B 7R Cost 7,522
REt#E Accumulated amortisation (6,822)
AREFE Net book amount 700
BZE2023F12A31HLEE Year ended 31 December 2023
HAF BRI FME Opening net book amount 700
NE Additions 442
B3 (MsFe) Amortisation (Note 6) (501)
I+ = Exchange differences 4)
HRERERE Closing net book amount 637
R20235F12A31H At 31 December 2023
BN Cost 7,964
R 5T Accumulated amortisation (7,327)
BRTEF B Net book amount 637

HE2023F12A31 B ILFE - #ERA L 4
501,000/% 7T (20224 : 791,000 7) E
RITER X 0k o

During the year ended 31 December 2023, amortisation expense of
approximately HK$501,000 (2022: HK$791,000) has been charged
in administrative expenses.

BEERERARLT |01



e B HmRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 ZERESWEMT A

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

2023 2022
FHET FHTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
cRMEE Financial assets
BATEFABENCRHEE Financial asset at FVTPL (Note 15)
(P &E15) 1,730 9,094
RHEKNAFTENSREE Financial assets at amortised cost
B 5 EUBIE (MFE20) Trade receivables (Note 20) 297,822 368,267
e REAMEYRIE (FE16) Deposits and other receivables
(Note 16) 7,288 8,229
RekReEFEY (M:E18) Cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) 274,572 209,823
RITF (MiEE18) Bank deposits (Note 18) = 32,370
581,412 627,783
cRBE Financial liabilities
RHEEKAFTENSREE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
B S RN (M17523) Trade payables (Note 23) 249,755 332,591
H ot & <t 5018 K e 5T & A Other payables and accruals (Note 25)

(BMf5E25) 132,819 116,932
HEBE (ME21) Lease liabilities (Note 21) 86,650 37,938
FERRIZ (Ff7E24) Bills payables (Note 24) — 3,614
|ITE R (HIEE27) Bank borrowings (Note 27) 292,603 275,340
JEAS BE S A B 5RIE (M9 RE32(a)) Amount due to a related company

(Note 32(a)) 171 338
761,998 766,753
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15 BAFEFTABZNEMEE 15 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL

2023 2022
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BATEFABENCREE Financial asset at FVTPL
— AR ESH (FisE) — Convertible bonds (Note) 1,730 9,094

MisE:

7202243 B22H - AN & B B2 Talentone Technology
Limited ([TTL 1) FT 2 REE W - H bt AEEFE
T RBATTLETTHM AN & 4 %8 544,000,000/
TR R E S - RE AR RBBEIH 2
SERIG o

202283 A22 8 - AN & B LA K {822,000,0007% T
RBE—RATTLRTZ TRRES  WHR2023F
9A12 8 # — R 22,000,000 7T 2 B — #L AT A
ARES o

REIHE A Z 81 55—t R 55 — 4it AT 2 AR (5 55 ] 62
BAEZTIL 20%EZBRD - EL2ERXRER
2023F9ANEMEBE M BRESFZET
BBEXHEEHNAE AEERTITLHIREKE
—HRE-HARRESAEH A ERE2025F
3A248 ([EI#AH]) »

AR E S BB RE R R1%: B RERE
HAESE EFE_HAIRREFRBEEHER
FHA I ERAEZTTL 20%0E 58D ©

BEAVEFABSNEHEAE CZ BN
T

7

Note:

On 22 March 2022, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with
Talentone Technology Limited (“TTL”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to
subscribe two tranches of convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$44,000,000 issued by TTL. The subscription is subject to the fulfillment of the
conditions precedent set out in the subscription agreement.

On 22 March 2022, the Group subscribed the first tranche of convertible bonds
issued by TTL at a consideration of HK$22,000,000 and further subscribed the
second tranche of the convertible bonds amounting to HK$22,000,000 on 12
September 2023.

The first and the second tranches of the convertible bonds can be converted into
a maximum of 20% of equity shares of TTL until the maturity date. With reference
to the announcement made by the Company dated 12 September 2023 in relation
to a disclosable transaction regarding the second tranche convertible bonds, both
the Group and TTL agreed to extend the maturity date of both the first and the
second tranches of the convertible bonds to 24 March 2025 (“Maturity Date”).

The convertible bonds are unsecured, interest-bearing at 1% per annum and
repayable on Maturity Date or convertible into a maximum of 20% equity shares
of TTL from the date of the second tranche of convertible bonds subscription until
the Maturity Date.

The movement of the financial asset at FVTPL is as follows:

2023 2022

FET T

HK$'000 HK$'000

M1 AR At 1 January 9,094 -

N1 Addition 22,000 22,000

FERTFIE Interest accrued 275 184

B U F B Interest received (275) =
WA 2 HE WS RIERZ Fair value changes recognised in

ANEEES (H:E7@) consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note 7(a)) (29,364) (13,090)
M®12H31H At 31 December 1,730 9,094

EHREBETATEFBZ A ERBREZE
FLE AT 553.5 4.4 o &5 88 AB TTEHE ©

The information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining fair value is set out in Notes 3.5 and 4.4. The balance is
denominated in HK$.

BFERERAER AR
- X202;; #H 1 63



RE MRS R M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 ANFHE EREREMERR

16 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

15 RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
TFE T FHT
HK$'000 HK$’000
FEENEAER 2 Non-current portion
e (M5a) Deposits (Note a) 4,969 3,323
WHEYI 2 - BB R SR EETE FIE  Prepayments for acquisition of
properties, plant and equipment 1,858 2,246
6,827 5,569
BV ER & Current portion
TRt RIE Prepayments 14,834 10,500
e (Kiza) Deposits (Note a) 151 249
H At JRE W T8 % AT Wy B 38 (B 751 Other tax receivables and VAT
recoverable 9,287 13,061
H e i kI8 (Fiska) Other receivables (Note a) 2,168 4,657
26,440 28,467
33,267 34,036
Bt 5 Note:
(@ M2023%F K2022F12A31H e R E M fE (@) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of deposits

WA BRE(E B E A FEEE 2 EEH
REERERLE -

and other receivables approximated their fair values. These balances were
unsecured and interest-free.

AEE®ZEE MEMWEWRFAENREE
BIATERFHE:

The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and other receivables
were denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022
FERT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

AR RMB 5,120 3,013
BT HK$ 2,168 5,216
7,288 8,229
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17 78 17 INVENTORIES
2023 2022
FER FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R %} Raw materials 156,254 174,799
£ B Work in progress 18,624 12,276
LIRK am Finished goods 48,950 40,771
223,828 227,846

B E2023F12A31BIEFE - #R
BRIZEFAHEHEKREANEFEE KX
#741,011,933,000/8 7t (20224 :
1,133,753,000/8 7T ) ©

HE2023F12 A31 8 ILFE @ 7 & RE B
# 498,682,000 7T (20224 : 1,583,000/
TR IEas R IR A [$HERKA ] -

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales during the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$1,011,933,000 (2022: HK$1,133,753,000).

Impairment provision for inventories amounting to approximately
HK$8,682,000 (2022: HK$1,583,000) was recognised to profit
or loss and included in “cost of sales” during the year ended 31
December 2023.

1BRERREEEY 18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
2023 2022
TET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITHR Cash at banks 274,181 241,839
FHEBEE Cash on hand 391 354
RITHEERFEES Cash at banks and on hand 274,572 242,193
W IRITER Less: Bank deposits = (32,370)
ReRECEEY Cash and cash equivalents 274,572 209,823
== ERR Maximum exposure to credit risk 274,181 241,839

BFERERAER AR
- X202;'/; #H 1 65



e B HmRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1BRERREEEY (F)

18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

166

RehkBAcEFEBYNEARERERN
EERENATIER:

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows:

2023 2022

FTHERT FHET

HK$'000 HK$’000

ReLREFEY Cash and cash equivalents 274,572 209,823

AEERERBECEEVONREENAT
SR EHE -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022
FHExT FHET

HK$/000 HK$’000

ARK RMB 14,226 10,947
==y usD 257,499 230,320
BT HK$ 1,224 869
Bt ([&oTl) Euro (“EUR”) 1,582 28
EAh Others 41 29
274,572 242,193

RITIRE (BRAHIRR AR 8 = B A Y R17
RN REBEE BRITERMRZFER
HURE -

72022512 A31H ' AEE #15 HIPR B 15
— B ARMBRITFERERFEE3.82% °

MR2023F %2022512A31H - BRE MRS
ZEMRVGEHRER=EAMNRITHE
ROEEmERENFERE-

MR2023F12A8318 AREBEME S KIR
£ HBWH 514,004,000/ 7T (20224 ¢
10,693,000/ 7C) * T AR BIR N AYIRTT -
% & < B 1 P B AP B EAT 28 46 B9 o
VE B Il AR Bl MOE R FT AR IR ©
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Cash at banks except for the bank deposits with initial terms over
three months earned interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposits rate.

As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest rate of the Group's
bank deposits with initial terms over three months was 3.82%.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of cash
and cash equivalents and bank deposits with initial terms over three
months approximated their fair values.

As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounting to approximately HK$14,004,000 (2022:
HK$10,693,000) were deposited with the banks in Chinese
Mainland where the remittance of funds out of Chinese Mainland
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the government of the PRC.
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19 REELRNKRE

M2022F3A8228H KAEBURE
2,000,00078 T UK BB TTL 10%A%#E > TTLE
EREETERXT AERES -BE
EEdtrREAEEEREESAR
MIEHBE M LB H B A HEES - E
b IR EESBEAREELENRE -

REEEENREZZEEHIT

19 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

as an investment in a joint venture.

On 22 March 2022, the Group acquired 10% equity interest in TTL
at a consideration of HK$2,000,000. TTL is principally engaged
in the design, development, and trading of electronic products.
Management has assessed and determined that the Group has
joint control thereon through a board representation and other
arrangements made. Accordingly, this investment has been classified

Movements in the investment in a joint venture are as follows:

2023 2022
TR TET
HK$'000 HK$’000
M1A1H As at 1 January = =
MeEREITE Capital injection to a joint venture - 2,000
BEPEZIEGEE Share of loss of a joint venture = (2,000)
R12A31H As at 31 December - -
S DESS: Details of a joint venture:
E 31
BERER AL B AL P B =R eSS FrERE
Place of business/ % of ownership interest
Name of entity country of incorporation 2023 2022  Measurement method
Talentone Technology Limited &/ 10% 10% #EwA
Talentone Technology Limited ~ Hong Kong 10% 10%  Equity method

BERRREE Summarised statement of financial position

2023%F 20224

12H31H 12H31H

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

FExT FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

(REEX) (REEFEZ)
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

mEh & E Current assets 24,876 20,287
EMENE E Non-current assets 993 1,331
nBAE Current liabilities (22,079) (17,298)
ERBEaE Non-current liabilities (44,000) (22,230)
BEFE Net liabilities (40,210) (17,910)
BERERERARAR
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19 REETENKRE (8) 19 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)
EHRERBE Summarised statement of comprehensive income

B20224
3H22B=E
20224
12H31H

1 EA R

For the

period from

22 March 2022
to 31 December

2023 2022
FE T FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(REEX) (REER)
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
W Revenue - -
e R Depreciation and amortisation (1,062) (806)
F B R Interest expense (297) (225)
KERX Operating expenses (20,588) (37,232)
BiaEE Loss before taxation (21,947) (38,263)
PRIS TR 3 Income tax expense = L
FRAEHEBEERE Total comprehensive loss for the year (21,947) (38,263)
20 ¥ 5 BRI 20 TRADE RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
FE T THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
H 5 EWEIE Trade receivables 304,228 376,650
SRR E R R Less: provision for impairment of trade
(MI5E3.2(a) ) receivables (Note 3.2(a)) (6,406) (8,383)
297,822 368,267
720234 K2022F12 A318 ' B FEWGK As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of trade
HEAREEEE A FEES - receivables approximated their fair values.
AEBEHENEEHN FI521208k T The Group’s sales are made on credit terms ranging from 15 to 120
Zo days.
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20 E 5 EWRE () 20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
R2023F %20225F12 A31H - & 5 W As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the aging analysis of trade
T5 (FIBRRVE ) 1% 3 2 B B BR % 0 AT 40 receivables, net of impairment, based on invoice date, were as
s follows:
2023 2022
FEx THIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
0E90X 0 to 90 days 272,386 307,081
912365K 91 to 365 days 24,430 60,857
365K VA E Over 365 days 1,006 329
297,822 368,267
M2023F12A31H 487,634,000/ T As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables amounting to
(20224 : 156,165,000 JT ) H) & 5 JE W approximately HK$87,634,000 (2022: HK$156,165,000) were past
FIAE 8 BB RORE » due but not impaired.
NEBE R E SN S IE ) BE E E A T 5 The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables were
EH¥EHE: denominated in the following currencies:
2023 2022
FET TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e usD 277,429 357,582
AR® RMB 18,319 10,530
BT HK$ 1,008 146
BT EUR 1,066 9
297,822 368,267
20235 K2022F 12 A3 1B &= EE The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2023 and
B\ A P 2 5 W IE R BRE(E - 2022 was the carrying value of the trade receivables mentioned
NER BN AR (IR G R AR o above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
21 HE 21 LEASES
(@) RERE BT REZNRIE (@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position
SAMBEARRARIRATHEHRBR The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
MR A2 [ME KE following amounts relating to leases and that the balances were
il included in Note 12 “Properties, plant and equipment”:
2023 2022
FER THIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EREEE Right-of-use assets
ES Properties 83,668 36,272

BFERERAER AR
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21 HHE (&)
(@) ?@g%&ﬂ%%ﬁi’%ﬁ%ﬂﬂ’ﬁilﬁ

HE2023F12A31B L FE - AERE
A& E72,548,00058 7T (20224 ¢
30,900,000/ 7T ) °

21 LEASES (continued)

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position (continued)

There were additions to the right-of-use assets amounted to
HK$72,548,000 during the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: HK$30,900,000).

2023 2022
FTHER FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000

HESE Lease liabilities
FERBE D Non-current portion 66,875 24,962
mEE D Current portion 19,775 12,976
86,650 37,938

AEBENHEERBENREETIIE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities were

W= - denominated in the following currencies:
2023 2022
FET FAETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIT HK$ 608 4,049
AR RMB 86,042 33,889
86,650 37,938

(b) RERE 2 H W HE RERHNRE

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

EAEEKERIRIATHEERBER The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the
15 following amounts relating to leases:
2023 2022
FHET TFET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERAEEENEMX Depreciation charge of right-of-use
(FF&EE12) assets (Note 12)
- — Properties 23,665 20,484
HEAERERSN Finance costs on lease liabilities
(FFEE9) (Note 9) 3,950 2,219

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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21 HE (&) 21 LEASES (continued)
(c) NREREREREANTIE (c) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of cash flows
B E2023F K2022%F12A31H EF The total cash outflows for leases during the years ended 31
B -AEEAENARESREWT December 2023 and 2022 were as follow:

2023 2022

FERT THETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

RETHEENRERE Cash flows from operating activities

BRANTRENESHEE Payments for short-term leases
K : in respect of:
—MEREFES* (MfizTe) — Properties and car parks* (Note 6) 730 825

METHEENRESRE Cash flows from financing activities

XHEAEBEZFEBD Payment of interest element of
(HfE9) lease liabilities (Note 9) 3,950 2,219
XNHERBZ A Payment of principal element of
lease liabilities 22,247 23,322
26,927 26,366
* EHESNRIEREBFL HERAM *  Payments for short-term leases were not shown separately, but included
BORRT A B 29 (a) AT 2 51| 48 & EE A A in the line of “profit before income tax” in respect of the net cash
FRE BB BRAEHAENEE generated from operations which were presented in Note 29(a) using
A o the indirect method.
22 JEFEFRIGH 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
AR AR RAEBIEATER : The amounts shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position include the following:
2023 2022
THET FHTT
HK$'000 HK$’000
BEFIAEE Deferred tax assets 4,719 6,453
RIEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities (116) (1,615)
EFETIRE E Deferred tax assets, net 4,603 4,838

BEEFIZERER AR
X202;; £ 1 71



e B HmRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 IRFEFTSH (4E) 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movements on net deferred tax assets were as follows:

BT FHRBAEEZZSHMNT

2023 2022
FHET FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R1A1R8 At 1 January 4,838 1,951
RizEEEEE=ERINER - (ABK)  (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
(FzE10) statement of comprehensive income
(Note 10) (127) 3,371
PE 5 =% Exchange differences (108) (484)
®12H31H At 31 December 4,603 4,838

BE2023F K2022F12A31B IEFE i
ERMBEEEMES) (K& RIKEART
BRDAER AN T :

The movement in deferred tax assets during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as
follows:

B HEEE HIEEE #st
Lease
Provisions liabilities Tax losses Total
FET FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
120221 A1H At 1 January 2022 3,014 7,610 - 10,624
Rize2mElzmR AR  Credited to the consolidated
statement of
comprehensive income 396 2,165 3,146 5,707
M H = HE Exchange differences (238) (634) (219) (1,091)
R2022F12 8318 & At 31 December 2022 and
2023F1H1H 1 January 2023 Sili72 9,141 2,927 15,240
RiEa 2 ElER Credited/(charged) to the
ABR (40BR) consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 1,008 12,856 (2,912) 10,952
PE 5 =&d Exchange differences (79) (386) (15) (480)
M2023F12AH31H At 31 December 2023 4,101 21,611 - 25,712

REFRBEEERABEBRGHZE A
BEEBARRERREFNEEMATEE
2 AR E B ERERR o FR B A BT B A )
R R TR BB A5 0 AL A fE I © 7A20224512
A318 A& BERE N EEEER2027
G fE M 0 2023 202212 A31H » &
EEVEREMERNRERELEHBEE-
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-forwards to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. The tax losses of the subsidiary in
Chinese Mainland will expire in 5 years. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group’s unused tax losses will expire in 2027. The Group did
not have other material unrecognised deferred tax assets as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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22 IRIEFTBH (&) 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
B E2023F £2022512 A31H IEFE - &
ERIB S BB (RAQE KK 85 R B
AR M) T -

The movement in deferred tax liabilities during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022, without taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as
follows:

MEBERE FAEEE KEHRA et
Accelerated
tax  Right-of-use  Unremitted
depreciation assets earnings Total
THET FHIT TET FET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
R20221H18 At 1 January 2022 (505) (6,404) (1,764) (8,673)
Riza 2ER&ER Credited/(charged) to the
AR/ ($08) consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 125 (2,927) 466 (2,336)
P E R Exchange differences - 607 = 607
M2022F12A318 & At 31 December 2022 and
2023F1A1H 1 January 2023 (380) (8,724) (1,298) (10,402)
RiZA2ElER Credited/(charged) to the
AR/ ($08) consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 138 (12,515) 1,298 (11,079)
M E R Exchange differences - 372 - 372
M2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023 (242) (20,867) - (21,109)

HE2023F1283180  AEEH—EF
B B8 A B B9 K 79Ik B F 49 A31,778,00075
70 MEAE AR E 5K B 28 [ W T &
WRIE - FEERGEREEZEE - BEAR
5 R eE 545 &l A B Y /B & Rl 2 IR A% B
R BT ERA LR IRZE
A I ERERIELERIBEAE

A PRC subsidiary of the Group have undistributed earnings of
approximately HK$31,778,000 as of 31 December 2023, which, if
paid out as dividends, would be subject to tax in the hands of the
recipient. Assessable temporary differences exist, but no deferred tax
liabilities have been recognised as the parent entity is able to control
the timing of distributions of dividends from the PRC subsidiary and
is not expected to distribute these profits in the foreseeable future.

BFERERERAR
20235 %%
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23 E5 BNARKE 23 TRADE PAYABLES
2023 2022
FE T FHTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B S RNHIA Trade payables 249,755 332,591
720234F K2022F12 A318  BEFEN K As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the aging analysis of trade
THIZEZ A ERRE ST payables, based on invoice date, were as follows:
2023 2022
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
0E90:K 0 to 90 days 190,030 222,318
912365K 91 to 365 days 46,363 106,608
365K E Over 365 days 13,362 3,665
249,755 332,591
AEBEZEMNZFEMNEREENLTIE The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables were
WE=H(E - denominated in the following currencies:
2023 2022
FTHERT D
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT HK$ 1,423 16,023
=Y usb 110,045 139,867
AR RMB 135,762 166,146
BXTT EUR 2,297 10,151
Hitp Others 228 404
249,755 332,591
MR2023F 2022512 A31H B S EMNK As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of trade
HEEREmEEE QAT ERESE- payables approximated their fair values.
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24 ENRE 24 BILLS PAYABLES
2023 2022
FExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HANE Bills payables = 3,614
R2022F 12 A31H ' BN EHE%ZEE R H As at 31 December 2022, the aging analysis of bills payables, based
RERER DT T on invoice date, was as follow:
2023 2022
FEx TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
=@®A A Within 3 months = 3,614
R2022F12 A31H  ENEZEMNEREEY As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of bills payables
WETTEHEEEE R FERE- were all denominated in HK$ and approximated their fair values.
B EANERE HMENKIBERE 25 CONTRACT LIABILITIES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
sf B A ACCRUALS
@ EHNEE HMuESFERE (@) Contract liabilities, other payables and accruals
&M
2023 2022
FTHERT THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
fEFHE BRI X Accrued employee benefit expenses 20,183 14,442
EEHHERERX Accrued sale commission expenses 3,114 8,097
WY - BB KRR Payables for acquisition of properties,

&~ 3078 plant and equipment 3,059 1,807
BRRE Customer deposits 93,469 76,336
Hih A HIBRETER Other payables and accruals 35,058 31,135
EHB8E (KE50) Contract liabilities (Note 5(c)) 12,495 25,354

167,378 157,171
20234 2022512318 &4 & As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of
B EtEMZREEETERNRT contract liabilities, other payables and accruals approximated
BEEEAFERSE- their fair values.

BEEFIZERER AR
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BENEE HMENKIERE 25 CONTRACT LIABILITIES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

sSTERA (&) ACCRUALS (continued)
@ EHNEE HMENFERE (@) Contract liabilities, other payables and accruals
FTER (&) (continued)
NEE E A R R R EETE A AR The carrying amounts of the Group’s other payables and
HE Y| EEEE: accruals were denominated in the following currencies:
2023 2022
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR RMB 3,844 3,787
e usb 101,322 89,047
BT HK$ 27,653 24,098
132,819 116,932
(b) IEE BT # BY (b) Deferred government grants
2023 2022
FERT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$’000
R1A1H At 1 January = 1,303
FREER Repayment during the year = (906)
BRZE4RE2EKEE Released to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income - (397)
M12A31H At 31 December = i
26 R 2 26 DIVIDENDS
MR2023FE3 A28 BT EE2 e - At the board meeting held on 28 March 2023, the directors of
RAREZEHRKNEZE2022F12 A31 the Company recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HIEFERKRER B &K E®EAK.05%5 HK$0.05 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2022,
JL A& 5,000,000 JT o < B B B & amounting to a total of HK$5,000,000. The final dividend was
B ZE2023F 124310 L FEHNBFHKE reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended
DBE e 31 December 2023.
RKARESWTTEZEEE2023F12 4 The directors of the Company do not recommended the payment of
31 B IEFEIR REALE - a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023.

1 76 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27 RATER 27 BANK BORROWINGS
2023 2022
THET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITER—FERRRIRER Bank loans — secured and repayable
B on demand 292,603 275,340
KT M BRERERBGHNEEEEIT The bank borrowings were repayable, without taking into account
fEskamT the repayable on demand clauses, as follows:
2023 2022
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within 1 year 292,603 270,840
== Between 1 and 2 years - 4,500
292,603 275,340
R2023F 2022512 A31H  RITIERZ As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of bank
FEEEEQNFEESE BAN TERE borrowings approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
&: following currencies:
2023 2022
THET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 259,600 275,340
AR RMB 33,003 =
292,603 275,340
MR2023F12A31H - RITMHERLY As at 31 December 2023, bank borrowings of approximately
292,603,000/ JT (20224 : 275,340,000 HK$292,603,000 (2022: HK$275,340,000) which contain a clause
BT (BEPEs—BER BTERA that gives the lender the unconditional right to demand repayment at
AIER B R ERNEREERN)CDEE any time have been classified in current liability irrespective of the
MBEE THRERASDBERITEL probability that the lender will invoke the clause without cause.
Rz = -
2023FE12 8318  B1TE A hnkE T As at 31 December 2023, the weighted average effective interest
ERFFEE6.8% (20229F :6.4% ) ° rate on bank borrowings was 6.8% (2022: 6.4%) per annum.

BEEFIZERER AR
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27 SRATERK ()

27 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

20234 K%2022F12 8318 REBE T
BITERERBTREDNEBEARAES
MR RAZSEAEERAR AR
RARBEBELAELAAE R - K218
EERABELEELNEAEHA R

ZERTBMENHARBFER KEEL
ERARBELEEFRBFNINERBEZHERR
AR BTANZ IRTT : W EHRMNEER
1B AN R MR E RN R ERF
EAREELEARAEZREZ51%K
HEAAAGE—HRARE-

MR2023F12A8318 MAERTA XL
240,116,000/ JT Y R 1T 18 XM & T 81 7%
A ARIEER (WA BERITI T E sk -
AT ERREE RNFEEE A&E
EEGRITHR K BRB BV BRA
ERITCHEEARBEEZSEREHD

E3Ro

Lt kIR e RIESEEWH274,572,000
I ANEE R B S AR R R R B A K
M2023F12 A31H A ARIBEERITRLE - &
SERALMBRITHEBR TN BHRZHE
ERVENANEBELETMNERTHF
2B o

28 AR IR 4= E

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, certain Group’s bank borrowings
and banking facilities were secured through the undertakings given
by Mr. Raymond Chu, a director and Controlling Shareholder of the
Company, and Mr. Wilson Chu, a Controlling Shareholder of the
Company. The undertakings given by Mr. Raymond Chu and Mr. Wilson
Chu stipulate that for so long as these bank facilities are available to
the Company, Mr. Raymond Chu and Mr. Wilson Chu undertake to (i)
notify the bank before pledging their shares of the Company; if their
shares are pledged, a facility review of the Company will be triggered,
and (ii) at all times collectively maintain at least 51% of the beneficial
shareholding interest in the Company and collectively remain the single
largest shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, certain financial covenants in respect
of bank borrowings of HK$240,116,000 from two banks were not
satisfied and might be immediately repayable should the relevant
banks exercise their right of demand. Subsequent to year-end, the
Group has obtained waiver letters from the banks confirming that
such non-compliance of financial covenants would not trigger their
immediate demand for repayment of these loan balances.

Taking into consideration of the cash and cash equivalents amounting
to approximately HK$274,572,000, the financial position and
operating activities of the Group and the undrawn bank facilities as at
31 December 2023, the Group considers that the non-compliance of
financial covenants under the bank facilities described above did not
have any material adverse impact to the Group.

28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

[ &vig S Q=] HE B& 425 E

Number of Nominal Share

shares value premium

T FHET THT

‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R2022%F1A1H At 1 January 2022 2,000,000 20,000 80,355

Bin& Bt (Mika) Share Consolidation (Note a) (1,900,000) L =
R20229F12H318 » At 31 December 2022,
2023F1H1B & 1 January 2023 and

2023412 A31H 31 December 2023 100,000 20,000 80,355

fif i :

(@ M2022F9F16H  E-+BRARQAE FEIT
RABITEBRE AR A R —BREND

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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29 GEREREBRWEE 29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
@ REEENRE (@) Cash generated from operations
2023 2022
THET FAT
HK$'000 HK$’000
R P 18 84 A0 2 7 Profit before income tax 5,485 19,313
MU TEIBELFAE: Adjustments for:
AW A (FFEE9) Finance income (Note 9) (4,073) (725)
EhE A (FHeE9) Finance costs (Note 9) 19,958 11,519
& (faE12) Depreciation (Note 12) 40,996 39,250
B aH (P7E13) Amortisation (Note 13) 501 791
FEREREE (H317) Provision for impairment of inventories
(Note 17) 8,682 1,583
B S EWRIERME (#E),”  (Reversal of)/provision for impairment
B (BIsE3.2(a)) of trade receivable (Note 3.2(a)) (672) 6,541
HEWE BERZEHEE  Loss on disposal of properties, plant
(Mt3E7@a)) and equipment (Note 7(a)) 2,059 153
—EathtRzREEE Share of loss of a joint venture
(PH=E19) (Note 19) - 2,000
BRATFEFAEZNSRIEE Loss on fair value changes of financial
Z AT EZEFER asset at FVTPL (Note 15)
(MiEE15) 29,364 13,090
BB (FP5E25(0b)) Government grants (Note 25(b)) = (397)
102,300 93,118
EEELEE: Changes in working capital:
— 8 5 KA A N GRIE — Trade and other receivables 70,811 (104,326)
—-FE — Inventories (10,009) 46,001
— B AR 5 2 A RR — Balances with related parties (167) (298)
— B 5 REMBENKIA — Trade and other payables (69,254) 68,673
—ENRE — Bills payables (3,614) (12,066)
— 1B SE B8 48 B — Deferred government grants - (906)
REELNFHRS Net cash generated from operations 90,067 90,196

BEEFIZERER AR
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29 RERESRERME (F) 29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) RizeBEeREXRT HEWE K (b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
% RIBPIISHIABLE disposal of properties, plant and equipment comprised:
2023 2022
FTHERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
& R FE Net book amounts disposed 3,598 169
HEME  BERREBH Loss on disposal of properties, plant
B (ME7@) and equipment (Note 7(a)) (2,059) (153)
HEWH KE RRMHE Proceeds from disposal of properties,
FR15 3038 plant and equipment 1,539 16

(c) MEAEENABHRNT

(c) The reconciliations of liabilities arising from financing activities
were as follows:

HESE BITER
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings
FHIT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
72022F181H At 1 January 2022 32,899 249,900
RERE Cash flows
—IRITE RS FIE — Proceeds from bank borrowings - 905,886
—(EERITER — Repayment of bank borrowings - (880,446)
—XNHEERBZEREHY — Payment of principal element of
lease liabilities (23,322) =
—XNHEERBZMEHY — Payment of interest element of
lease liabilities (2,219) =
—XHRITERZ A EFRAX — Payment of interest expenses on
bank borrowings - (9,300)
HAih3ER ¢ & Other non-cash movements
—-ANEHEEE — Addition of lease liability 30,900
—F B FX — Interest expenses 2,219 9,300
—[EH =% — Exchange difference (2,539) -
A2022F12A31B R At 31 December 2022 and
2023%1H1H 1 January 2023 37,938 275,340
REnE Cash flows
—IRITIE RIS RIA — Proceeds from bank borrowings - 910,269
—BRRITENK — Repayment of bank borrowings = (892,480)
- XfHEEaGBzREES — Payment of principal element of
lease liabilities (22,247) =
—XNHEERBEZMNEHMD — Payment of interest element of
lease liabilities (3,950) =
—XNRITERZMEFX — Payment of interest expenses on
bank borrowings = (16,008)
Hih3ER & E Other non-cash movements
-ANEHERE — Addition of lease liability 72,500 =
—FEMRAX — Interest expenses 3,950 16,008
—[EH =% — Exchange difference (1,541) (526)
%2023%128318 At 31 December 2023 86,650 292,603

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30 T EMB QL EFE

30

7N E2 B 7A2023F M2022F 12 A31H By =
DB ARIEHINMT -BRBBEHPIN T
Al EmENRAEHAESEEERE
7S mAR AR - BB HIFT A R & Bl
ERAE B R FRIAHE - M A L S ERR B

WERET AR T ZERME -

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 and 2022
are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the
Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the
voting rights held by the Group. The locations of incorporation or
registration are also their principal place of business.

FEEBENAEERR
Ownership interest held
by the Group
2023 2022
MR, BT B BRTR
WEBLARERE REABRNER TEFBREEHY EHERE BEER BHEER
Place of incorporation/
registration and Principal activities and Issued and fully Interest Interest
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity place of operation paid up capital held held
EEEG:
Direct interests:
Brilliant Holdings Investments RBRLES: REBRLES 1%
Group Limited ARAT ETREER
Brilliant Holdings Investments BVI; limited liability Investment holding usD1 100% 100%
Group Limited company in BVI
RgEm

Indirect interests:

EFERARAR

Wise Ally Holdings Limited

REBENEXERAA

Dongguan Wise Ally Industrial
Co., Ltd* (REBHENER

BRAA)

BA BRRA
Hong Kong; limited
liability company

hEARAT

The PRC; limited
liability company

REBHEBTEM 100,000 70
Trading of electronic HK$100,000 100% 100%
products in Hong Kong

PR B EE 64,800,000/ 7T
HETTEMR
Manufacturing and HK$64,800,000 100% 100%

trading of electronic
products in the PRC

*  The English translation is for identification purpose only. This company does
not have official English name.

BFERERAER AR
- X202;; #H 1 81
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31 EAREE

RER BRINERKREERBBERE

31 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in relation to the purchases of plant and

NREBAIRIRER

182

Mg s ERFRZIAT machinery contracted for but not yet incurred at the end of the year
was as follows:
2023 2022
THERT THETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEEE S Contracted but not provided for 2,838 507

MR 7T R R A FK RS SR
REURFERNNEMTITEERY
B BEB2ERRKEHRNADMER
AERZFRAE DR ARARED IR
BHREREN UFEREERRNS
R RN T X B HKRES KBS
2] - IR 2 BB 0 o BERE T A LASE (8
ASEAMERE -

ZRC AR IO TR R -

FRNEANEEFERSH) E ZRE S
5

B
Related parties

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCE

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control,
jointly control or exert significant influence over the other party in
holding power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amounts of the investor’s
returns. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control or joint control. Related parties may be individuals
or other entities.

The Controlling Shareholders are disclosed in Note 1.1.

Major related parties that had transactions with the Group during
the year were as follows:

20235 12022512 A31 A BRE BB HR
Relationship with the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2022

KREELE
Mr. Raymond Chu

KEERE
Mr. Wilson Chu

KNERE
Mr. Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton

2tigkat
Mr. Lau Shui Fung

BEEXBRAA

Defond Electrical Industries Limited

Talentone Technology Limited
Talentone Technology Limited

Smartview Investments Limited
Smartview Investments Limited

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2023

ERBER R ANABES
Controlling Shareholder and Director of the Company

PERR AR
Controlling Shareholder

RRBES

Director of the Company

RABES

Director of the Company

P 22 S e SR 4%
Controlled by Controlling Shareholders

BELE

Joint Venture

REERAE]

Ultimate Holding Company
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NBEBMAERZRER (E) 32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCE
(continued)
(a) R 5 2 &6k (a) Balance with a related party
2023 2022
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BES5ME Trade nature
FE Y BARE 2 B RRIR Amount due to a related company
—EEEEERAF — Defond Electrical Industries Limited
([E=e]) (“Defond”) 171 338

20234 202212 A318  fEfS1=
WRIHAESMED EEB 2K

= TA

BERAE+ —EAREE-

NS

120235 2022F 12 A318 » FEfS 12

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the amount due to Defond
was trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within the next twelve months.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the aging analysis of the

IR R E QBRI DT T amount due to Defond, based on invoice date, was as follows:
2023 2022
FET AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
0230k 0 to 30 days 171 338
(b) EEEREE F IR 5 (b) Transactions with related parties

BRRERE ISR R M I D Pt S
4N E Z=20234F 2022512 A31H 1E
FEATRBIEEH BB TEAOE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the following transactions were carried out with
related parties during the years ended 31 December 2023 and

SR F B O AT 2022, at terms mutually agreed by both parties:
BFEXS Continuing transaction
(i) EKBEM® (i) Purchase of goods
2023 2022
FHET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BREERBEMm Purchase of goods from Defond 551 1,818

LFRBEM AR Z I NE SR
M E R IRKET ARARES
RE REXZGTIRAEENA
FEBBRETIREEHHELS
fRFRAETT

The above related party transactions were carried out on
terms mutually agreed between the parties. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, these transactions were
conducted in the ordinary course of business of the Group
and in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements.

BFERERERAR
20235 %%
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REBERE Kimek (&)

(b) HEB TN S (&)
FEXZ (&)

(ii)

(iii)

ERR R A R B E TIRITE K
T AR K

HE2023F 2022912 A318 &
FE BT AEBIRITE AN
FE27 BTk AR A E 2 IR AR R A A
ER {E$E 4

ZRRE RS EFTIM
PRk B 1

AARIERREREEREEBL
HER2023F9H 128 EBTTLRI M R
iR E AP AREBLEAER
TTLE TR A B K ERITE R
A (BN & AT AR B 5 3R B8 1
BERBBRESSAEERNESTE
=R et =R
fE) % 17 i {844,000,0007% 7T &
ETTLHRMD (A REFHBEKE
BEEBAERFATITLE FHTR
MIBELZ30%AMR) o AE R
RER (HRB8E) TTLARE
HA B #1548 o 3 00 B 8 52023
FIOR20B 2 A AEMEE - £
MR IE AR T A BEIRTTLA B
HAZEETRRERENEER
SERFEEHNTBRRESHHARE

() TEEEEHMN

184
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCE
(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

Continuing transaction (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Letter of undertaking given by controlling shareholders in
respect of certain Group’s bank borrowings

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
certain bank borrowings of the Group were secured by a
letter of undertaking from the Controlling Shareholders of
the Company as set out in Note 27.

Put option agreement entered between the controlling
shareholder and a joint venture

Mr. Raymond Chu, the Controlling Shareholder and Director
of the Company, entered into a put option agreement with
TTL on 12 September 2023 in which Mr. Raymond Chu
grants the right to TTL to require him to purchase new shares
of TTL at the exercise price of HK$44,000,000 during the
exercise period (i.e. a period of fourteen business days
from the Maturity Date exercisable upon the redemption of
the outstanding principal amount of the convertible bond
pursuant to the CB Subscription Agreement) to the extent that
the Group and Mr. Raymond Chu shall together hold 30% of
the total number of shares issued by TTL. For the put option
to be effective, among other things, TTL has to maintain
operational subsistence at the Maturity Date. As disclosed in
the supplemental announcement dated 20 September 2023,
the rationale of the above arrangement is to ensure that
TTL would have financial means to repay the outstanding
principal amount of convertible bond held by the Group
upon the maturity date.

(c) Key management compensation

Compensation paid or payable to key management for employee

services is shown below:

2023 2022

FTHERT FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

IBERF® Wages and salaries 19,291 18,041
RIKEA—FREMMAETE]  Pension costs — defined contribution plan 144 144
19,435 18,185

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2023
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IBEENFRZRESR 33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

@ EEM<E (a) Directors’ emoluments
BEEENEMIINWT The remuneration of each director is set out below:
ExY
BHR Rt
ik #¢  BERL  ENAE W% RLEA &3t
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary and benefitsin ~to pension  Termination
Fees Salary honus kind scheme benefits Total
Tén TER Tén Tén Tén TEn Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ20135128318 For the year ended
LB 31 December 2023
0Es Executive directors
-REE (THEH) - Chu Wai Hang
Raymond (CEO)
-KXE ~ Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton
-Hte ~Lau Shui Fung
BUEHTES Independent non-execuive
directors
-&20 (ki) ~Ling Imma Kit Sum (Note i)
-FEfR - Lee Wa Lun Warren
- Al - Szeto Yuk Ting

~BA% (i)

~ Elizabeth Law (Note ii)

BE0F128318 For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2022
Hi7ES Executive directors
-KEE (THEH) - Chu Wai Hang Raymond
(CEO) - 3,600 604 - - - 4,204
~RXE - Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton - 1,300 2 - 18 - 1338
-8tié - Lau Shui Fung - 1,800 15 - 18 - 1,833
BUHEs Independent non-executive
directors
-R20 - Ling Imma Kit Sum 360 - - - - - 360
-5ER - Lee Wa Lun Warren 360 - - - - - 360
- AIfEEE - Szeto Yuk Ting 360 - - - - - 360
1,080 6,700 639 - 36 - 8,455
%Eilg%hﬁﬁzﬁgﬁ';;% 'l 85
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BEENINERER (F)

@ EEME (&)

it

(i)

(ii)

E2

FRLEZTER2023F6A1BEREERR
RIBIEMITESE

BEEXZLTEN2023F6A1BERT A
RARBLIERITES

H E2023F K20225%12A318 IEF

3

B R R R E S ()R I M A IR

BB EMFHB : () EEARA]
EBHEM B A REBHNE BREK
BB

#H E2023F K2022512A318 IEF

3
=

BEARREZTHEXERAEN
EAIE -

(b) EERARBARKILER

(o)

H E20234F 2022412 A318 I &

3

BENRIEERGAESTER

HEMENRELE  RIKEH
FASAR A ¢ IR A A BOR -

RERHESREMAE=H
REME

B E2023F K%2022F12A318 IEF

B BELEREESREMAE=
HRERE-

d EERXRE ZHERENTH
EXER
BRERaVMBREREMEBIOMKESE

186

S RRREITLARAEETNE

=

ERSEERREAEEAREMRER

s A £20234 &2022%F12A318 1k

F
B

AR 4 B B AN R B 7S
BHEARS RHERAK-

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2023

33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(@) Directors’” emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(i) Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum has retired as the independent non-executive
director of the Company on 1 June 2023.

(i) Ms. Elizabeth Law has been appointed as the independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 June 2023.

None of the directors of the Company (i) received or paid any
remuneration in respect of accepting office; (ii) received or
paid emoluments in respect of services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries’
undertaking during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, none of
the directors of the Company waived or has agreed to waive any
emolument.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination

benefits

No emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or benefits in
respect of termination of directors’ services were paid or made,
directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor were any payables
during the years 31 ended December 2023 and 2022.

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

(d) Directors” material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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34 ARTFMBRRARREDEE

(@) 2B FHARR K

EQUITY MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(@) Statement of financial position of the Company

2023 2022
Bt &E THET FHET
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
aE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current asset
KA B R AE] Investment in a subsidiary 67,908 67,908
RBEE Current assets
T FRIE Prepayments 133 251
FEH—FE T B A Bl 3 IE Amount due from a subsidiary 102,572 101,043
ReLREFEY Cash and cash equivalents 22 215
102,727 101,509
HWEE Total assets 170,635 169,417
s EQUITY
ARRERFEA Equity attributable to equity
FE45 HE 2= holders of the Company
[N Share capital (b) 20,000 20,000
W15 % (B Share premium (b) 80,355 80,355
NG Capital reserve (b) 67,898 67,898
Bl e Retained earnings (b) 2,379 1,161
R g Total equity 170,632 169,414
REBEE Current liability
HinpET R IERJEFTEMA  Other payables and accruals 3 3
Bk EERAH Total equity and liability 170,635 169,417

AKD BB AR R B 7202453 A
2B ELSEESH A WHIATAL

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and was

REEZE- signed on its behalf.
KEE 2| +ig Chu Wai Hang Raymond Lau Shui Fung
EE EE Director Director

BFERERERAR
20235 %%
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M AEAANTMBEMRREREZRESE 34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(&) EQUITY MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
(b) AT EZEE (b) Equity movement of the Company
R& RAEE EXfiE BN B
Share Share Capital Retained Total
capital premium reserve earnings equity
FEL T TARL TAL FAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R02F1 818 2 &8 Balance at 1 January 2022 20,000 80,355 67,898 541 168,794
2EUE Comprehensive income
EREA Profit for the year - 1 J 5,620 5,620
et O AT | AR TRl gl DN 2603
BREAETNR S Transactions with owners
e Dividend - - - (5,000) (5,000

BEBAETHRZ4E Total transactions with owners

®2022512R318 & Balance at 31 December 2022 and
2023F1A18 258 1 January 2023

2EUE Comprehensive income

ERE Profit for the year

REUEAE Total comprehensive income

REFAETHNRS Transaction with owners

RE Dividend

HEBAETHRZ4E Total transaction with owners

R2023E128318 268 Balance at 31 December 2023

1 88 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2023
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